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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B =E

2010 Changes
%
HK$'m g
BEET ANt
Profit Attributable to Owners of the — AARHEH ARG HF
Company 376 531 (29%)
Total Assets BERE 9,681 9,112 6%
Equity Attributable to Owners of the — ZNRFIEH A JE(EIRZ
Company 7,293 7,040 4%
Bank Balances and Cash RITHESR MRS 1,346 1,339 1%
Changes
%
Key Performance and Liquidity FELEBERER HK$ g
Indicators: B RIEE: BT Bt

Basic Earnings Per Share FREXZF 0.165 0.247 (33%)

Net Assets Per Share (Note 1) SREEFE HT 1) 3.16 3.22 (2%)

P/E Ratio (Note 1) m&EE (ffiF 1) 9.9x 10.8x (8%)

Return on Capital Employed (Note 2) B&ZANBIERE (47 2) 5.2% 7.5% (31%)

Return on Total Assets (Note 3) BEERWRE (i 3) 3.9% 5.8% (33%)

Gearing Ratio (Note 4) EELE (it 4) 12.6% 7.5% 68%

Current Ratio (Note 5) MEILLE (B3 5) 3.0x 2.4x 25%

Interest Coverage (Note 6) FEERLE (H77 6) 23.6x 27.1x (13%)

Notes: Bt -

1. Based on 2,304,849,611 shares issued and fully paid as at 1. ER2011F12 A31 HEBTREHZKRG
31 December, 2011 (2010: 2,184,849,611 shares) and the 2,304,849,611%(201Q$3 2,184,849,611
market closing price of HK$1.63 (2010: HK$2.66) per share. ) Jo M i 8 & % 1.63 78 T (2010 4F : 2.66

T RTE RS ©

2. Calculated as profit attributable to owners of the Company 2. UARRBREBABERARARAGEE A
over equity attributable to owners of the Company. FEAERRAGTE RS -

3. Calculated as profit attributable to owners of the Company 3. AR EEE ARWREFGRABEETHEAN
over total assets. 5o

4, Calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to 4, DNEERZEGRIARRN R HEAE AELRIRARGTE
owners of the Company. g -

5. Calculated as current assets over current liabilities. 5. IWRBIEERURBIEETEMS -

6.  Calculated as profit before finance costs and taxation over 6.  DANBREI 5B A KRB IE AR FUBR DA BT 7% 8 A

finance costs.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REEIR & %GR 2 &)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A RIER

Board of Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Silver Grant
International Industries Limited (the “Company”) as at the
date of this report are set out below:

Executive directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)
Gu Jianguo

Zhang Zhonggiu

Chow Kwok Wai

Wen Jinsong

Non-executive directors

Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman)

Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)

Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman)
Independent non-executive directors
Kang Dian

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Audit Committee

Hung Muk Ming (Committee Chairman)
Kang Dian

Zhang Lu

Remuneration Committee

Zhang Lu (Committee Chairman)
Kang Dian

Nomination Committee
Chen Xiaozhou (Committee Chairman)

Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A RIER

Company Secretary AEME

Tung Tat Chiu, Michael Kz

Company Lawyer YNGIEE £:i]

Tung & Co. Solicitors RIE S ERDTT

Auditor 2 S L

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EE) e BAEIR H ZRTANTT
Certified Public Accountants HESIA

Principal Bankers FEFREBT

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited PERIT(BB)BRAA

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited HFBLGEZRITERAT
Citic Bank International Limited RERITEBEER AR
Share Registrar and Transfer Office BRHEBERBFE

Tricor Secretaries Limited BEMEBREBRAF

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, BEEH

28 Queen’s Road East, EERER 285

Wanchai, Hong Kong SEEPL 2618

(Tel: 29801888 Fax: 28610285) BTG 0 29801888 {HH : 28610285)
Registered Office TP EE

Suite 4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower, EREFEEE 1R
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, ERESNAKIE

Wanchai, Hong Kong 4912 4901 =

(Tel: 28770030 Fax: 28029506) (F 5 : 28770030 {EE : 28029506)
Company Website NGIE:ETd
http://www.silvergrant.com.hk http://www.silvergrant.com.hk
Stock Code B& 134X 5%

171 171
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Review of Results

Profit for the year attributable to Owners of the Company
decreased by HK$155.2 million to HK$375.6 million
(2010: HK$530.8 million), representing a decrement
of approximately 29%. Basic earnings per share also
decreased by a larger magnitude of 33% to HK$0.165
(2010: HK$0.247) due to the dilution effect of 120,000,000
new shares issued earlier this year.

The decrease in profit attributable to Owners of the
Company was mainly caused by the following factors:

First of all, held-for-trading investments recorded a huge
increase in unrealized loss of approximately HK$94.3
million in light of the significantly depressed market prices
of listed securities.

Secondly, profit contribution in respect of change in fair
value of investment properties decreased by approximately
HK$117.7 million. The Group’s principal investment
property is the East Gate Plaza located in Beijing. The
tight measures imposed against residential properties
have slowed down the pace of market prices increment.
In addition, the Group incurred further costs to renovate
East Gate Plaza in 2011, which has reduced the amount of
increase in fair value.

Thirdly, profit contribution in respect of change in fair
value of financial asset through profit or loss decreased
by approximately HK$76.9 million. The amount in 2010
included an amount of approximately HK$165.0 million
which was attributable to the valuation of the Group’s
US$25 million convertible bonds of Winsway Coking Coal
Holdings Limited (“Winsway Coking Coal”) which had been
converted into Winsway Coking Coal’s ordinary shares
immediately before its listing in October 2010. The amount
in 2011 represented an amount of approximately HK$95.8
million which was attributable to the valuation of the
exchangeable right attached to a loan advanced to a third
party exchangeable into the listed shares of China Lumena
New Materials Corp. (“Lumena”). The loan was exchanged
into approximately 46.9 million shares of Lumena during
the year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Review of Results (Continued)

Lastly, profit contribution from associates decreased
significantly by HK$139.0 million. One of the reasons is
that the profit margin of the Group’s principal associate
Zhong Hai You Qi (Taizhou) Petrochemical Company
Limited (“Zhong Hai You Qi”) was squeezed by the
increased unit production cost caused by the persistently
high crude oil prices during the year. The other reason is
that the Group shared a loss of approximately HK$72.7
million from the newly acquired associates CGNPC Huamei
Investment Limited (“CGNPC Huamei”) in 2011. CGNPC
Huamei financed its investment by RMB denominated bank
loans amounting to approximately HK$6,275.5 million in
aggregate and thus incurred significant interest expenses.
Moreover, the translation of the loans at the year-end date
also led to significant exchange loss.

And the decrease was partially compensated by the
following increase in profit:

Gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments amount
to approximately HK$169.4 million in aggregate. The Group
has disposed certain financial investments, including the
listed securities of Lumena, China XD Electric Co., Ltd
(“China XD Electric”) and BBMG Corporation (“BBMG”),
to take profit and to realize further working capital.
The Group also recognized one-off gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and gain on deemed disposal of a jointly
controlled entity amounting to approximately HK$64.9
million and approximately HK$35.1 million respectively.

Sales of petrochemical products/Cost of sales and
services

In September 2011, the board composition of the jointly
controlled entity Tai Zhou United East Petrochemical
Company Limited (“TZ United East”), which is engaged
in production and trading of petrochemical products, was
changed to the effect that majority of the board members
were appointed by the Group. Consequently, the Group
obtained control over the jointly controlled entity and was
deemed to be acquired by the Group which was then
reclassified as a subsidiary. Due to this reason, the Group
recorded sales of petrochemical products in 2011. For
the same reason, cost of sales and services was also
increased.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Review of Results (Continued)

Administrative expenses

Increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the
inclusion of the administrative expenses of the subsidiary
deemed to be acquired.

Business Review & Prospects

Property Investments, Development and Management

Properties Leasing

Gross rental income for the year decreased by 35% to
HK$45.5 million (2010: HK$70.0 million). The decrease
was mainly due to the fact that the Group has vacated
and renovated the south residential block of East Gate
Plaza for the purpose of selling individual flat unit to retail
customers leaving only the north residential block and the
commercial area for leasing purpose.

A total number of 4 flat units were sold in 2011 at gross
consideration of approximately HK$15.0 million. In
addition, sale contract in respect of 18 flat units with a
total consideration amounting to approximately HK$72.4
million were secured in 2011 and pending completion.

Property Management

At the end of the reporting period, there were 19 projects
(2010: 21 projects) under the management of Beijing Yinda
Property Management Limited (“Yinda”). The total floor
area under the management of Yinda exceeds 3.0 million
square meters. The revenue of Yinda increased 2% to
HK$159.8 million (2010: HK$156.3 million). Gross loss and
net profit are approximately HK$4.2 million (2010: HK$3.1
million gross profit) and approximately HK$87,000 (2010:
HK$9,000) respectively. The decrease was mainly due to
increase in social security expenses.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

Property Investments, Development and Management
(Continued)

Property Development

Cinda Jianrun

In light of the currently depressed property market
and tight regulatory measures enforced, Cinda Jianrun
Property Company Limited (“Cinda Jianrun”) has
suspended the negotiations for the property development
opportunity located in the Chao Yang District of Beijing.
Cinda Jianrun will resume the negotiations at the
appropriate time when the currently severe property
market conditions have indication of improvement.

Kema Yinxiang

Kema Yinxiang Industries Limited ( “Kema Yinxiang”), a
50% owned jointly controlled entity of the Group, is a
construction material supplier specialized in providing all-
round bathroom solutions to customers. Its business is
the design, manufacture and wholesaling of ltalian style
bathroom products in its own brand name of (RIEEI%).
The core product is bathroom suite known as the “CubiX”
series. CubiX series are pre-made modules of bathroom
structures capable of being combined into different stylish
and tailored bathrooms.

For the current year, Kema Yinxiang recorded a gross
revenue of approximately HK$292.5 million (2010:
HK$211.4 million) with a net profit of approximately
HK$27.8 million (2010: HK$13.7 million). Although the
magnitude of net profit was not significant, the growth in
gross revenue and net profit indicated a promising trend.
During both years under review, Kema Yinxiang was
concentrating its effort on expanding its operations so as
to build up a fast and sustainable profit growth. The Group
has an intention to spin-off Kema Yinxiang at appropriate
time.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Natural Resources Venture
Yangquan Tiantai

Yang Quan Coal Industry (Group) Tiantai Investment
Limited (“Yangquan Tiantai”), formerly known as Guoyang
Tiantai Investment Limited, is a 49% owned associate of
the Group. The remaining 51% equity of Yangquan Tiantai
is held by Yang Quan Coal Industry (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Yangquan Coal”), formerly known as Shanxi Guoyang
New Energy Co., Ltd.. Yangquan Coal is a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, whose controlling
shareholder is Yang Quan Coal (Group) Corporation, which
is one of the five largest coal enterprises in the Shanxi
Province, China.

Yangquan Tiantai is recognised by the Steering Office
for the Consolidation of Coal Enterprises of the Shanxi
Province as a designated entity to undertake the
mergers and restructuring of the coal industry in the
Shanxi Province, and has been actively and legitimately
participated in the consolidation, exploitation, utilisation,
investment and construction projects in respect of coal
resources.

Up to 31 December 2011, Yangquan Tiantai has
commenced or secured the acquisition of 30 coal mines,
which consolidated into 12 larger coal mines with an
annual production capacity ranging from 600,000 to
3,000,000 tons each. The total contract amount in
respect of the acquisitions of the aforesaid coal mines
is approximately HK$1,944,890,000, out of which
approximately HK$1,491,411,000 has been paid during
the year. The proven reserve of these coal mines and
the designed annual production capacity controlled by
Yangqguan Tiantai is 305,820,000 tons and 6,260,000 tons
respectively.

The 12 coal mines are situated in Pingding, Ningwu,
Yicheng and Puxian districts. During the year, the
acquisitions and consolidations of the coal mines in
Pingding and Ningwu were completed; whereas, the coal
mines in Yicheng and Puxian are secured pending the
completion of the administration procedures by the local
government.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Natural Resources Venture (Continued)
Yangquan Tiantai (Continued)

In 2011, Yangquan Tiantai has concentrated its effort
on coal mines consolidation and post-consolidation
construction and redevelopment works; there was no
formal sale of coal recorded. Thus, the profit shared from
Yangquan Tiantai to the Group in 2011 was insignificant.

At present, Yangquan Tiantai is endeavor to accelerate
its coal mines acquisition process for the purpose of
increasing production capacity to approximately 20 million
tons per annum. At the same time, Yangquan Tiantai is
investigating the possibility to acquire certain operating
mines which may have immediate profit contribution to
Yangquan Tiantai and to the Group.

Petrochemical Products
TZ United East

TZ United East is a 50% owned subsidiary of the Group.
Its principal business is the manufacturing and trading
of organic solvent methyl ethyl ketone. The current
production capacity of TZ United East is 110,000 tons per
annum. The gross revenue and after tax profit for the year
2011 were approximately HK$1,032.8 million and HK$129.8
million respectively.

In September 2011, TZ United East restructured the
composition of its board of directors. Under the new
board of directors, the Group has the right to appoint
five directors out of nine directors and therefore take
control over the board of directors. Accordingly, TZ United
East was deemed to be acquired by the Group and
was accounted for as a subsidiary rather than a jointly
controlled entity.

As a subsidiary, post-acquisition gross revenue and
after tax loss contributed from TZ United East was
approximately HK$204.0 million and approximately
HK$27.0 million respectively. As a jointly controlled entity,
after tax profit contribution from TZ United East was
approximately HK$78.4 million.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Petrochemical Products (Continued)
TZ United East (Continued)

Total after tax profit contribution after minority interest
from TZ United East amounted to approximately HK$64.9
million (2010: HK$57.0 million). The increase in after tax
profit was mainly due to the fact that the 3.11 Japan
earthquakes had temporarily disrupted the methyl ethyl
ketone productions and supply of Japan manufacturers,
which are the main suppliers of methyl ethyl ketone.
Selling prices of methyl ethyl ketone surged to record
high of RMB20,000 per ton. Accordingly, TZ United East
recorded a significant increase in profit. The situation of
shortage in supply has gradually recovered in the second
half year and the selling prices of TZ United East’s core
product methyl ethyl ketone also gradually returned to a
more realistic level. In the near future, it is expected that
the selling prices of methyl ethyl ketone will stand at the
range of RMB10,000 to RMB15,000 per ton, which will
continue to provide a favourable market environment to TZ
United East.

Despite of the above favorable market environment, the
persistently high crude oil prices had led to increase in
production cost. Therefore, TZ United East was operating
at a loss during the later part of the second half year 2011.
Consequently, the Group recognized post-acquisition loss
amounting to approximately HK27.0 million in aggregate.

Zhong Hai You Qi

Zhong Hai You Qi is a 23.03% owned associate of the
Group. Its principal business is manufacturing and trading
of fuel oil which is the raw material for lubricant oil
production and bitumen. The current production capacity
of Zhong Hai You Qi is 1.5 million tons per annum. In light
of the persistently high crude oil prices during the year,
which increased the unit production cost and the PRC
government’s tight policy control on CPI which limited the
ability to raise its selling prices, the profit margin of Zhong
Hai You Qi was squeezed. Zhong Hai You Qi increased
its production volume by approximately 11%. However,
profit per ton of crude oil was dropped which has led to
drop in after tax profit. As a result, it recorded an after tax
profit of approximately HK$150.7 million (2010: HK$385.8
million) and contributed approximately HK$34.7 million
(2010: HK$88.8 million) profit to the Group.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Financial Investments

The Group strategically invested, directly and indirectly,
in certain PRC enterprises. These enterprises have good
potential for separate listing. Some of them have already
been listed. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying value of
these strategic investments was approximately HK$1,041.1
million in aggregate (2010: HK$1,693.1 million) with
individual allocation detailed below:

EBOERREE)
ERRE

AEBRBE I (EEMEE)RERETHEH
¥  ZECEAEBYLIMZESD - EFE
DIE LT e R2011F12831H  ZE%R
B8 E 2 BREE 25840/ 1,041,100,000 74
7£(20104F : 1,693,100,000787T) * H&E B K
MDEEFST -

2011 2010
HKS$ million HK$ million

BEET B 2T

Winsway Coking Coal KRB R 335.5 684.3
Zggame 52 270.8 498.7
China XD Electric FEEESRE - 155.8
cupP Hh [ ER B 114.6 110.1
SINOMA AR 5 63.5 63.5
Bai Nian De Cheng AERH 98.6 94.7
China New Material HR AR 40.0 40.0
BBMG Bl - 38.8
West King E2IRE 61.0 —
China Smart PRI RE SRS 49.0 —
Others Hib 8.1 7.2
1,041.1 1,693.1

Winsway Coking Coal (Hong Kong: 1733)

The Group is interested in approximately 146.5 million
shares in Winsway Coking Coal which is now freely
tradable. Based on the closing price of HK$2.29 per
share as at 31 December 2011, the carrying value of the
Winsway Coking Coal shares amounted to approximately
HK$335.5 million with an estimated unrealised gain
approximates to HK$11.4 million in aggregate. Compared
with the balance as at 31 December 2010, the decrease
in the carrying amount was due to the decrease in the
market value of the Winsway Coking Coal shares.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Financial Investments (Continued)
Zqggame (Shenzhen: 300052)

The Group is beneficially interested in approximately 10.5
million shares A share, after disposal of 1.2 million shares
in December 2011, in Shenzhen Zhonggingbao Interaction
Network Co., Ltd. (“Zggame”). As at 31 December 2011,
based on a market closing price of RMB12.56 per share,
the estimated unrealized gain before taxation approximates
to HK$125.7 million in aggregate. The lock-up period of the
Group’s A shares were expired on 10 February 2011. The
Group will continue to look for opportunities to divest the
investment in Zggame in 2012. Depending on the selling
price per share, the Group expects to recognize significant
gain in 2012 upon realization of the A shares. Compared
with the balance as at 31 December 2010, the decrease in
the carrying amount was mainly due to the decrease in the
market value of the A shares.

CupP

China UnionPay (“CUP”) is the largest bank card
association and credit card issuers in the mainland China
having a very bright business prospect. The Group held an
investment of RMB93.0 million in CUP (and is beneficially
interested in approximately 17.5 million shares) as at year-
end date.

SINOMA (Hong Kong: 1893)

The Group has an effective interest in approximately 23.1
million foreign domestic shares in the shares capital of
China National Materials Company Limited (“SINOMA”),
which can be freely transferred after the application to be
made to the China Securities Regulatory Commission.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Financial Investments (Continued)
Bai Nian De Cheng

As at the year-end date, the Group held investment in it
RAFEEHAIEEEDL (“Bai Nian De Cheng”) amounting
to RMB80.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$98.6
million). Bai Nian De Cheng is a closed-end fund which
is discretionary operated by a professional fund manager.
The fund will invest principally in equity interests, loan
capital and convertible notes of target investees which
have potential for separate listing. The Group made the
investment for the purpose of leveraging the expertise and
the business network of the fund manager.

China XD Electric (Shanghai: 601179)

The Group disposed its entire investment in China XD
Electric and realized cash amounting to approximately
HK$104.1 million in aggregate to strengthen its working
capital. A profit of approximately HK$40.9 million was also
recognized from the disposal.

China New Material

The Group holds HK$40.0 million exchangeable notes in
China New Material (Zhongpu) Holdings Limited (“China
New Material”) which are capable of converting into the
listed securities of China New Material upon listing in
accordance with stipulated terms.

BBMG (Hong Kong: 2009, Shanghai: 601992)

The Group disposed its entire investment in BBMG and
realized cash amounting to approximately HK$140.0 million
in aggregate to strengthen its working capital. A profit of
approximately HK$99.6 million was also recognized from
the disposal.

West King

On 1 September 2011, the Company acquired 20% equity
interest in West King (Hong Kong) Investment Limited (“West
King”), which is engaged in the production and selling of a
regional white wine brand known as “Z$g)I|” in China, at a
consideration of RMB50.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$61.0 million). Since the Group does not have significant
influence in West King, it was accounted for as an investment

rather than as an associate.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

China Smart

On 16 August 2011, the Group subscribed for
approximately 24.4 million new shares in China Smart
Electric Group Limited (“China Smart”), representing
3.76% of the existing enlarged issued capital of China
Smart at a total consideration of RMB40.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$49.0 million). China Smart
is principally engaged in the development, production and
sale of electrical automation systems, smart power grids
and related energy saving products.

JC International

On 31 January 2011, the Company through its indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary Konson Investment Limited
(“Konson”) entered into a legally binding letter of intent
with Jiangxi Copper Company Limited (“Jiangxi Copper”)
and China Ordins Corporation (“China Ordins”) to invest
in a 20% equity interest in Jiangxi Copper International
Trading Co., Ltd. (“"JC International”) at a consideration of
RMB200.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$236.7
million). The remaining equity interest was owned as to
60% by Jiangxi Copper and as to 20% by China Ordins.
Pursuant to the letter of intent and upon execution of
the formal agreement dated 5 July 2011, the Company
reduced its investment amount in JC International to
RMB100.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$118.3
million) so as to retain more liquid fund to invest in other
potential investments. After this strategic change, the
shareholdings of JC International will be owned as to 60%
by Jiangxi Copper, as to 30% by China Ordins and 10%
as to by Konson. The Group will hold its 10% interest in
JC International for long term investment purpose. The
transaction contemplated under the formal agreement
is subject to obtaining relevant government authorities’
approval in the PRC. All necessary approvals have been
obtained in March 2012 and Konson has paid RMB100.0
million in March 2012,
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Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

Power & Energy

Meiya Power

In the third quarter of 2011, the Group acquired
29.41% equity interest in CGNPC Huamei Investment
Limited (“CGNPC Huamei”) at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$776.4 million which is accounted for as
an associate using the equity method. The sole investment
of CGNPC Huamei is its wholly owned subsidiary Meiya
Power Company Limited (“Meiya Power”). Meiya Power is
a conglomerate engaged mainly in clean power operations.
Meiya Power recorded a small post-acquisition after tax
profit of approximately HK$9.8 million in 2011. Due to the
fact that CGNPC Huamei financed a significant portion
of its investment in Meiya Power by RMB denominated
bank loans amounting to approximately HK$6,275.5
million, CGNPC Huamei incurred significant interest
expenses, on a post-acquisition perspective, amounting
to approximately HK$132.4 million. In addition, CGNPC
Huamei also recognized a significant exchange loss, on a
post-acquisition perspective, amounting to approximately
HK$123.1 million on translating the RMB denominated
bank loans at the year-end date. In this regard, the Group
shared a post-acquisition loss of approximately HK$72.7
million in aggregate from CGNPC Huamei including Meiya
Power.
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Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

Power & Energy (Continued)

Meiya Power (Continued)

The Board was advised by CGNPC Huamei that China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Corporation intend to
conduct business restructuring of CGNPC Huamei and
shareholders of CGNPC Huamei are required to inject
additional capital to CGNPC Huamei. Since the Group do
not have additional budget to participate in the intended
restructuring, the Group’s interest in CGNPC Huamei will
inevitably be significantly diluted to a level of less than
20%, and CGNPC Huamei will cease to be an associate
of the Company. Accordingly, the Company cannot equity
account for its interest in CGNPC Huamei which will
not contribute any consolidated profit to the Company.
Hence, the Group negotiated CGNPC International Limited
(“CGNPC International”’) and entered into a conditional
agreement on 9 March 2012. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Company will sell its entire 29.41% interest in CGNPC
Huamei to CGNPC International at a cash consideration
of HK$776.4 million. The Company also entered into a
Memorandum of Undertaking (“MQOU”) with China Uranium
Development Company Limited (“CUDC Limited”) on 9
March 2012, pursuant to which the Company will subscribe
for a five-year exchangeable bond with 5% coupon interest
issued by CUDC Limited. The principal amount of the
exchangeable bond is HK$776.0 million. The Company
has option to, upon fulfillment of certain conditions,
exchange a portion of or the entire principal amount of the
exchangeable bond into share of CGN Mining Company
Limited (“CGN Mining”) at HK$1.41 per share. CGN
Mining is company listed on the Stock Exchange and is a
subsidiary of CUDC. The Board believes that CGN Mining
will eventually engage in businesses closely related to
uranium resources. Uranium is a fuel for nuclear power
generation and the Board holds an optimistic view in the
future development of nuclear power in the PRC. Both of
the aforesaid transactions are connected transactions of
the Company and are subjected to the approval of the
independent shareholders of the Company. Such approval
is yet to be obtained.
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Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

Power & Energy (Continued)

Meiya Power (Continued)

In the opinion of the Board, as an investment, it is more
appropriate to invest in the above exchangeable bond. The
exchangeable bond is on one hand capable of generating
recurring interest income at 5% per annum to the Group
while on the other hand will have potential for sizeable
capital gain.

Growth Strategies

Going forward, the Group’s growth strategy is to expand
its existing investments in coal, power and petrochemical
products for the purpose of extending the source of
recurring income and expanding the magnitude of
recurring earnings.

The Group has an intention to expand the business scale
of the existing petrochemical projects by strengthening
the utilization of raw materials, expanding the deeper
processing of raw material, manufacturing of high market
demand products and to extend the products line.
Amongst which, TZ United East has intention to construct
a portfolio of 8 petrochemical facilities including a 1.0
million tons per year heavy oil alkene production facility
and a 500,000 tons per year heavy oil hydrogenization
production facility with a total investment of RMB2.0 billion
and is expected to commence production in 2013. Zhong
Hai You Qi has intention to expand its oil refinery capacity
by constructing a portfolio of 9 facilities including a 3.0
million tons per year oil refinery facility and a 600,000
tons per year lubricant oil facility. By further expanding the
investment and production capacity of the petrochemical
operations, the Group can enjoy the benefit of economic
of scale which will eventually become a stable source of
revenue and profit of the Group.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Financial Review

Exchange Exposure

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and
payments are denominated in HKD and RMB. Moreover,
the Board is capable of maintaining a net monetary asset
position denominated in RMB for the Group. Therefore, the
Board is confident that the Group’s exposure to exchange
rate fluctuations in respect of RMB will not have material
adverse effect on the financial position of the Group in
light of the continuous and mild appreciation of the RMB
to HKD exchange rate. In addition, the Board does not
anticipate that there is any material exchange exposure in
respect of other currencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
material liability denominated in other foreign currencies
other than RMB. There was also no hedging transaction
contracted for by the Group during the year.

Working Capital & Borrowings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$915.3 million
in aggregate. The composition of these borrowings is
summarized below:
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915,300,000 T - Z S EEMAKRLE W
T

HK$ million Percentage

2T Bt

Short term borrowings HHEE 370.5 40%
Long term borrowings RAEIEE 544.8 60%
Total GEE] 915.3 100%

Interests for all borrowings were charged at floating rates
ranging from 2.30% per annum to 7.25% per annum.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Working Capital & Borrowings (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and
bank balances was HK$1,345.8 million in aggregate. The
Group’s net cash balance and net current assets were
approximately HK$430.5 million and HK$1,998.9 million
respectively. In view of the Group’s strong working capital
base and the relatively high level of net cash, the Board
is confident that the Group has adequate working capital
to meet daily operations and to finance future expansion.
Moreover, the Group has a sound and strong financial
position.

At the end of the reporting period, the Gearing Ratio and
Current Ratio of the Group were 12.6% (2010: 7.5%) and
3.0x (2010: 2.4x) respectively.

Investment Properties

Increase in the carrying amount was due to increase in fair
values. There were no material additions (other than costs
incurred in renovating the East Gate Plaza) or disposals
during the year.

Interest in Associates

The significant increase was due to the new investment in
CGNPC Huamei.

Amount due from Associates

The increase was due to short-term advance of working
capital to certain associates, which has been substantially
repaid in early 2012.

Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

The loan was made to an independent borrower for the
purpose of utilizing a portion of the Group’s idle funds for
better returns. During the year, the loan was exchanged
into approximately 46.9 million shares of Lumena’s shares
so as to maximize the Group’s return.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Loan Receivables (Continued)

These were loans made to certain independent borrowers
for the purposes of utilizing a portion of the Group’s idle
funds for better returns and to increase interest income
in the current low deposit rates period. Decrease in the
carrying amount was due to repayment received from
certain borrowers.

On 9 January 2012, the Group granted a loan
facility amounting to RMB450.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$553.5 million) to a third party for a
period of 8 months from the date of drawdown for the
purpose of generating higher return to the Group. The loan
bears interest chargeable at 18% per annum.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables
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2011 2010
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FET TET

Carrying balances under non-current IEmBEETE T IRE
assets “EeR 35,727 —
Carrying balances under current assets  RENVE EIE IR AR 149,765 199,259
Total 4% 185,492 199,259

The balances in 2010 mainly represented by the final
installment of approximately HK$150.0 million (amount
carried at fair value of the proceeds at initial recognition)
in respect of the disposal of an associate, CllI Limited,
which was received by the end of 2011 as scheduled. The
balances in 2011 mainly include the amount of HK$70.0
million to be received from the disposal of the BBMG
shares.
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Available-for-sale Investments AHHERE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Carrying balances under non-current EREVEEIR NRME

assets R 727,801 1,038,604
Carrying balances under current assets GBI EER NREAH 313,254 654,511
Total HEE 1,041,055 1,693,115

The decrease in the aggregated carrying balances
was mainly due to the decrease in the market values
of investments in Winsway Coking Coal and Zggame
amounting to approximately HK$561.7 million in aggregate.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Changes in Other Items on the Statement of
Financial Position

The deemed acquisition of the subsidiary TZ United
East in 2011 has led to significant increase in property,
plant and equipment; land use right; goodwill and non-
controlling interest; and significant decrease in interest in
jointly controlled entity.

Taxation Payable

The decrease in taxation payable is due to its removal
following the disposal of subsidiaries in 2011.

Capital Structure

At the end of the reporting period, the shareholders’
fund of the Group was approximately HK$7,292.9 million
and has increased by approximately HK$252.7 million or
approximately 3% compared to that as at 31 December
2010. The increase was mainly due to increase in retained
profit and additional capital raised by the issuance of
120,000,000 new shares during the year.

During the year, the Company paid HK$230.5 million to
shareholders of the Company as final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2010, which has an effect of reducing
the overall capital.

Human Resources

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed
approximately 1,330 (2010: 1,130) employees in Hong
Kong and in the PRC. The Group offers its employees
competitive remuneration packages, which are consistent
with the prevailing market practices. The Group’s
remuneration policies remain unchanged during the
year. Total staff costs for the year was approximately
HK$127.4 million (2010: approximately HK$108.7 million).
The increase in staff cost was mainly due to increased
number of employees and the increase in social security
expenses paid for the whole year of 2011 as compared
to that of payment for half year in 2010 in respect of PRC
employees.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKEHE

Final Dividend

The Board expects that the Group is likely to conclude and
will make further investments in coal mine assets in 2012.
In this regard, it is beneficial to the Group to retain more
profits for investment in the near future. The Board has
resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.05 per share for the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: HK$0.10 per share). The final dividend,
subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, will be payable on 1 June 2012 to
shareholders on the register of members of the Company
on 24 May 2012. The total amount of dividend payable is
approximately HK$115.2 million.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to Mr. Yuen Wing Shing (“Mr.
Yuen”), Mr. Tang Baoqi (“Mr. Tang”), Mr. Yang Zhao (“Mr.
Yang”) and Mr. Li Xianli (“Mr. Li") for their contributions
and services to the Group in the past and to welcome
Mr. Zhang Zhonggqiu (“Mr. Zhang”), Mr. Chen Qiming (“Mr.
Chen”) and Ms. Wen Jinsong (“Ms. Wen”) to join the
board. Moreover, | would like to express my appreciation
and gratitude to our shareholders for their support and all
the Group’s employees for their hard work and dedication
in carrying out their duties and in achieving the Group’s
business goal.

By order of the Board of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Gao Jian Min
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2012
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS E=f&/)

Executive Directors
Gao Jian Min Managing Director

Mr. Gao, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director
and served as the Managing Director of the Company on
22 June 1998. He is also appointed as directors of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Gao is also an executive
director of Jiangxi Copper Co., Ltd (Stock code: 358)
and Qingling Motors Co. Ltd. (“Qingling”) (Stock code:
1122), the H shares of both companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Gao graduated from the Qing
Hua University with a bachelor degree in engineering.
He has over 25 years of experience in finance, industrial
investment and property investment and development.

Liu Tianni Deputy Managing Director

Mr. Liu, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 26 May 2001. Mr. Liu is the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Liu is also a
director of various companies of the Group. He graduated
from the Beijing Normal University with a master degree
in science in 1990. He has over 15 years of experience in
corporate administration and trade businesses. Mr. Liu is
also the independent non-executive director of Chongging
Iron & Steel Company Limited (Stock code: 1053) and
Qingling (Stock code: 1122), the H shares of both
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REEIR & %GR 2 &)

BITES

BER EFaLE

BEAERFEL25 R 199346 A 22 HEERT
BARBIZHTEST AR TESBLER
B BARIAEEETRRIZESTHRE
AR ATERERMDARAQ A (K
MDREE 358 REKRAERGERAR(E
82D (MR - 1122) ZHITEE » Z MM
RNElZHBRBRGOE R R LT - mEER
BEABRY  BEIRBES8B - FR
Rl TXERERMERERBEFEES
05 FIEER o

BRI EFHELHE

RIS AR FA85% - 12001 F5 26 HESR
FARRRAZHNTES - B EERRQRE
FEIBEE BIEERRREAEEETA
Rl EERTS o A 19904 R4t R Al & K
Ry BHEBESELTEMN - HRITHRER
RBZFEAEB1SFERH -  BAENREE
H# AR D AR AT (RMH RS : 1053) RER
(BRDRER : 1122) 2 B IERITES - %M
R ELZ HRAR D 9B 22 B £ T o




PROFILE OF DIRECTORS E=f&/)

Executive Directors (Continued)
Gu Jianguo

Mr. Gu, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 25 May 1999. Mr. Gu is currently
an assistant chief executive of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”) (formerly known
as China Cinda Asset Management Corporation). China
Cinda is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Gu
obtained a master degree and a Ph. D degree in 1991 and
1994 respectively. He has over 20 years of experiences
in commercial and investment banking, business
management, and financial accounting and management.
He is also an executive director of Cinda International
Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”) (Stock code: 111)
which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Zhang Zhongqiu

Mr. Zhang, aged 60, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 20 July 2011. Mr. Zhang
graduated from the Jilin University in 1982 with a Bachelor
degree in Literature. He completed his postgraduate study
in the School of Banking and Finance of the University
of International Business and Economics in May 2003.
Mr. Zhang has worked for industrial enterprises and
government departments for years and has been engaged
in the research studies in respect of Hong Kong and
Macau economy and finance for a prolonged period of
time. Mr. Zhang was an executive director of Well Kent
International Holdings Limited. At present, he is the
general manager of Well Kent International (Macau) Limited
(“Well Kent Macau”). Well Kent Macau is an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of China Cinda, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years’
working experience in the finance industry and in financial
researches.
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Chow Kwok Wai

Mr. Chow, aged 45, is one of the Deputy General
Managers and is the Qualified Accountant of the Company.
He is responsible for the finance and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr. Chow joined the Company
in October 1993 and was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 20 April 2004. Mr. Chow
has worked in Price Waterhouse, which is now known as
PriceWaterhouseCoopers and has accumulated valuable
audit experience there. Mr. Chow received his bachelor
degree in social sciences from the University of Hong Kong
in 1990. Mr. Chow is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Fellow CPA of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also a Certified Tax Adviser and a Fellow Member of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow has over 20
years of experience in accounting, financial management
and corporate finance. Mr. Chow is also an independent
non-executive director of Lijun International Pharmaceutical
(Holding) Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 2005) which H shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange and Youyuan International
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2268) which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-executive
director of Cinda International (Stock code: 111) which
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Wen Jinsong

Ms. Wen, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 15 February 2012. She was
also appointed as one of the Deputy General Managers
of the Company with effect from 1 March 2012. Ms. Wen
is a senior accountant in the PRC. She graduated from
Shanghai University of Engineering Science in 1987 with a
bachelor of industrial engineering and obtained a master of
economics from Xiamen University in 1996. Ms. Wen has
over 20 years’ experience in the power industry. Ms. Wen
joined China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holdings Co.,
Ltd (“CGNPC”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
called “CGNPC Group”), a substantial shareholder of
the Company, in 1992 and served various positions
including head of accounting branch, deputy general
manager and general manager of finance department and
deputy general manager and general manager of assets
management department of CGNPC, general manager
of Guangdong Nuclear Power Investment Co., Ltd. and
director of CGNPC’s Restructuring & IPO Office.

Non-executive Directors
Chen Xiaozhou Chairman

Mr. Chen, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and was elected the Chairman of
the Board on 13 February 2006. He was redesignated as
a non-executive director of the Company on 1 September
2006. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is currently the chairman
and executive director of Well Kent International
Investment Company Limited which is a subsidiary of
China Cinda and the chairman and executive director of
Cinda International (Stock code: 111), which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen resigned as a
non-executive director of China National Materials Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 1893), the H Shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange on 12 July 2011. Mr. Chen obtained a
master degree in economics from the Research Institute of
the People’s Bank of China in 1988 and obtained a master
degree in commerce from the University of New South
Wales, Australia in 2003. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of
experience in the banking and finance sectors.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hui Xiao Bing Vice-chairman

Mr. Hui, aged 58, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company and was elected Vice-chairman of the
Board on 22 June 1993. He was redesignated as a non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September
2006. Mr. Hui was the deputy managing director of China
Everbright Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Hui was also
the president of China Construction Bank, Shenzhen
Branch. He previously worked for the Research Centre for
Economic Development of the State Council of the PRC
and China Investment Consultancy Company. He has over
20 years of experience in banking and finance. Mr. Hui
graduated from the Inner Mongolia Industrial University
with a bachelor degree in engineering. Mr. Hui is currently
the chairman and chief executive officer of Huiheng
Medical, Inc. (Stock Code: HHGM.OB) which shares are
traded on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of the
Nasdaq in the USA.

Chen Qiming

Mr. Chen, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive
director and Vice-chairman of the Board of the Company
on 15 February 2012. He is a senior engineer in the PRC.
He obtained a bachelor of science in engineering from the
East China University of Metallurgy in 1984 and a master
in economics from the University of International Business
and Economics in 2003. Mr. Chen has over 15 years’
experience in the power industry. Mr. Chen joined CGNPC
Group in 1996 and served various positions including head
of the construction contract division of Ling Ao Nuclear
Power Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of CGNPC, manager of the
contract procurement department of Liaoning Hongyanhe
Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., manager of the contract
and procurement department of China Nuclear Power
Engineering Co., Ltd. and the deputy general manager and
general manager of the capital operation department of
CGNPC.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Kang Dian

Mr. Kang, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 8 May 1998.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is presently
the chairman of New China Life Insurance Company
Limited (Stock code: 1336), which H Shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Kang graduated from the Beijing
Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering (now known as
the University of Science & Technology of Beijing), with a
bachelor degree majoring in engineering in 1982. In 1984,
he graduated from the Graduate School of Academy of
Social Science of China and obtained a master degree in
economics. Mr. Kang was the director and vice-president
of Guangdong Enterprise (Holdings) Limited, a holding
company of a conglomerate group, from 1994 to 2000.
From 1990 to 1994, Mr. Kang was the vice-president
of China National Packing Co.. From 1987 to 1990, Mr.
Kang was the vice-president of China Agribusiness Trust
& Investment Co.. Mr. Kang is also the Consultant to the
Finance & Securities Commission of All China Lawyers
Association since 1996. Mr. Kang is an independent non-
executive director of China Galaxy Futures Company
Limited. Mr. Kang was the chairman of the Supervison
Board of Shenzhen Development Bank Company Limited
from June 2005 to December 2009.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 4 May 2000.
He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is presently the General
Manager of CITIC Central Tanshi Money Brokering
Company Limited, which is a joint venture of CITIC Trust
Co., Ltd. engaged in the money brokering business
for financial institutions. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Sichuan International Studies University in 1979. From
1987 to 2000, Mr. Zhang was the executive vice president
and treasurer of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited, responsible
for both the Treasury and International Business. From
1974 to 1987, he worked for Bank of China and CITIC
Industrial Bank. Mr. Zhang has engaged in the banking
business for over 35 years.

Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 23 December
2004. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Hung is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and
is a Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and an associate
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
He is also a Certified Tax Adviser and a member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Hung received his
bachelor degree in social sciences from the University of
Hong Kong in 1990, and a master degree in corporate
governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. From 2 December 2008 till now, Mr. Hung is an
independent non-executive director of Cinda International
(Stock code: 111), whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Hung has over 20 years of experience in
the accounting and audit sector.
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Kwok Chung Lun

Mr. Kwok, aged 57, joined the Company in July 1995.
Mr. Kwok is the Managing Director of Beijing East Gate
Development Co., Ltd., which is a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Kwok pursued study in the People’s
University. Mr. Kwok has over 20 years of experience in
property investment and development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT A RIER®HE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining and ensuring a
standard of corporate governance that is consistent with
market practices. The Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for the time being
in force for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company will continuously review and improve its
corporate governance practices to ensure that business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in
a proper and prudent manner.

The following summarizes the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.

Board of Directors

The Board led by the Chairman, steers the Group’s
business direction. The management, led by the Managing
Director, which is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, is responsible for the Group’s management
and operations. The division of responsibilities between
the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly
established and set out in writing. In addition, the role of
the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director are
separated and are performed by different persons to avoid
concentration of authorities to one single person.

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence
of an effective internal control system. The independent
non-executive directors serve the important function
of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The current Board comprises six executive directors,
three non-executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors which composition is set out in the
section headed Corporation Information on page 3 and the
biographies of the directors are set out on page 24 to 30.

Members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise
and skills to discharge their duties.

The Company’s directors, Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou, Gu
Jianguo and Zhang Zhongqiu are also directors and/
or senior officers within the group of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd., which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company. The Company’s directors, Messrs. Gao
Jian Min and Liu Tianni are also directors and shareholders
of Silver Grant Group Limited, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The Company’s director, Mr.
Chen Qiming is also a director and/or senior officer within
the group of China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holdings
Co., Ltd., which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Save for the aforesaid, there is no relationship
between members of the Board, in terms of financial,
business, family or other significant relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to
fulfil the requirements of the Code, two standing board
committees were set up under the Board at 1999
and 2005 respectively: the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. The Board also set up ad hoc
board committee to handle specific issues and report
back to the Board.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each independent non-executive director an annual
confirmation confirming his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. In addition, the independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all corporate
communications.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

All directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There is an established procedure for
directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.

The full board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy and to
monitor the operations as well as the financial performance
of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to
all directors in respect of full board meetings and the
directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda
if necessary. Agenda and the accompanying board papers
in respect of full board meetings are sent out in full to all
directors no less than 3 days before the meetings. Minutes
of full board meetings and meetings of board committee
are properly kept and all directors have access to board
papers and the related materials.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

During the year of 2011, 4 full board meetings were held
and the attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of director

EEE2®)

R2011ERN - XBMARZRESEH
fERNHERFIIAT

Number of meetings attended

Bk

Attendance rate

EEpnE HESRRE HE =
Chen Xiaozhou 3 out of 4 75%
FESS 4RPHEFEIR

Hui Xiao Bing 4 out of 4 100%
B 4RPHFEAR

Yang Zhao 4 out of 4 100%
Bk 4RPHFEAR

Gao Jian Min 4 out of 4 100%
2ER 4RPHEFEAR

Liu Tianni 4 out of 4 100%
£ N 4RPHFEAR

Gu Jianguo 4 out of 4 100%
2 B 4RPHFEAR

Tang Baoqi (Note 1) 3 out of 3 100%
ERE(AEE 1) 3RPEFEIR

Zhang Zhonggqiu (Note 2) 1 out of 1 100%
SRR (A 2) 1TRHPHEIR

Yuen Wing Shing (Note 3) N/A N/A
ROKH(HE 3) A @
Chow Kwok Wai 4 out of 4 100%
5] 4RPHEAR

Li Xianli 4 out of 4 100%
FH 4RPHFEAR

Kang Dian 4 out of 4 100%
R 4RPHFEAR

Zhang Lu 4 out of 4 100%
SR 4RPHFE AR

Hung Muk Ming 4 out of 4 100%
HEARER 4RPHFEAR

Note: K1zt :

1. There were only 3 full board meetings before his 1. TERERA . RARIAEREEEES

resignation. @ o
2. There was only 1 full board meeting since his appointment. 2. BRZEER REBERIAEEEEES
e
3. There were no full board meeting before his resignation. 3. ERERC A YEZHIEE=SEEee
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Board of Directors (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board has the power to appoint any person as a
director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board. The director so appointed shall held office
until the next general meeting (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next annual general meeting
(in the case of new addition to the Board) following his
appointment and be eligible for re-election. In other cases,
all directors, including the Chairman, Vice Chairmans and
Managing Director, shall retire by rotation at least once
in every three years at annual general meetings and be
eligible for re-election.

All directors including the independent non-executive
directors have been appointed for a specific term of
service no longer than three years. They are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with
Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conducts regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company has also adopted code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by relevant employees (as defined
in the Code) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has written terms of
reference that conform to the provisions of the Code.

The current Audit Committee comprises 3 independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Muk Ming, Mr.
Kang Dian and Mr. Zhang Lu. The principal duties of the
Audit Committee include the review and supervision of
the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, review of the Group’s financial information
and review of the relationship with the external auditors
and the Company.

The Audit Committee meets at least 2 times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk
management and the effectiveness and objectivity of the
audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an
important link between the Board and the Company’s
external auditors in matters coming within the scope
of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit
Committee includes the review of the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2010, the internal control system
of the Group for 2010 and the interim results for the period
ended 30 June 2011. The Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2011 have also been reviewed
by the Audit Committee on 21 March 2012.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have
reviewed the internal control system of the Group and were
satisfied that it is operating effectively and is appropriate
for the Group for the time being.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, 2 Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out below:

BEREEE(#)

ERZBEFTAHAMA2REE  SKEZ
HE RN

Name of director Number of meetings attended Attendance rate
EEpnE HESELH H =
Kang Dian 2 out of 2 100%
JEed 2RPHFE2R
Zhang Lu 2 out of 2 100%
SR 2RHPHE2R
Hung Muk Ming 2 out of 2 100%
HEAREA 2RHPHE2R

Mr. Hung Muk Ming has been elected chairman of the
Audit Committee with effect after the close of the Audit
Committee meeting held on 21 March 2011. Mr. Kang Dian
has ceased to act as chairman of the Audit Committee but
still remains a member of the Audit Committee.

The Board has approved the adoption of revised terms of
reference of Audit Committee with effect from 15 February
2012.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted a written
terms of reference which conforms to the code provisions
of the Code. The current Remuneration Committee
comprises 2 independent non-executive directors namely,
Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Kang Dian.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to ensure that there is no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration and that the
Company has an equitable and competitive remuneration
policy to attract and retain talent persons to serve the
Company.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration package for each employee is structured
according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration
package will contain a combination or modification of
some or all of the following four main components:

1. Basic salary

Basic salary ranges for each position are established
with reference to the responsibilities and the duties
attached to the position. The actual salary for the
person filling the position is determined based on the
experience and ability of the individual selected for
the position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison
to comparable positions at competitors in the
relevant industry. The actual salaries of employees
are reviewed annually and may be adjusted from
time to time based on the cost of living and financial
performance of the Company.

Salaries are base remuneration and not intended
to reward performance, either individually or
corporately. Performance is rewarded through the
other components of the remuneration plan.

2. Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee
is determined with reference to his position and his/
her performance during the year.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

3. Share option

Share options to subscribe for shares in the Company
are granted to employees from time to time at the
discretion of the Board, in order to retain valuable
employees and to motivate future performance of the
employees.

Share options granted to individual employee
are determined with reference to his position, his
performance and his ability to contribute to the
overall success of the Group.

4., Other benefits

The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement
scheme, employee compensation, labour and medical
insurance, paid annual leaves and child education
allowance, with reference to the prevailing practices
in relevant jurisdictions.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review the
Company’s human resources matters and remuneration
policies. During the year, 2 Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the attendance of each member
is set out below:

FMEES (&)

B

Exgn TRBBEREERLEBR
& HEABARERD - LB EER
BB T sEN S THES NTE-

BRI 8 TER FHBRERE SER
iz~ R[N AR ERN R B
MEE °

HAbig@ R

AEETE2ERBRIAEHEERER
R RIEBIRMIETO K, HERH
RN - AT RAKEEE - BER
& BIREERR BFFRETX
HERME -

FHEZBE e EHERERTHNARBNAL
EREELFHBE - FHEZESFAHRA
F2RE%  SREZHFEREIIMT

Name of director Number of meetings attended Attendance rate
BEEHA HESBRH HE=
Kang Dian 2 out of 2 100%
5 2RPHFE2R
Zhang Lu 2 out of 2 100%
SR I 2RPHE2R
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved
the annual salary adjustments for the year 2012 and the
payment of discretional performance bonus and director
fees for the year ended 31 December 2011 after taking into
consideration the results of the Group, the performance of
the directors, the senior management and the employees
and the prevailing market practices.

Details of the emoluments paid to all directors are set out
in notes 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board has approved the adoption of revised terms of
reference of Remuneration Committee with effect from 15
February 2012.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 15 February 2012. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of directors either to fill casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company, any director
appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only
until to the next general meeting or as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until to the next
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election at such meeting. Every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least every three years and shall
be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company.

The Nomination Committee are responsible for identifying
suitable qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for consideration. The process for selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes
the consideration of referrals and the engagement of
external recruitment professionals. The selection criteria is
based mainly on the assessment of their characters and
their professional qualifications and experience relevant to
the Company’s business.

Annual Report 2011 4R n I

FMESS(#)

FMZE @ ERNLERERAEENE
BEE SAETEEBREEMRIANURE
RIEYTIZARNIE - AT 2012 F 2 FEHE
HEARRRBEBBENR  #HE2011F12
ABVHIEFEZRANERZME -

ST BEEENRMZFIEHINNGZEE Y
HIREMIFE10 -

ES

=4

EECHERMNTINE E S BESE 21
57 20122 A15 B#EA M -

REZE"

AARER2012F2 156 BRI IZERZE B
2([RE2ZEg]) REXLZE9HAEEH
BHTERSENREESTERMAMEAES
ZHEEE - BEARRABERMAA - T
MEFEZENEFZERIAAEBRET—KX
REAESIMBIEMBEEESTERAIAAE
BEEZTEREAFAGUNARNEEKE
BB ZEFEELVEIFHESE U
AIRB AR EIRMA G EREEET -

RAZECBAABVERBEZIABERAER
MEFSFLHEBERAREZE - ERE
BEEAEZEFEBREBESIBALRE
TEXAFERETRE - BUERMTEZES
BREFNMEARBENERERLERE
BERNARREBER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT A REARHRE

Nomination Committee (Continued)

On 15 February 2012, Mr. Chen Qiming (“Mr. Chen”) was
nominated and appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company and Ms. Wen Jinsong (“Ms. Wen”) was
nominated and appointed as an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Chen was also elected as vice-chairman of
the Board on the same date. On 28 February 2012, Ms.
Wen was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Company with effect from 1 March 2012.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011, were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) at a total fees of approximately
HK$2.4 million. The said audit fee was approved by the
Audit Committee and endorsed by the Board. In addition,
the Group also paid fees of not more than HK$0.2 million
in aggregate to Deloitte for the provision of taxation
services during the year 2011.

The Audit Committee considers that the taxation services
did not (in terms of the nature of the services and the
amount of fees paid in relation to the audit fees) affect the
independence of Deloitte.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011, the directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
made adjustments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the going concern basis. Up to the date
of this report, the directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties that will seriously affect the going concern
basis of the Group.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement (Continued)

The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.
The directors also have general responsibilities for setting
up an appropriate internal control system, which is mainly
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. The directors have
reviewed the internal control system of the Group and are
satisfied that the internal control system of the Group is
functioning properly.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency
of shareholders’ voting in general meeting, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual director and all resolutions are voted on by poll.
The Company will engage external scrutineer to count the
vote. The poll voting results will be published on the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s website at a later time
on the same business day. In addition, the requirement
for resolutions to be voted by poll is stated in the circular
to be despatched to shareholders. Moreover, at general
meeting but before voting, the chairman of the meeting
will explain to shareholders the prescribed procedures for
conducting a poll.

The Company has maintained a website at http://www.
silvergrant.com.hk which enable shareholders, investors
and the general public to have an open access to the
information of the Company. Financial information and
all corporate communications of the Company are made
available on the Company’s website and are updated
regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901, 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2011 4R

EEZANRENETEAE)

EENMEARFEENGLE  ERER
7 ) RE & I YE R 1 F R 7 5= 181 1 B 5 K00
EENEA - RECRLBENAIDEZER
B HEXIZEMNAREAEEEER IR
BEEEURHEMIENTR - EFCRT
BARENABEZERRLR/AEENA
AREEIR R AAIT 2B »

B RNEE

AAFRERBRRMARKRERERAN  —H
BERFENAE - BT NBRKRRAE EBR
BREMNBERAE  ARARBRAE LEMA
BELARBEENRZREBERENESES
BRFRETHRRERR - MAARRYRIUR
FEDETRR - Bt AAREREIN
MERBETHRETLE  UHETANRE
BRNMENEBARSERENFA—ELXR
NHHREENERB MM ARRHEE -
AN BRRRRBUZE R NETRRD
MELEINTEBRROBERA - FE KK
RAGRTERZETZA  CREFEE
SRR RBEALI R SUETRORNFH
=3

XA AEE R — EH u Rnttp/www,
silvergrant.com.hk * LA B E - I EE N
DRATRE—FELAFAERENEARAZE
B RRAGIMBEMKMBERKRRE 2B A
AIABEE LERAAREL - WEEEH
YEH BT -

WEREEERNESSREENR  AJBER
AN B ABIME - it A - BB EFBE
B1HERESHAKNIELINELI01E -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE€ 4

The Board present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and
engaged in property investment and securities trading.
The Company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in property investment, other investments,
distressed assets business and production and trading of
petrochemical products. Details of the principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries and the Group’s associates,
jointly controlled entities are set out in note 53 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 57.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.05 per share to the shareholders on the register of
members on 24 May 2012, amounting to approximately
HK$115,242,000.

Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued
at 31 December 2011. Surplus on revaluation of the
leasehold land and buildings amounted to approximately
HK$47,161,000 of which an amount of approximately
HK$8,387,000 has been credited to the consolidated
income statement as reversal of revaluation deficit
previously recognised and an amount of approximately
HK$38,774,000 has been credited to the asset revaluation
reserve.

During the year, the Group and the Company revalued
all of its investment properties at 31 December 2011.
The increase in fair value of investment properties, which
has been credited directly to the consolidated income
statement, amounted to approximately HK$54,828,000.
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Fixed Assets (Continued)

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group
at 31 December 2011 are set out in the section under
“Summary of Investment Properties” of this Annual Report.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2011 comprised the
retained profits of approximately HK$619,234,000.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)

Gu Jianguo

Tang Baogqi (resigned on 20 July 2011)

Zhang Zhongqiu (appointed on 20 July 2011)
Chow Kwok Wai

Li Xianli (resigned on 15 February 2012)

Wen Jinsong (appointed on 15 February 2012)
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Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Directors

Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman)
Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)
Yang Zhao (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 15 February 2012)
Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 15 February 2012)
Yuen Wing Shing (resigned on 17 February 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Kang Dian
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

The term of office of each director, including the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Messrs. Zhang Zhonggiu and Chen
Qiming who were appointed as directors on 20 July 2011
and 15 February 2012 respectively and Ms. Wen Jinsong
who was appointed as director on 15 February 2012
will hold office only until the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou, Chow Kwok Wai, Kang
Dian and Hung Muk Ming shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. They, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The remaining directors
shall remain in office.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interest in Shares

As at 31 December 2011, none of the directors and the
chief executive of the Company nor any of its associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)
as recorded in the register as required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers. None of the directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had been granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporation, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

Share Options

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 27 May 2002 (the “Option Scheme”) are set
out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors and other employees under the Option Scheme.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company
or any other body corporate, and neither the directors
nor the chief executive nor any of their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2011, persons other than a director
or chief executive of the Company having interest in
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2011 are set out below:

ESREARGHNER

BRTXIBERS IBMOMBEEESI - K
RE S EME R BRNFAE R LR FAEME
B BEATH— A HDFILERARRE
EREFHEE (TwmEBERREE)EAF
BABEARAL °

FERR

MR2011F 12 A31H * RARBIREFESR K
HEGAIEIBIKETAETFENELME
BB BRARREERZSITHABN
O BEBIEARRRE BITRAS% KA L4
EMALTHOT

R2011FE12 A31H  RAR A K &8
TR EHAMT

Percentage

Number of the issued

of ordinary Total  share capital

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity shares interests 2R

TERRER 54 EBRROBE i Eng k] REBAL

Silver Grant Group Limited Beneficial owner 207,506,022 207,506,022 9.00%
REEEERAR BB (Note i)
(Bt i)

China Cinda Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation 438,056,000 438,056,000 19.01%
Co., Ltd. Rt EE R (Note ii)
TEEEEEERRNERAR (fat i)

China Guangdong Nuclear Power Interest of controlled corporation 364,140,000 364,140,000 15.80%
Holding Co., Ltd. AR S (Note iii)
PR ERGZEEEBRAA (Hiat iii)

Liu Yang Interest of controlled corporation 188,600,000 188,600,000 8.18%
2% R EEER (Note iv)
(W7t iv)

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REEIR & %GR 2 &)
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued) FERR(E)

Notes: Bia -

i. Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni, both of whom are i. EERREERBAKRGBESE - HEHAKAT
directors of the Company, each has a 30% interest in Silver BF R2011F12A31 BEEHERES
Grant Group Limited as at 31 December 2011. EER AR 30% R o

ii.  The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of i UTATREEEEEBEROHBRRBIME
the Company held by China Cinda Asset Management Co., BARBZBRADERABET
Ltd:

Total interest in shares
ROEREH
Name of controlled Name of controlling Percentage Direct Indirect
corporation shareholder of control interest interest
SEEEEE ERERREE ZEHEsE HEEER Bk
Well Kent International China Cinda Asset 100% — 438,056,000
Investment Company Limited Management Co., Ltd.
FERBRRERRAR HEFEEEEERNABRAR
Regent Star International Well Kent International 100% 438,056,000 —
Limited Investment Company
Limited
ERBBARAR ERBRIRERRLQF

ii.  The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of i. WUTFAPHEERZEEEARAFMEEAR

the Company held by China Guangdong Nuclear Power NElZ R R e -

Holding Co., Ltd.:

Total interest in shares

IRAD P 22 4R B
Name of controlled Name of controlling Percentage Direct Indirect
corporation shareholder of control interest interest
ZREEER ERRRER ZEHE=E HiEER s
CGNPC International Limited China Guangdong Nuclear 99.99% 364,140,000 —

FEZBRERAR Power Holding Co., Ltd.
PRERZEEEERAF
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

iv. The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of

FERR(E)

Hiat (%)

iv. MNUTRIRLIMBEARR ZBMERA

the Company held by Ms. Liu Yang: £
Total interest in shares
R FEREH
Name of controlled Name of controlling Percentage Direct Indirect
corporation shareholder of control interest interest
ZEEEER ERRRER ZEHE=E EEER BEEs
Atlantis Capital Holdings Liu Yang 100% — 188,600,000
Limited EPS
Atlantis Fund Management Atlantis Capital Holdings 100% 59,500,000 —
(Ireland) Limited Limited
Atlantis Investment Atlantis Capital Holdings 100% 59,500,000 —
Management (London) Limited
Limited
Atlantis Investment Atlantis Capital Holdings 100% 188,600,000 —
Management (Hong Kong) Limited
Limited

Riverwood Asset Management Liu Yang
(Cayman) Limited 2k

Other than as disclosed above, the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2011.

Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REEIR & %GR 2 &)
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Connected Transaction

A service agreement dated 28 December 2004 was
entered into between Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”) and
the Company. Pursuant to the terms and conditions set
out therein, the Company agreed to employ and Mr. Gao
agreed to serve the Company as a Managing Director by
providing the Company with the services as described
in the service agreement for a term of 3 years from 28
December 2004 to 27 December 2007, which term shall
continue thereafter until determined by either party giving
to the other not less than 3-months prior written notice.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on
their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held
at Salon IV, Mezzanine Floor, Grand Hyatt Hong Kong, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 18 May
2012 at 3:00 p.m..
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of its directors,
during the year and up to the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue comprises rental income from
leasing of properties, dividend income from listed and
unlisted securities, net gain on disposal of held-for-trading
investments, income from property management, income
from sales of properties, interest income from interest in
distressed assets and income from production and trading
of petrochemical products.

The aggregate amount of purchases and revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases and revenue for the year.

Closure of Register of Members

To ascertain the shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 15 May 2012 to Friday, 18 May 2012, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfers of shares
will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar
of the Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 14 May 2012.
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Closure of Register of Members (Continued)

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the proposed final
dividend will be payable to the shareholder whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
24 May 2012. To ascertain the shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed on Thursday, 24 May 2012
during that date no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar
of the Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 May
2012.

Events after the Reporting Period

Details of significant events occurring after the end of the
reporting period are set out in note 52 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Chen Xiaozhou
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2012
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Deloitte.
=2)

To the members of
SILVER GRANT INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 202, which
comprise the consolidated and the Company’s statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #Z& W& &

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt et FET FET
Property management fee income MEERE WA 7 159,848 156,310
Rental income H2UA 7 45,518 70,037
Sales of petrochemical products Al IEMEE 7 204,023 =
409,389 226,347
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A AN (342,578) (100,746)
66,811 125,601
Income from investment in distressed BB 457k B R B IRE
assets through establishment of a TREEZBA
special purpose vehicle 7 26,815 50,996
Dividend income from listed and EmkIEEMBEHRELA
unlisted securities 7 26,402 13,299
Other income, gains and losses Hal A -~ Wz K EE 8 120,293 158,133
Change in fair value of held-for- BEEEREAAEE
trading investments (95,083) (775)
Administrative expenses THER (185,939) (164,983)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & A] ft H &% &l zs
investments 169,355 1,597
Reversal of revaluation deficit of HEY B (G EERE R
leasehold properties 17 8,387 8,133
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEES
properties 16 54,828 172,518
Change in fair value of financial assets RiEimKRIE AR EERIEH
at fair value through profit or loss EMEEZL A AREEE 95,765 172,619
Finance costs Hi%E A 9 (20,304) (26,144)
Change in fair value of structured HEEHESRES A NE
finance securities = 1,135 (3,967)
Gain on deemed disposal of a jointly 1% [E H & — & R 2 %A 7 44
controlled entity gy 35,072 —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & W E A AUk ES 45 64,907 =
Share of results of associates BhE AR EE 10,434 149,455
Share of results of jointly controlled (R HI A 7 24E
entities 92,263 65,610
Profit before taxation B 5 BT g 471,141 722,092
Taxation charge RIS 12 (82,391) (151,910)
Profit for the year F A& 13 388,750 570,182
Attributable to: FEAL -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZZE DN 375,592 530,818
Non-controlling interests JEIE iR 13,158 39,364
388,750 570,182
Earnings per share (in HK dollar) BREFM(ASEILIITR)
— Basic — &R 14 0.165 0.247
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R& 2 H K& &

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE2011F 12531 HIFFZ

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year F A& T 388,750 570,182
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEF|
Exchange difference arising on BREEFERERE
translation 249,491 176,480
Fair value (loss) gain arising on AN EREEHELE S
revaluation of available-for-sale AAE(EER)EF
investments (617,446) 895,533
Reclassification adjustment — ByHAE — HEAHEE
transfer to profit or loss on HERSEEEER
disposal of available-for-sale
investments (69,715) (1,597)
Gain arising on revaluation of EEEEWFEEE 2 W=
leasehold properties 38,774 36,889
Share of other comprehensive B2 N R R R4
income of associates and jointly 7 B E At 2w A
controlled entities 6,901 6,376
Income tax relating to components ERAMAKEMEERF 2
of other comprehensive income FriS#i 107,525 (138,320)
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEE RN (RFE)
for the year (net of tax) (284,470) 975,361
Total comprehensive income FREE RGN B
for the year 104,280 1,545,543
Total comprehensive income e FGEE
attributable to: FEAh
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ YN 130,560 1,370,563
Non-controlling interests RS S (26,280) 174,980
104,280 1,545,543
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £4ABB# RZRUK R E

As at 31 December 2011
R2011F 12431 H

The Group The Company
rEE b
2011 2010 2011 2010
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
/if=3 FET FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REME 16 2,917,526 2,541,194 22,146 20,342
Property, plant and equipment M BE NRE 17 593,053 260,630 96,765 90,109
Land use right T R 18 70,328 = = =
Goodwill HE 19 46,463 7,001 - -
Investments in subsidiaries KERK BT 20 - — 498,157 228,604
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE 20 - = 3,483,665 2,777,942
Interest in associates BN AR 21 2,197,879 1,492,301 - —
Interest in jointly controlled entities £ FE12 4| 2 ElfEzS 22 83,072 266,331 - -
Structured finance securities ERMEBES 25 6,210 5,075 6,210 5,075
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 26 727,801 1,038,604 401,817 789,901
Loan receivables EIER 27 = 295,858 = =
Deposits paid for land use right THE R EE 35,727 — - =
6,678,059 5,906,994 4,508,760 3,911,973
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E 30 50,445 327 = =
Investment in distressed assets BB E A
through establishment of a RETREE
special purpose vehicle 29 6,092 65,245 - —
Held-for-trading investments FEEBERE 31 74,944 126,237 19,651 33,852
Trade receivables JE U ER R 32 12,594 10,825 - —
Deposits, prepayments and other %% ~ BNF K
receivables H i ek 33 149,765 199,259 8,972 39,125
Amounts due from subsidiaries I ENGIE 20 - = 523,336 196,456
Amounts due from associates = NGIE 23 758,809 430,081 123,786 117,425
Amount due from a jointly JFE U — ) Sk R 2
controlled entity NGIE-¢ 24 51,748 61,543 - —
Loan receivable with embedded MERANTELAZ
derivative EWER 28 - 117,581 - 117,581
Loan receivables [EWER 27 109,646 139,250 - 83,628
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 26 313,254 654,511 40,000 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEH LIRS 34 1,345,763 1,338,558 356,076 608,304
2,873,060 3,143,417 1,071,821 1,196,371
Assets classified as held-for-sale  IfER{EHE 2 EE 35 130,323 62,036 - =
3,003,383 3,205,453 1,071,821 1,196,371
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 9,681,442 9,112,447 5,580,581 5,108,344
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £4ABB# RZRUK R E

As at 31 December 2011
R2011F 12431 H

The Group The Company
A&5E AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
Hrzt FHT FET FHET FET
EQUITY [
Capital and reserves EXR
Share capital BB 37 460,970 436,970 460,970 436,970
Reserves [ 38 6,831,961 6,603,290 3,864,301 3,707,059
Equity attributable to owners AR B AEERAR
of the Company 7,292,931 7,040,260 4,325,271 4,144,029
Non-controlling interests JEEHE R 503,909 268,167 = =
TOTAL EQUITY A 7,796,840 7,308,427 4,325,271 4,144,029
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FrRBEE
Borrowings e 39 544,797 89,448 360,000 50,000
Deferred tax liabilities EXETIEARE 40 335,312 380,101 7,785 7,261
880,109 469,549 367,785 57,261
Current liabilities hBaE
Trade payables TR 41 134,476 106,406 - -
Accrued charges, rental deposits ~ fExt B « KRS R
and other payables H o e 54 42 340,928 576,731 19,592 19,916
Amounts due to subsidiaries T ENGIE 43 - — 576,783 784,838
Borrowings f&E 39 370,465 438,062 291,150 102,300
Taxation payable BT IR 28,301 151,236 - =
874,170 1,272,435 887,525 907,054
Liabilities associated with assets  FI{ER{EHE 2 BEY
classified as held-for-sale Ehak 35 130,323 62,036 = =
1,004,493 1,334,471 887,525 907,054
TOTAL LIABILITIES SEHE 1,884,602 1,804,020 1,255,310 964,315
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44 Bt &t AR R & #t A&

As at 31 December 2011

R2011F 12531 H
The Group The Company
r5E AR F
2011 2010 2011 2010
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Hizz FET FET FAET FET
TOTAL EQUITY AND REREELE
LIABILITIES 9,681,442 9,112,447 5,580,581 5,108,344
Net current assets BRBEE 1,998,890 1,870,982 184,296 289,317
Total assets less current EELERRBARE
liabilities 8,676,949 7,777,976 4,693,056 4,201,290

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 202
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 21 March 2012 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Chen Xiaozhou B ZE
Director &%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & DX B BERE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
Attributable to Owners of the Company
ROARKEAARGRE
Asset Capital Investment Non-
Share Share  revaluation  redemption revaluation Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
TS RORE EEEREE EAREEE REEGRE Ei&fE REEA At FENER Rkt
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
AT AT AT FAT AT AT AT FAT AT AT
(Note)
)
At 1 January 2010 R2010E1A18 364,142 2,177,287 66,452 13,992 17 299,940 2,248,588 5,169,418 93,187 5,262,605
Proft or the year Ef = = = = - - 530318 530,818 39,364 570,182
Other comprehensive income EREfEEET
for the year - - 32,019 - 629,340 178,386 - 839,745 135,616 975,361
Total comprehensive income EREEATIEE
for the year - - 32,019 - 629,340 178,386 530,818 1,370,563 174,980 1,645,543
Issue of new shares Bk 72,808 655,452 - - - - - 728,280 - 728,280
Share issue expenses R%1TER - 9.516) - - - - - (9,516) - 9,516)
Dividend (ote 15 Ras 15) = = - - - - PiBAE (218485 - pisde)
At 31 December 2010 R2010£12A318 436,970 2,823,223 9741 13,992 629,357 478,326 2,560,921 7,040,260 268,167 7,308,427
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1 818 436,970 2,823,223 9741 13,992 629,357 478,326 2,560,921 7,040,260 268,167 7,308,427
Profit for the year Lyl = = = = = - 375,59 375,592 13,168 388,750
Other comprehensive income EREfEEET
for the year - - 33,961 ~ B33y 23438 - (50%) 0943 (284470)
Total comprehensive income EhETATIEE
for the year - - 33,961 - (613,379) 234,386 375,592 130,560 26,280) 104,280
Issue of new shares iR 24,000 336,000 - - - - - 360,000 - 360,000
Share issue expenses RiA%ER - (7,404) - - - - - (7.404) = (7.404)
Deemed acauisiton of a subsidiary RRAE—RHBAR
(Note 44 (it 1) S = = = = = 5 - 260,022 260,022
Dividend (ote 15 Ras 15) = = - - - - 0048 (230485 N )
At 31 December 2011 RO1E12A318 460,970 3,151,819 131,432 13,992 115,978 712,712 2,706,028 7,292,931 503,909 7,796,840
Note: Mz
Fair value change of available-for-sale investment measured BRARBEHECAIHEEREZ AR BEEHREM
at fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and 2EE M ERL RENREEMFHE - BRI
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until the available- HERE N ESWERRBER - ZAINRES A
for-sale investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, ERERN RS EEE SR EB R ESR -

at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

For the year ended 31 December 2011
#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ

FLOWS ZRERERER

2011
Notes HK$°000
Kt FET

2010
HK$’000
FET

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Share of results of associates
Share of results of jointly controlled
entities
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Release of land use right
Finance costs
Change in fair value of held-for-
trading investments
Imputed interest on consideration
receivable from disposal of an
associate
Income from investment in
distressed assets through
establishment of a special
purpose vehicle
Interest income
Gain on disposal of available-for-
sale investments
Gain on deemed disposal of a
jointly controlled entity
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Net loss (gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of land use right
Reversal of revaluation deficit of
leasehold properties
Change in fair value of investment
properties
Change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Change in fair value of structured
finance securities
Write down of inventories

EEEy
4B
A

BHBERNRIESE
B AREBIRREE

WE - BERRETE

T (s AR
MBER

FIFEERERAEED

i danh=—: NIl AV
H BT IS

BERIREWEBRE
TREEZWRA

B WA
HER L ERE K

BE & —F RS L E
L6

HEMB QRS
HEME  BELEREZ
B8 (Mes ) F8

& L b 6 R4 2 B 1R
HEMXE[ERDH

S OESHN L

REBRRBAAEREN
ERMEEZAAEED

REUESREFZAAE
“=%

FERIE

471,141
(10,434)
(92,263)

23,478
235

20,304

95,083

(8,278)

(26,815)
(77,711)

(169,355)

(35,072)
(64,907)

558

(8,387)

(54,828)

(95,765)

(1,135)
8,691

722,092

(149,455)

(65,610)
11,902
599

26,144

775

(13,075)

(50,996)
(113,875)

(1,597)

(246)
1,686

(8,133)

(172,518)

(172,619)

3,967
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZREEHEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Operating cash flows before EBECEERMLEER
movements in working capital BER (25,460) 19,041
Increase in inventories FEEM (10,209) (29)
Decrease in held-for-trading RIEBEERERD
investments 153,060 5,804
Increase in trade receivables JE U B SR 382 0 (1,769) (707)
Decrease (increase) in deposits, Ze ~ TR R E MR R
prepayments and other receivables A (32 00) 19,106 (999)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables FEfTERZR (R4 ) 10 (19,525) 7,206
(Decrease) increase in accrued BErER - Biike REM
charges, rental deposits and other FEART R CRt 2> ) 35 A0
payables (141,807) 265,858
Cash (used in) generated from KEXEB (TR MELE RS
operations (26,604) 296,174
Interest paid EFE (20,304) (26,144)
Tax paid BB (17,731) (9,830)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXBFAA)VABZERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (64,639) 260,200

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS L8R ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ
2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hia FET FEIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEK
Receipt of income and principal U B B A S Rk B FO SRR EE
repayment from recovery of ATRAEEBRESEBKRA
distressed assets purchased A& ER
through establishment of a special
purpose vehicle 85,968 129,952
Receipt of consideration receivable T ER &5 Bt & A R FR 1S 3R
from disposal of an accociate 158,233 100,000
Purchase of property, plant and BAYE  BERE&E
equipment (42,841) (3,609)
Additions of investment properties BAKREYS (299,075) (40,076)
Purchase of available-for-sale BANHEERE
investments (110,658) (28,403)
Purchase of land use right FEA T Hb{F AR (70,563) —
Additions of financial assets at fair BAREBRREALE
value through profit or loss REMNSREE - (304,980)
Dividend received from associates [BAL NG i #S) 121,966 9,811
Interest received 2 HF B 77,711 113,875
Interest income received from REREREAAEREDN
financial assets at fair value through & EV&EEZ B A
profit or loss 16,496 19,018
Advance to a former associate B —FERTHE & A A - (28,000)
Deposits received for assets REHEEE 2B iRe
held-for-sale 80,989 62,036
Repayment from associates &8 N Rl X 135,644 472,063
Advance to associates ES /NI E L] (464,372) (799,747)
Repayment from a jointly controlled ~ —fEHt R4 A 7&K
entity 12,320 36,537
Advance of loan receivables BRI E TR (97,327) (571,894)
Receipt of loan receivables U BY FE LB SR 437,207 590,040
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME  BERRENE
plant and equipment B 111 488
Proceeds on disposal of available- HEHEERE
for-sale investments FriS 708 174,181 22 022
Proceeds on disposal of land use & T Hb (S P REFT 1S k1B
right - 25,704
Distribution from of a jointly controlled 1 — R34 A &0 K
entity 11,836 6,166
Capital injection to associates B N Al 2 BRI A (788,560) (1,164,572)
Net cash from deemed acquisition of R[FEUHE —REIMB AT Z
a subsidiary IS 44 230,654 —
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries  H&HE A 7 FTEHKIE 45 96,889 —
Repayment to a former subsidiary —MRTE A FER 45 (136,284) —
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXEBFAARRS
ACTIVITIES (369,475)  (1,353,569)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS L8R ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

B 22011 F 12431 HIFFZ
2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES g K
Repayment of bank loans BREITER (658,644) (182,453)
Net proceeds from issue of BT RS IR 58
new shares 352,596 718,764
Dividend paid BT E (230,485) (218,485)
Bank loans raised RITERRE 1,046,396 236,686
Increase in amount due to an AN REEEWR BN —HE
associate from recovery of /NI B 6Dl
distressed assets 29 - 34,300
Decrease in amount due to an MR & EE B U 2 e B &
associate for distribution from RNR) KD BER D
recovery of distressed assets 29 — (57,089)
Increase in other payables from BN TREEEMERNIKZ
recovery of distressed assets 4N 29 32,002 142,080
Decrease in other payables for B R B EEMER KD
distribution from recovery of e
distressed assets 29 (125,998) (229,195)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RMEXBHRERERE
ACTIVITIES 415,867 444,608
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRALZEERD
CASH EQUIVALENTS HE (18,247) (648,761)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERRESZEEFINHE
AT THE BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR 1,338,558 1,979,724
Effect of foreign currency rate HNESTE R B g 2 R 2
changes 25,452 7,595
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HBHE&RRESSEEREE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1,345,763 1,338,558
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF BRERBESZSELHIMN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 1,345,763 1,338,558

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RiEZBIBREZ=GEA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

1.

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“BMB”), which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the subsidiaries of the Company
operates. For the convenience of the financial
statements users, the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), as the
Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading
and investments. The Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property investment,
other investments, the distressed assets business and
production and trading of petrochemical products.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries, the Group’s associates, jointly controlled
entities and a special purpose vehicle are set out in
notes 53 and 54.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010
HKAS 24 (As revised in Related party disclosures
2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of right issues

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding
(Amendments) requirement
HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with

equity instruments

The application of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations in the current year has had no material
effect on the amounts reported in these consolidated
financial statements and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

FERAFTREETNEBMBRE
ZR(TEHRMBREER D) (&)

RS B 4R S 78R T3 BRI MR
A 34 ) BT AT AT N5 5T V8 B T R

not yet effective:

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 19
(Revised 2011)
HKAS 27
(Revised 2011)
HKAS 28
(Revised 2011)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

July 2011.
January 2013.
January 2015.
January 2012.
July 2012.

January 2014.

Disclosures — Transfers
of financial assets'

and financial liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Financial instruments®

Consolidated financial statements?
Joint arrangements”

Disclosure of interests in other entities’
Fair value measurement?

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income’

Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets’

Employee benefits®

Separate financial statements?

Investments in associates and joint
ventures®

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities®

Stripping costs in the production phase
of a surface mine’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1

1

1

1

1

1

Al :

EEUEREER  BE - cRiEEg
ENEHCHEN)

EEUEREEN  BE - cREENLH
ENEHCHEN) BEHIEE

EEMEREEDN AR BREEAE IR
FORRETHR(E  FERGHI AR B LA
HEY) BEERES

EREPBREEDN  SWMIA’
F95

ERARBREED RAPBHER®
F£10%

ERERBREED  AERH
F115%

EEMEREEDN  EEMARROES
£12% RE*

ERAPBREED  AREEHE®
F135%

EEGHHENE1R He2marEesn
({B3TA) 2R

ERAGENE 120 ELHKE : ABEEZ
({B7TA) B ¢

EREENE 195 EEEF’
(2011 F&3])

EREHENE S BURBHR®
(2011 F&3])

EEGENE 285 BEARMAELEY
(2011 F1&3]) wB*

EEGIHEAERS cREENERARN
(BFIA) i

5 (ARMBHRE WRFERIERRZ
REZEE) -2 HRRA®
EE20%

! K201 F7 A1 ZBRABZEFE

HRAER -

2 M2013F1 B1 B 2 ARGz EE

HRAERL -

s R2016F1 A1 Bz 5Bz EE

AR AR -

¢ R2012F1 A1HKZBHABZFE

HRAER -

° MR2012%F7 B1 B2 ARG EE

HRAERL -

o MR2014F1 A1 B2 BBz EE

AR AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B R Mist

For the year ended 31 December 2011
#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Repeating Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair
value of a financial liability (designated as at fair
value through profit or loss) attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value

through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Repeating Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
in the future may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial assets, for example, certain of the Group’s
and the Company’s available-for-sale investments
are currently measured at cost less impairment
subsequent to initial recognition. Regarding the
Group’s and the Company’s financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011) and HKAS
28 (Revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are
described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27
“Consolidated and separate financial statements”
that deal with consolidated financial statements and
HK(SIC) — Int 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose
entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of
control that contains three elements: (a) power over
an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex
scenarios.

Annual Report 2011 iR

FERAFTREETNEBMBRE
ZR(TEHRMBREER D) (&)

BRMBEHREENEIREMTAE)

EEEM  RARRRBBYBRELE
Q£ 95 - KB AKERARREHE
EZERSHEAEATE  8BOIFH - &
SERARBAZETAHRKERSE - B
B RIEAAHEBRRES R - BRAAKE
RARRZ EMEERTKFARNZ
Al BRI BIR AT EN A2
flist e

RS  GERH BEQATIURRK
B2 REIETER

N2011F 67 AIEBHEEEG 68
ZHE BB RRIARFEZELEEE
o RIEEEVMBREEAEI05
EBMBHRELENEE  FEYH

EHEANFE 125 - BB ERF 27
SR (2011 85T R BB ST ERIFE 28
5% (2011 F{85T) °

\:

ZAAER 2 FBEZRGRMT

BV HBRESENFI0RMNAEFTES
FHERE 27 R4 A KRB H K ]
NEGZEMERRA B BDAREE
(RRmBZREg) — 2B 2%
& —BRENER] BAVBHRSE
AIE10RBSEHEZHESE - HH
BRER=ZFETE: @EHREHR 2E
hi P KRE2EREHREEMST
B[Ol oo A ESAERN k() ERARE
HRZBNAZEREELRZES -
BEMBREERNE10RCRERIS
M BRETEMANEZIES| -

I



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Repeating Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint
ventures” and HK(SIC) — Int 13 “Jointly controlled
entities — Non-monetary contributions by venturers”.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of
which two or more parties have joint control should
be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements
are classified as joint operations or joint ventures,
depending on the rights and obligations of the parties
to the arrangements.

In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of
joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are
required to be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities
under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting or proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than
those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 20183. Earlier
application is permitted provided that all of these five
standards are applied early at the same time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Repeating Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

The directors anticipate that these five standards
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January
2013. Except for HKFRS 12, the application of the
other four standards will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements based on the
existing group structure.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements. The Standard defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad and
it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive
than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for
financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Repeating Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (Continued)

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be
adopted by the Group and the Company for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that
the application of the new standard is not expected
to affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements, but would result in more
extensive disclosures about fair value measurements
in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income
is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the
Group and the Company for annual periods beginning
on 1 January 2013. The presentation of items of other
comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future
accounting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Repeating Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax —
Recovery of underlying assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception
to the general principles in HKAS 12 that the
measurement of deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities should reflect the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the entity
expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment
property” are presumed to be recovered through sale
for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless
the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
The directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12 in future accounting periods
may result in adjustments to the amounts of deferred
tax liabilities recognised in prior years regarding the
Group’s investment properties. Currently, deferred
tax relating to investment properties reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover the carrying amount either through
usage or sale. Upon application of the amendments
to HKAS 12, the carrying amounts of the investment
properties are presumed to be recovered through
sale unless the Group rebuts the presumption. The
directors are in the process of performing a detailed
analysis of the impact of the application of this
standard and hence have not yet quantified the extent
of this impact.

Other than as described above, the directors
anticipate that the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group’s and the Company’s financial performance
and positions and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
properties and certain financial instruments, which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as
appropriate. The principal accounting policies adopted
are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. FEEHEEE)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) HERBEEE)
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and FIBEAREBANZRARIZHENRS 4
expenses are eliminated on consolidation. g WARZH - ERREIGZEIRE K

o o

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented RWB AR ZIEEFEREANEERE
separately from the Group’s equity therein. R ESDEZT -
Allocation of total comprehensive income to non- 2 E B FIREE S BRI
controlling interests
Total comprehensive income and expense of a MEARMEEEN M REEEN
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company KARBEE A NMIEFEREZ - BIE I
and to the non-controlling interests even if this RoENIEREREEBEAHR(B
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit 20101 A1 BHELER) °

balance (effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain
or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained profits as specified by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al

3.

TREHBERE)
RERBEE(E)

FEBRBEEH B AR E Em 2 #
B

MARBRES — KM ERE 2 ZEH
o () RREZEHEE AREREE
BUHRERZ M B R BNEE(BREEM
BE)RAE  ((RREEHEES BR
H HE R BT MY B R BE (T SRR AR AR A
FHE(EERRERREZEMESE
FME TR ER ) » K (jii) BERR AT UER A E
ZAREBERERAREESNAAER
- RERXRTERRERLEERNE
ERNEAZERBNAEE - WHB A
Al BERERESHIAAEFE M
MR B BRE N2 G
BRI N R MIRRREMEE
R M s RET 2 B E I
MWASECERLERBEEZ TR
ARR(BIan3E A &8 ¥ 7% 5 22 Rl Fr
E o RAREZENEEREFOEERR
RANEREREREAN) - RKREE
HIREE BIRE R RIS AR 2 &
BAfE ARBEELS G EAF39
ISR BRAKAE IR RER
AR ER 2 ARE  HER)
REERRIHFEZGIERRENTH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
Standard.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquire is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost
less any identified impairment loss. Income from
investments in subsidiaries is accounted for by the
Company when the Company’s right to receive the
dividend payment has been established.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associates. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the
Group losing significant influence over that associate,
any retained investment is measured at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition as a financial asset in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value
is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it
loses significant influence over that associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly
controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of profit or loss and comprehensive
income of the jointly controlled entities. When the
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised
at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results
in the Group losing joint control over that jointly
controlled entity, any retained investment is measured
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial
asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the previous carrying amount of the jointly
controlled entity attributable to the retained interest
and its fair value is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly controlled
entity. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that jointly controlled entity on the same
basis as would be required if that jointly controlled
entity had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
jointly controlled entity would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses joint control over that jointly
controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly
controlled entity, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the jointly controlled entity
are recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the jointly
controlled entity that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the non-
current asset is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land (classified as finance lease) and buildings held for
use in production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost or fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Leasehold land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses and subsequent accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in
net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the asset revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair
value of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related tax.

The income from investment in distressed assets
through establishment of a special purpose vehicle
is recognised on a time basis by reference to the
estimated future cash flows and at the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
inflows arising from recoveries or collection, net
of the estimated future cash outflows arising from
directly attributable costs such as management fee
and incentive bonus through the expected life of the
distressed assets, to the assets’ net carrying amounts
on initial recognition.

Other interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. Other interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Commission income and consultancy income are
recognised when services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of petrochemical products is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles
have passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Property management fee income is recognised when
management service is rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight line basis over the term of the leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
three categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”); loans and receivables; and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees, points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest
income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from associates/a jointly controlled
entity/subsidiaries, bank balances and cash and
loan receivables) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Loans and receivables — investment in distressed
assets through establishment of a special purpose
vehicle

Investment in distressed assets through establishment
of a special purpose vehicle is stated at amortised
cost using effective interest method less impairment
allowance. The impairment allowances are made
on the interest in distressed assets when there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of the
occurrence of certain loss events that will impact the
estimated future cash flows, and are measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the
investment in distressed assets through establishment
of a special purpose vehicle and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The adjustment
is recognised as impairment loss in profit or loss.
Where the actual future net cash flows are more than
expected, the revised cash flow will be discounted
using the original effective interest rate. The
adjustment to the carrying amount is credited in profit
or loss to reflect the revised cash flows discounted
using the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
that investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables which are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from associates/jointly
controlled entities/subsidiaries, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When other receivables, trade receivables, amounts
due from associates/jointly controlled entities/
subsidiaries are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which
the impairment takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments carried at fair value will not be reversed
through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, trade
payables, accrued charges and rental deposits and
other payables and amounts due to subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period, except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the group entities which are stated at functional
currency other than HKD are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such
exchange differences are transferred to retained
profits upon disposal of the relevant group entities.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “land use right” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is released over the lease term
on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for staff in the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC”), and
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for staff
in Hong Kong are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

4.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties are stated at fair value of
HK$2,917,526,000 (2010: HK$2,541,194,000) based
on the valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on market value basis
which involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
comparable market transactions. In relying on the
valuation, management has exercised their judgment
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.

Determination of fair value of loan receivable
with embedded derivative

The Group’s investments in loan receivable with
embedded derivative represented debt securities
with embedded conversion right to convert into
equity shares of underlying companies. The Group
designated these investments as financial assets at
FVTPL. The fair value of these loan receivable with
embedded derivative was determined by directors
with reference to the valuation report provided
by independent professional valuer. Details of the
assumptions used to determine the fair value by the
independent professional valuer were set out in note
28.
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which the assets belongs. Determining whether
impairment needs to be provided requires an estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash generating units. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation for cash
generating units are set out in note 19.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the borrowings net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained profits.

Management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account
the cost of capital and the risk associated with the
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through new share issues and the issue of
new debt or the redemption of the existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F 12431 HIFFZ

6. Financial Instruments 6. @I H
Categories of financial instruments ERMIRZE
The Group The Company
rEH VNN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FETT FET
Financial assets SREE
FVTPL REZXBRARE
Jragid
— Held-for-trading — B{EER 126,237 19,651 33,852
— Designated as FVTPL — EEAREBRR
BARERRE 122,656 6,210 5,075
Loans and receivables B & EWGRIE 2,426,004 2,539,452 4,495,369 3,822,393
Available-for-sale financial Al HEE L EE
assets 1,041,055 1,693,115 441,817 789,901
Financial liabilities SRBE
Amortised cost B SHRK R 1,311,121 1,194,089 1,247,525 957,054
Financial risk management objectives and SREREEEERBE

policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
instruments include structured finance securities,
available-for-sale investments, investment in
distressed assets through establishment of a special
purpose vehicle, held-for-trading investments, loan
receivable with embedded derivative, amounts due
from subsidiaries, associates and a jointly controlled
entity, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, loan receivables, bank balances and
cash, trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges, amounts due to subsidiaries and borrowings.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
and the Company’s exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk
from prior year.

Market risks

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk as at 31
December 2011 and 2010 relates primarily to its
fixed-rate PRC government bonds (i.e. interest
rate risk due to change in market interest rates),
fixed-rate amounts due from associates, fixed-
rate loan receivables and fixed-rate other payable.
The Company’s fair value interest rate risk as at 31
December 2011 and 2010 relates primarily to its
amounts due from subsidiaries and associate and
fixed-rate loan receivables.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk as at 31
December 2011 and 2010 primarily relates to its bank
balances carried at prevailing deposit rate, variable-
rate loan receivables, floating-rate borrowings and
other payable to non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary. The Company’s cash-flow interest rate risk
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 principally related
to its bank balances carried at prevailing deposit
rate, amounts due from subsidiaries and floating-rate
borrowings.

The Group and the Company have not used any
interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its exposure
associated with fluctuations relating to interest cash
flows. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.
In addition, the Group has concentration risk on its
floating-rate bank balances and borrowings which
expose the Group significantly towards the change in
Hong Kong interbank offered rates (“HIBOR”) and the
People’s Bank of China interest rate.

Annual Report 2011 iR

SRMIAE)

CREBREERERBE(E)

AEERARRMEENTSERKE
EBEREMSRRNTARNEFEY
EEANE -

5 B
Tl 7 5 & 72

AEER20114F £ 2010F 12 431 H
ZAREFERRERREAR ERIRE UETE
FE 5T H 2 BIBUT E (B E fis
REBENFERR)  BEMEFEZ
FEUR B I A B R B A RIFR - AR
TE | 5T & 2 JE U E 51 % BA & 5 A1 R 5T
B2 HEMEMK - AARK2011F K&
2010 12 A 31 HZ A A EFI R @A
R ERTRR UK E AR KB QT LA
NOAEEFI R 8 2 FEUESK ©

AEER2011F X2010F 12 31 H
ZHEeRMERBRER ERENREEA
FRANEZIRITHERR - FBFIERGFE
B fE B R E AL RE A T B8 A B 3E 12 5l A%
B e NAQ A MR20114F K20104F12
AB1BZzREeRMERABREEZZER
B2 RAER 2 IRITER - BB
RER I ZBFEFTENEE -

REE N AR R BE R E A RG]
A ERReMEFRNE 2 AR - A
m o EEEHNRERETERLAETR
HIE R A R EL 2 i E B2 A R KA
Hip M BOHEITE - 5 NEEE
BETFRIZF BN X B ZRITEHRK
fBE  ERBBRTAZERS(TEER
TTRZEHRE ) KB ARBITH Rk
HAKBEEARE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. SRTIEE)
Financial risk management objectives and tRRREEEERBE(E)
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) TSR (E)
Interest rate risk management (Continued) FI| R E e & FE (48 )
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined VAT BO8RURK 1 5 4T Th B R F B) A R 5
based on the exposure to the floating-rate borrowings EWMEEREMENRT —HIB AR
and other payable to non-controlling shareholder ZIEFEBIARER - HOFENF R G B A R
of a subsidiary, floating-rate amounts due from Bt A BRI RARF B F R 5T B A ERTT
subsidiaries, variable-rate loan receivables and AT AR TR & BATR A R B LA ) T S S 4T)
variable-rate bank balances at the end of the BEMGEA RS Y B ERBEFE
reporting period and the reasonably possible change NEFZTENBRTENS - EEZE
taking place at the beginning of each year and held HemminRERBECNTEEMES
constant throughout the year. The directors remained B R 150 & B (20104F : 150) VA £
using 150 (2010: 150) basis points for assessing WA F & (BRITEBKRIN) BT =
interest rate risk on the above balances (except for B - EELA10(20104F : 10) H 2 {E
bank balances) after considering the impact of the FUZIRITAER 2 F R R - BAZEE
volatile financial market conditions. The directors used FERBITEBOEBERE 5 F
10 (2010: 10) basis points for assessing interest rate R Eal R BRITAEBRBR AN 38 150
risk on bank balances because they considered that (20104F : 150) H2iW EFH TR K
the fluctuations on the interest rate on bank balances 10E25(20104F : 10 &2 EHRH T
would be less significant. If interest rates had been FERIRITHEBRI RFEM— A - &
150 basis points (2010: 150 basis points) higher/lower FRRHEBEZZNT ¢
for the above balances (except for bank balances) and
10 basis points (2010: 10 basis points) higher/lower
for bank balances and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on post-tax profit for the
year is as follows:
The Group The Company
REE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FETT FAET
(Decrease) increase in CRA ) IEINFERREL
post-tax profit for the 1& & A
year (5,987) (5,522) 13,997 20,587
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management

The major financial assets and liabilities of the
Group are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities.
Other than the items stated below, the directors
consider that the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange risk is insignificant as the majority
of the Group’s transactions are denominated in the
functional currency of each individual group entity.
The equivalent amount of HKD are set out below:

SRMIAE)

EREAREEEERBEE)

ik ACG )

SMNE R B FE

AEERRNREEEAINEE RAEE
NWAKEIZCREERSHMAE-
BTAERB S - EERRAEEMHEER
RSN EXRERY TRE - AAKEDN
TERSGRUNSBILEERFNINEGEE
BRRHEM - HEBZETHEIE
LI

The Group The Company
AEH /N

2011
HK$’000

FET

2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 BLEXUJ HK$'000
TET FET TATT

Amounts due from NG
subsidiaries IE
— HKD — AT

— 1,461,848 501,741

Bank balances and cash RITEHREIRE

— HKD — BT 309,615 593,662 307,530 591,545
— United States dollars — X7 2,490 16,058 89 13,960
312,105 609,720 307,619 605,505

Loan receivables eI E R
— HKD — BT - 83,628 — 83,628
— United States dollars — 25t - 117,581 - 117,581
- 201,209 — 201,209
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. SRTIEE)
Financial risk management objectives and tRRREEEERBE(E)

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued) TSR (E)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) SN i EHE (4E)
The Group The Company
AEH ¥ NUNE|

2011 2010 2011 2010
LLCX M HK$'000 EGLEX M HK$'000
TET FAETT FET TAT

Other receivables A & WK

— HKD — BT 38,623 38,623 38,623 38,623
Amounts due to FEAHHT B A BRI

subsidiaries

— HKD — AT - — 7,638 777,847

— United States dollars — ETT - — 569,145 6,992

— — 576,783 784,839

Borrowings =31

— HKD — BT 651,150 152,300 651,150 152,300
Other payables A 3K

— HKD — BT 19,592 19,916 19,592 19,916
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. SRTIEE)
Financial risk management objectives and cRRREEEEREE(Z)
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) TSR (E)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) SN i EHE (4E)
Basis of sensitivity analysis: RS D AT A2 -
Sensitivity analysis is prepared to demonstrate the BREREMAERZERFTIE  RBED
effect of foreign exchange differences by 10% change MIBTRIEEEE (UARKE AT )HAR
in exchange rate of the functional currency (mainly A A B R R BB AR T LAINE S
RMB) against the relevant foreign currencies of the B2 REEEWK K ENERRRIELZ
Company and respective subsidiaries, including the 58 R A X I R 2 10% R R E
effect on the Group from the amounts due from (to) HEBRZE . LN ZIEER REEE
subsidiaries as denominated in foreign currencies MR HAEREKNE A A BN ETE10%
of the Company, assuming all other variables were R E R E 2 Z 0 - S EE AR
held constant. A positive number below indicates A2 AEME AR 10% - &5 B
an increase in post-tax profit where the functional FHRHEFABERR IR T RARE -
currencies weaken 10% against the relevant
foreign currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries. For a 10% strengthening of the
functional currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit for the year.
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FEx FET FET FEITL

Profit or loss — post-tax & FsEE — BRiiE 56,505 39,424 56,057 39,002
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management

Equity and debt investments

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group
is exposed to equity securities price risk through
its available-for-sale equity investments, held-for-
trading investments and debt securities through
its investments in PRC government bonds. For
available-for-sale investments measured at cost less
impairment, as the fair value could not be measured
reliably, they have not been included in the sensitivity
analysis.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. SRTIEE)
Financial risk management objectives and tRRREEEERBE(E)

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued) TSR (E)
Price risk management (Continued) B R EFE ()
Equity and debt investments (Continued) IR R ERIZE (&)
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined TR BRE DT IR AR E R 2
based on the exposure to equity and debt price BARBERERRARMET o W5 H
risks at the end of the reporting period. If the prices ALTRAES REEES 2 HEE
of the respective available-for-sale investments in WERFIEEERE 7 BIEIE s
listed equity securities and debt securities and held- 10% (20104 : 10%) - BREMAAE
for-trading investments had been 10% (2010: 10%) AERZMERTE  HAEBRARR]
higher/lower, assuming all other variables were held I Ege g
constant, the impact to the Group and the Company
would be:
The Group The Company
rEE ¥NNE|
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FETT FAET
Held-for-trading RIEEERA :
investments:
Increase/decrease in FERRB R T
post-tax profit for 0,k
the year 7,494 12,624 1,965 ER8E5
Available-for-sale AHEERE :
investments:
Increase/decrease in BR 715 H A 2 T g
other comprehensive 120,
income (net of tax) (BR%L1%) 54,048 117,692 33,554 68,426
10% (2010: 10%) change in equity and debt 10% (20104F : 10%) A RR AR & E#E 1%
investment price represents the directors’ assessment BERRERESHEHERTELENE
of the reasonably possible change in price. BEH o
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6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Equity and debt investments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group is
exposed to concentration risk on the available-for-sale
investments in listed equity securities and held-for-
trading investments as they comprise equity shares
issued by several companies listed in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

Loan receivable with embedded derivative

As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the
Company are exposed to price risk through its
loan receivable with embedded derivative. As at 31
December 2011, the Group and the Company do not
have loan receivable with embedded derivative.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of
the reporting period. If the prices of the listed equity
securities, which was used as key input in the
valuation of loan receivable with embedded derivative
(particulars are set out in note 28), had been 10%
higher/lower, assuming all other variables were held
constant, the impact to the Group and the Company
would be:
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Loan receivable with embedded derivative (Continued)

EWMIAE)

TREREEEERREE)

5 mEE ()

BI5ER EE (&)

MERAXITETEZ REER(E)

The Group and
the Company

AEEREAT
2010
HK$’000
FETT
Increase in post-tax profit for the year FRBRTLZ % A3 0 9,514
Decrease in post-tax profit for the year FRBRTL R AR 8,094
Liquidity risk REBEZ B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group and the Company can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating-rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

The Group
rEE

6. TRMIAE

EREAREEEERBEE)

mEELEE(E)

REBELIR (E)

Total
contractual
undiscounted

Less than 6 months 1-2 2-5 cash flow Carrying
6 months to 1 year years years B2 value
SR6E  6EAZIE 122 285 ReRAE BEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
As at 31 December 2011 R2011E12531 R

Trade payables ERER 134,476 - - - 134,476 134,476
Other payables A 261,383 - - - 261,383 261,383
Borrowings & 346,470 52,713 128,524 477,173 999,880 915,262
742,329 52,713 128,524 477,173 1,395,739 1,311,121

Total

contractual

undiscounted
Less than 6 months 1-2 cash flow Carrying
6 months to 1 year years KB value
DR6ER  6AZ1E 1228 ReREE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET AT TET FAT

As at 31 December 2010 12010512431 R

Trade payables JE R 106,406 - - 106,406 106,406
Other payables R 560,173 = = 560,173 560,173
Borrowings EE 359,204 92,497 92,466 544,167 527,510
1,025,783 92,497 92,466 1,210,746 1,194,089
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6. TRMIAE

Financial risk management objectives and cRRREEEEREE(Z)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEBELERE(E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) THEEZIxK (&)
The Company
PN
Total
contractual
undiscounted
Less than 6 months 1-2 2-5 cash flow Carrying
6 months to 1 year years years iRz value
SR6fR  6EAR1E 1228 2E5%  REiAE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
As at 31 December 2011 R2011E128318
Other payables HApEH 19,592 = = = 19,592 19,592
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERNRBARR 576,783 - - - 576,783 576,783
Borrowings &8 279,981 25,928 50,670 338,970 695,549 651,150
876,356 25,928 50,670 338,970 1,291,924 1,247,525
Total
contractual
Less than undiscounted
6 months 6 months 1-2 2-5 cash flow Carrying
I} to 1 year years years KB value
SR6fR  6EAR1E 1228 2E5%  REiAE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT FET
As at 31 December 2010 #2010512 8318
Other payables HA e 19,916 - = = 19,916 19,916
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHRBARR 784,838 - - - 784,838 784,838
Borrowings A8 53,959 51,116 51,086 - 156,161 152,300
868,713 51,116 51,086 - 960,915 957,054
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “less than 6 months” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2010, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans of the Group
amounted to HK$18,865,000 and HK$22,480,000
respectively. As at 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010, the aggregate principal amounts
of these bank loans of the Company amounted to
HK$1,150,000 and HK$2,300,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s and the Company’s
financial position, the directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The directors believe that such bank loans of the
Group will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements as
presented in Note 39. The aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows of the Group and the Company
will amount HK$20,287,000 (2010: HK$24,338,000)
and HK$1,178,000 (2010: HK$2,356,000)
respectively.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in the event of the counterparties
failure to perform their obligations as at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position and Company’s statement
of financial position respectively. The Group has
significant concentration of credit risk in respect of
other receivables, especially for amount due from a
buyer of the disposed available-for-sale investments
of HK$70,000,000 (2010: due from a buyer of the
disposed associate of HK$149,955,000), amount
due from a broker of HK$40,201,000 (2010: nil),
amounts due from two associates of HK$758,809,000
(2010: HK$430,081,000), amount due from a
jointly controlled entity of HK$51,748,000 (2010:
HK$61,543,000), loan receivables from two (2010:
three) independent third parties of HK$109,646,000
(2010: HK$435,108,000), loan receivable with
embedded derivative from one independent third
party of nil (2010: HK$117,581,000) and the cash
collected from distressed asset but not yet distributed
(as detailed in note 29) of HK$6,092,000 (2010:
HK$65,245,000). The Company has concentration
risk with respect to its amounts due from nine
(2010: seven) subsidiaries of HK$4,007,001,000
(2010: HK$2,974,398,000) and amount due
from an associate of HK$123,786,000 (2010:
HK$117,425,000). In order to minimise the credit risk,
the Group and the Company review the recoverable
amount of each individual debt throughout the year
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts at the end of the reporting
period. In this regard, the Group and the Company
consider that the Group’s and the Company’s credit
risk are significantly reduced.
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group and the Company have a concentration
of credit risk on liquid funds deposited with a few
major banks. However, the credit risk on liquid funds
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices;

° the fair value of structured finance securities
is determined with reference to the valuation
provided by the counterparty financial institution.
Major assumptions are stated in note 25;

o the fair value of loan receivable with embedded
derivative is calculated using binomial option
pricing models; and

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

SRMIAE)

B

REZFTERMBRR RER

TRERAIRBEAABZREDER
—EZENERMIE  HRNERERR
NI E RN AR B EST
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s FHWAAEMERBEBTE
EE-HENAREENEERA
Bz REmEZM(ANER)KME
EH(ANARERSIFDMENESR -

s FE-BHNAREAEREBER
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#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position (Continued)

EWMTAE)
DREZFERUBRRRER(E)

The Group
AEE
31 December 2011 31 December 2010
R2011£128318 R2010€12 8318
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 -8 $=8 ag -8 %28 B8 a5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT AT A AT A AT AT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ RE&XEAAEREN
LREE
Structured finance securities &S BES - = 6,210 6,210 - - 5,075 5,075
Loan receivable with HERAATETA
embedded derivative ZEWER - - - - - - 117581 117,581
Non-derivative financial FIEBERE ZHiTH
assets held-for-trading LREE 74,944 - - 74944 126,237 - - 126237
Available-for-sale financial W HELHERE
assets
Listed equity securities kAR 606,327 - - 606,327 1,338,772 - - 1,338772
PRC government bonds HEEE 2,464 = = 2,464 2,367 = = 2,367
Total % 683,735 - 6,210 689,945 1,467,376 - 122,656 1,590,032
The Company
ARAF
31 December 2011 31 December 2010
R2011%£125318 R2010€12 5318
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-5 -8 F=8 g -5 -8 F=E a5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
&7 AT T & & &L AT &
Financial assets at FVIPL ~ REEXEAAERRH
SHEE
Structured finance securities &£ BES - - 6,210 6,210 - - 5,075 5,075
Loan receivable with WERAXTETAZE
embedded derivative WE - - - - - - 117581 117,581
Non-derivative financial FIEEERE ZHTE
assets held-for-trading SRHEE 19,651 = — 19,651 33,852 = — 33,852
Available-for-sale financial ~ T HESREE
assets
Listed equity securities FRAES 335,537 - — 335537 684,261 - - 684261
Total &g 355,188 - 6,210 361,398 718,113 - 122,656 840,769

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in

both years.
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

of financial assets and financial liabilities

SRMIAE)

E-FIREERSRMABEZQANETR

CEGE

The Group and The Company

TEBRAEAF
Loan
receivable
with
embedded Structured
derivative finance
A& securities
PTEIRZ EE Total
EWRER SEES e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2010 R 201041 A1 H — 9,042 9,042
Addition of loan receivables with  HfA#®ARITA T E 2 I

embedded derivative B2 304,980 — 304,980
Interest income received from REZRRANERENE

financial assets at fair value BUE = 2 F B A

through profit or loss (19,018) — (19,018)
Total unrealised gains or losses: AEH U Sk

18 E

— Change in fair value (Note a) — AREZE)

(K15 a) 172,619 (3,967) 168,652
Transfer out of level 3 to MEZfHIEEHEHTE

available-for-sale investments &M b)

(Note b) (341,000) —  (341,000)
At 31 December 2010 M2010%12 A31H 117,581 5,075 122,656
Interest income received from REBERIZANBERERN

financial assets at fair value A E M EWA

through profit or loss (16,496) — (16,496)
Total gains or losses: e sk B 18 4258

— Change in fair value (Note a) — AREES)

(K17 a) 95,765 1,135 96,900
Transfer out of level 3 to held-for- HBE=(EZHEZ=IFEE S

trading investments (Note c) ®E (KT c) (196,850) = (196,850)

At 31 December 2011 MR20114F12 H31 H — 6,210 6,210
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

6. TRMIAE

E-FIREERSRMABEZQANETR

of financial assets and financial liabilities BERE(E)

(Continued)

Notes: Kez:

(a)  Change in fair value of structured finance securities are (a) HBESMIHIARBEEZIHENE

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(b)  Upon the exercise of the conversion right under the (b)
loan receivable with embedded derivative into the
listing shares, the Group and the Company recognised
the converted shares as available-for-sale investments.

() Upon the exercise of the conversion right under the (c)
loan receivable with embedded derivative into listing
shares, the Group and the Company recognised the
converted shares as held-for-trading investments. The
Group and the Company disposed all the converted

shares during the year.

Revenue and Segment Information

BlEERFEA o

RITEMBERARTETAZ BERE
R EREE FHRG - AEERA
REERZBRERODAAHEER

RITEMEBRARTETEZEKRE
R BHRES PG - ARERA
RAERZBRERODAFEERR
& AEBRARBRAFERLEPT
BB

7. WARDEHER

Revenue is analysed as follows: WA -
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property management fee income LI ER=BEE=T PN 159,848 156,310
Income from investment in distressed BB TR B SR
assets through establishment of KEPREBE WA
a special purpose vehicle 26,815 50,996
Rental income HeWwA 45,518 70,037
Dividend income from listed and ERIELETBELRRE
unlisted securities WA 26,402 13,299
Sales of petrochemical products ARt TEMEE 204,023 =
462,606 290,642

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

The Group is currently organised into six operating
divisions: distressed assets business, investments
(including the results from held-for-trading investments,
available-for-sale investments, structured finance
securities, loan receivable with embedded derivative
and loan receivables), sales of properties, property
leasing, property management and production and
trading of petrochemical products. These operating
divisions are the basis of the internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker, represented by
the executive directors, in order to allocate resources
to segments and to assess their performance.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly
review segment assets and liabilities.
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

7.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)
Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

and results by operating and reportable segments:

7. WARSBERE)
n L ONSES

AT EAREYA N EEZE
DEBZ AT

Year ended 31 December 2011

BZ0ME12B318LE
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing  management  FAM{tIER  Consolidated
FREEEE k& NEHE ELELA NEER LERHE &4
HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
Revenue WA 26,815 26,402 - 45,518 159,848 204,023 462,606
Results 7 |
Segment profit (loss) PR (ER) 26,610 254,362 (303) 45,616 (4,218) (34,605) 287,462
Other unallocated income, HRARMA -
gains and losses W RER 55,974
Reversal of revaluation deficit ~ HENEB(HEE
of leasehold properties )4 8,387
Corporate expenses NFER (63,054)
Finance costs BI%ER (20,304)
Gain on deemed disposal of BRI E—TIARIEH
a jointly controlled entity GLoles 35,072
Gain on disposal of HERBARME
subsidiaries 64,907
Share of results of associates  BEBEAAIEE 10,434
Share of results of jointly BIELREH AR
controlled entities E 92,263
Profit before taxation BaER 471,141
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7.

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

7.

WAR D EER (&)
DEWBAREE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2010

HE2010512831 8L
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business Investments properties leasing ~ menagement  AMtIZR  Consolidated
FREEZH k& NEHE NERE NZER HERSE wa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Revenue WA 50,996 13,299 - 70,037 156,310 - 290,642
Results E
Segment profit (loss) Aiatl (&) 50,968 243,165 (17) 192,629 3,125 (7,853) 481,617
Other unallocated income, ERARMA
gains and losses WaRhER 94,313
Reversal of revaluation defictt  HEMEEEFE
of leasehold properties mE 8,133
Corporate expenses ARER (60,892)
Finance costs ﬁﬁ f%gﬁﬁ (26,144)
Share of results of associates AN+ 149,455
Share of resuts of jointly /ﬂfﬁ%‘l
controlled entities £ 65,610
Profit before taxation R ER 722,092

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents
the results of each segment without allocation of
certain items including other unallocated income,
gains and losses, comprising interest income
other than those from loan receivables, net foreign
exchange gain, net loss on disposal of corporate
property, plant and equipment and certain
miscellaneous unallocated income and share of results
of associates and jointly controlled entities. The
unallocated corporate expenses, finance costs, gain
on deemed disposal of a jointly controlled entity, gain
on disposal of subsidiaries and reversal of revaluation
deficit of leasehold properties used as the Company’s
head office are not allocated into individual segment
as they are under central management. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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BHFE2011F 12 31 HIFFZ

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Other segment information

7.

Hitho BER

Year ended 31 December 2011

WAR D EER (&)

HZ011512831 BLER
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing management  AM{tIER  Unallocated Consolidated
TREEEH R% NEREE NEHE NEEE LER#E TR g8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET 71 FET AT AT AT AT AT
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:
AEREE AP RAREE 2%
Depreciation bl - - (168) (1,456) (2,167) (10,147) (9,540) (23,478)
Release of land use right THERERR - - - - - (235) - (235)
Change in fair value of structured ERtERESL
finance securities DMEED - 1,13 - - - - - 1,135
Change in fair value of financlal assets ~ RNBRXEAAERES
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZDRER - 95,765 - - - - = 95,765
Income from investment in distressed iR LR B A ERE
assets through establishment of a PREEZRA
special purpose vehicle 26,815 - - - - - - 26,815
Interest income from loan receivables B ZFIEMA - 56,929 - - - - - 56,929
Change In fair value of held-for-trading ~ BEEEREDALEES
investments - (95,083) - - - - - (95,083)
Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale  HETEHERERS
investments = 169,355 = = = = = 169,365
Change in fair value of investment RENEAAERD
properties - - - 53,024 - - 1,804 54,828
Net loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HE€%1% - BERRE
and equipment EL7EBRE = = = (125) (24) = (409) (658)
Write down of inventories FERE - - - - - (8,691) - (8,691)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker:
EHRMRTESEARENSR
Share of results of associates RiEWEARIZE - - 16,053 - - 49,729 (54,348) 10,434
Share of results of jointly controlled RIEARBHINREE
entities - - - - - 78,408 13,865 92,263
Capital additions BARE
— property, plant and equipment — 0% BERX - = = 1,286 751 38,872 1,932 42,841
— investment properties — RENE - = = 299,075 = = = 299,075
— land use right — HitERE - - = = = 70,563 = 70,563
Interest in associates BENDER - - 105,129 - - 165,024 1,937,726 2,197,879
Interest in jointly controlled entities EREHARER - - - - - - 83,072 83,072
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BHFE2011F 12 31 HIFFZ

7.

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

WAR T RER ()

Hiten BER(E

Year ended 31 December 2010

HE2010612A31 ALLER
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business ~ Investments properties leasing  management  RA{LIER Unallocated  Consolidated
TREEEH i NEHE NERE NEER EEREE FFHR Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FAT AT FAT AT AT AT
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:
DEREEABEFNEE %
Depreciation k3 - - (190) (1,421) (2,221 (138) (7,926) (11,902)
Release of land use right Tt RERE = = = = = (699) = (699)
Change in fair value of structured EREMERESL
finance securities MrEED - (3,967) - - - - = (3,967)
Change in fair value of financial assets ~ REERRALBEREL
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZLLEEY - 172,619 - - - - - 172,619
Income from investment in distressed BB UK EHEBRE
assets through establishment of TREEZHRA
special purpose vehicle 50,996 - - - - - = 50,996
Interest income from loan receivables ~ EREHZFERA - 58,871 - - - - - 58,871
Change in fair value of held-for-trading ~ BEERREZ AL EEE
investments = (775) = = = = = (775)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale  HEAEHER B
investments — 1,597 — - — — - 1,697
Change in fair value of investment RENEZDREED
properties - - - 172,518 - - - 172,518
Net gain (loss) on disposal of property,  HENZ  BERRE
plant and equipment EE 2N (BR)FE - - - 302 (56) - - 246
Loss on disposal of land use right HELHFERRZFR = = = — = (1,686) = (1,686)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker:
EHRGATERERRENSE
Share of results of assoclates RIEMERRIRE - - 12,080 - - 127,329 10,096 149,455
Share of results of jointly controlled BEERRHARER
entities - - - - - 56,983 8,627 65,610
Capital additions AAGE
— property, plant and equipment — 0% BER#RE = - - 665 702 962 1,280 3,609
— investment properties — RENE = = = 40,076 = = = 40,076
Interest in assoclates e NAlER - - 86,526 - - 206,136 1,199,639 1,492,301
Interest in jointly controlled entities HRBHIRRER - - - - - 199,842 66,489 266,331
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Information about major customers

There is no single customer contributing over 10%
of total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and
Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue from external
customers is based on the location of the Group’s
operations to derive the revenue and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location
of the assets are detailed below:

WAR D EER (&)

IERFHEN

HZE2011 5 &2010F 12 A31 H IEF
BEXWREE—"RFEMBBERAZ
10% °

I E R

AEEZEBEMHRTERLES - AK
BHRIEBEET ZBARERAEEZ
2B B ARSI R EZIE IR B & B A
IR E RS

Revenue Non-current assets
['ON FEREBEE

2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 Bz €X0[00) HK$’000
FE T FET FEIT

Hong Kong B
PRC aa

1,909 235,487 232,332
288,733 5,708,561 4,335,125

290,642 5,944,048 4,567,457

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

Revenue from major products, investments and
services

Analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products, investments and services is provided in
note 7.
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

8.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

8. HA - KREREE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FAET
Interest income A EWA
— bank deposits — RITER 10,677 9,649
— jointly controlled entity — HREZESA A - 263
— associates — BN T 2,308 39,621
— loan receivables — EWER 56,929 58,871
— others — HAty 7,797 5,471
Imputed interest on consideration receivable & & A REWAREZ
from disposal of an associate (Note 33) FERT R B (Ht5E 33) 8,278 13,075
Consultancy income FERI B UL A 21,102 10,226
Commission income RPN 4,090 2,846
Net foreign exchange gain EH W F 5 2,285 16,643
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERZEZ
plant and equipment (BB W #5E (558) 246
Loss on disposal of land use right HH S - R R 2 548 = (1,686)
Others HAh 7,385 2,908
120,293 158,133
Finance Costs 9. HMXKER
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RITE A E
— wholly repayable within five years — HRSFNEHEE 17,574 22,311
Interest on other loans wholly repayable AR5 FRBHEENEA
within five years BEEF B 2,730 3,833
20,304 26,144
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10. Directors’ Remuneration 10. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BN AENTEESHMS0T -

directors were as follows:

2011
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution Performance
Fees Hek wEe bonus Total
ik Hitn @R 3 RERA #E
Name of directors EEpg HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FET FHET
(Note f)
(3t 1)
Chen Xiaozhou BRZE 500 - - - 500
Hui Xiao Bing BNE 500 - - - 500
Gao Jian Min SRR 500 2,862 12 1,650 5,024
(Note a)
(Hizt a)
Liu Tianni 2IXR 400 - - - 400
Gu Jianguo R 400 - - - 400
Tang Baogi (Note d) BEREWF d) - = = - -
Li Xianli (Note b) FRI(H#E b) 400 1,001 12 1,155 2,568
Yuen Wing Shing (Note ¢) ~ Rikil(#fst c) - - - - -
Yang Zhao (Note b) k(s b) 500 - - - 500
Zhang Zhongqiu (Note e) R (Atit e) 400 - - - 400
Chow Kwok Wai [EElEZ 400 1,244 12 1,155 2,811
Kang Dian FR A 400 - - - 400
Zhang Lu R 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming HREA 300 - - - 300
Total mz 5,100 5,107 36 3,960 14,203
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10. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)

10. EEME (&)

2010
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution ~ Performance
Fees Hek BwiEd bonus Total
we Hin a7 5% RATA Faks
Name of directors EENY HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FETL FET
(Note f)
(Hizt )
Chen Xiaozhou BRE A 500 — — — 500
Hui Xiao Bing BE 500 - - - 500
Gao Jian Min BER 500 2,585 12 1,650 4,747
(Note a)
(K1 a)
Liu Tianni EPN 400 = — — 400
Gu Jianguo FEE 400 - - - 400
Tang Baogi (Note d) BEREWZ d) 400 — = = 400
Li Xianli (Note b) TRV b) 400 334 4 340 1,078
Yuen Wing Shing (Note ¢) ~ Rikil(#st ¢) 300 - - = 300
Yang Zhao (Note b) Bk b) 500 = = = 500
Chow Kwok Wai BB & 400 1,180 12 1,155 2,747
Kang Dian R 400 - - - 400
Zhang Lu i 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming HREA 300 - - - 300
Total Faks) 5,400 4,099 28 3,145 12,672

No directors waived any emoluments in both years.

Notes:

a. The amount includes the estimated value of quarters
provided amounting to approximately HK$990,000

(2010: HK$813,000).

b. Mr. Li Xianli and Mr. Yang Zhao were appointed as
directors of the Company on 9 April 2010 and both
resigned as directors of the Company on 15 February

2012.

©: Mr. Yuen Wing Shing resigned as a director of the

Company on 17 February 2011.

d. Mr. Tang Baogi resigned as a director of the Company

on 20 July 2011.

Annual Report 2011 iR

RAEFEITRBEESTHENE -

Hiat

a SHEERHEENGEFEELD
990,000/ (20104 : 813,000/ 7T) °

b. ZFHEIEAERBIKEER20105F 4
ROREZAAARAIEERFEZR
2012F 2 A 15 AFEARRRES o

c. mAKMELEMN2011FE2H17HE(E
RARES -

d.  FERHELER2011F7 A20H B E
RNAFES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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10. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

e. Mr. Zhang Zhonggiu was appointed as a director of
the Company on 20 July 2011.

f. The performance related incentive payments are
determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

10. EEME (&)

Hret - (&)

e. SRAFKEAMN2011ETH20BEE
EAKRARES -

f. BREBEBZCATIE2EZ/ARR
RSB BREETE

11. Employees’ Remuneration 11. EEME
The five highest paid individuals of the Group AEESEZE S H AL BFE3(2010
included three (2010: two) directors, details of F:2)BEF  BEAIMSFEHIIRN
whose emoluments are set out in note 10 above. EXBtEE10 ° E522 (20104 : 3)& A
The emoluments of the remaining two (2010: three) THMEST :
individuals are as follows:
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits Fre K EfEA 1,830 2,639
Performance related incentive payments BRI Re 4,430 3,465
Retirement benefit costs RIRAE TR A 24 37
6,284 6,041
Their emoluments are within the following bands: HENMENF T EE -
Number of
employees
EE A"
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 78 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 2 2,500,000 8 7T 1 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 87L& 4,000,000 78 7T 1 —
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12. Taxation 12. #1E
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FAET
Taxation charge comprises: BEZHEE:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — current tax ~ B EFSH — BENHEA 20,298 15,040
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — under(over)  HEM¥FTER — ATEERE
provision in prior years TR (EBEERE) 1,255 (1,414)
21,553 13,626
Deferred Taxation (Note 40) EEFRIR (K 7E 40)
— current year — REFE 60,838 138,284
Taxation charge attributable to the Company N2 & & E KB A 7l G518
and its subsidiaries X H 82,391 151,910
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2010: RNERBZ2BBNEB T AKRE 2 BT ER
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the BB FHE16.5% 5112 (20104 : 16.5%) ° A
year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has RARRRERESZH B R RS HIE
been made as the Company and its subsidiaries in B RIS BIRERBFEH
Hong Kong incurred tax losses.
The taxation charge of the PRC Enterprise Income FRZHBEIREMSHASE BN E 2K
Tax for the year has been made based on the Group’s JB A B LA 5T 80 B mR B i K = i A MY P S AR
estimated assessable profits calculated in accordance AR ERE 2 HIESZH -
with the relevant income tax laws applicable to the
subsidiaries in the PRC.
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China BEFEAREMBCEMASHEE( S
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and FE D RFTSBEREREMAA - {2008 F 1
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax A1BE RPBEZHBARERZHES
rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 25% °
onwards.
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12. Taxation (Continued) 12. BIE(Z)

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

s FE R

FABIA A RBER S Y et & R AT

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEITL
Profit before taxation & 7 BT Ve ) 471,141 722,092
Taxation at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax 1ZFF B EFTSHME 25% 2
rate of 25% A 117,785 180,523
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for LB A i TS R B 2 ;R 7%
tax purpose =& 5,554 8,016
Tax effect of income not taxable for IS P i AR A R TS
tax purpose TE (76,568) (70,789)
Tax effect of share of results of associates — E{HEt S AT ZEENTH ST E (2,609) (37,363)
Tax effect of share of results of jointly B(h EKEHEH AR EER
controlled entities MGTE (23,066) (16,403)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBR BB BN IEE 24,800 9,418
Utilisation of tax loss previously not VAR AR FERR < BiIE 518 2 F) A
recognised (4,880) (2,329)
Tax effect of PRC land appreciation tax R £t EE R ([ T E R )
(the “LAT") (Note a) RIS (KT a) 46,824 95,000
Income tax exemption (Note b) SR (M2 b) (6,704) (12,749)
Under(over) provision in prior years LARTEFE IR BT B (B R) 1,255 (1,414)
Tax charge for the year FRFHIBZ 82,391 151,910
Notes: BiE
(a) The Group recognised the LAT on the investment () AEEEERNVAFREHREHSH
properties which are expected to realise through sale EZREYE T THIEEE - RNME
at the end of the reporting period. The provision of the LI AR 2 IR B E B IERNELER
LAT is included under deferred taxation charged to it AR RT o
profit or loss for both years.

(b)  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the b) WREFEGEEREER  BBEKIL

PRC, income from investment in distressed assets
through establishment of a special purpose vehicle is

not subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax.
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12. Taxation (Continued) 12. BIE(E)
The following is an analysis of the tax effect relating UWTREEEMEma NHRETE LD
to other comprehensive income: #r

2011 2010
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax [EEOJEERENE Tax  Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
BREASE BB B4R LUk Gl &
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET TET TET

Exchange difference arising on ~ BEE£ZEX

translation =5 249,491 - 249,491 176,480 - 176,480
Fair value (loss) gain arising on A/ EREBEES
revaluation of available-for- ZARE(ER)
sale investments BF (617,446) 112,338  (505,108) 895533  (133450) 762,083
Reclassification adjustment 55| HE
— transfer to profit or loss — HEMHEE
on disposal of available- RARZES
for-sale investments Bax (69,715) - (69,715) (1,597) - (1,597)
Gain arising on revaluation of ~ EREEWEELY
leasehold properties e 38,774 (4,813) 33,961 36,889 (4,870) 32,019
Share of other comprehensive ~ B{EBANFR
income of associates and HREFH A7
jointly controlled entities A2 EREA 6,901 - 6,901 6,376 = 6,376

(391,995) 107,525 (284,470) 1,113,681 (138,320) 975,361
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13. Profit for the Year

14.

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging

13. FAEF

FREMZEEHERGEA)

(crediting):
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FAET
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R B & 2,435 2,300
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 1F&EK AT A E A 226,885 —
Write down of inventories (included in cost GFERE(BEEFAERZ
of inventories recoginsed as expenses) BFEKA) 8,691 —
Depreciation for property, plant and Y - BB REETE
equipment 23,478 11,902
Release of land use right o b {sP PR A 4 5 235 599
Operating lease rentals in respect of land THREF 2 EERNES
and buildings 4,463 3,618
Staff costs including directors’ remuneration & T & HEESHINHE 102
set out in note 10 BEEMe 127,414 108,735
Rental income under operating leases for WEMFEEEEQ 2 HEIW
investment properties, less outgoings of A - HBrFZ 378,000 47T
HK$378,000 (2010: HK$1,280,000) (20104 : 1,280,000 % 7T) (45,140)  (68,757)

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

14. ERER

BTIIBIRET B ARG

ARRHEA ARG FRELRBN TR

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Earnings: BF
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings AT ESREREN 2 & F|
per share (profit for the year attributable (KRAREB AEEEARF)
to owners of the Company) 375,592 530,818
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14.

15.

Earnings per Share (Continued)

14. ERERE)

2011 2010
In In
thousand thousand
FiE FHZ
Number of shares: REOEE
Weighted average number of shares for the AT EFRELREF| 2 hnEF
purpose of basic earnings per share B8 B 2,273,617 2,144,944

The Company has no potential ordinary shares for the
year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

HZE2011 4 K2010FE12 A31 B IEF
& AR EBE L EEAG

Dividend 15. RE
2011 2010
CLCHO  HK$000
FET FET
Dividend recognised as distribution during FRERDIRAAR S
the year:
Final dividend of 2010, paid HK$0.10 21542 2010 F K HIA% &
(2010: Final dividend of 2009, HAZ0.1087T (20104 :
paid HK$0.10) per share B {2 2009 F AR 2% &
Fi%0.107%7T) 230,485 218,485

The final dividend of HK$0.05 (2010: HK$0.10)
per share and amounting to approximately
HK$115,242,000 (2010: HK$230,485,000) has been
proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by
the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EFetEZRRNRARKRSER0.05
7 T(2010F : 0108 75 ) X B 42
¥ 49 /115,242,000 JC(20104F :
230,485,000 7T ) + MEBEFAR R A
RREERFRRAE LR o
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16. Investment Properties 16. REWH*
The Group The Company
rAEE E N
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Fair Value ARE
At the beginning RE )
of the year 2,541,194 2,288,512 20,342 17,590
Exchange adjustment T R 103,418 102,124 - —
Additions =T 299,075 40,076 - —
Reclassified as assets BYAIEREHE
classified as held-for- ZEE
sale (80,989) (62,036) - =
Increase in fair value RiBERER
recognised in profit R EE N
or loss 54,828 172,518 1,804 2,752
At the end of the year RER 2,917,526 2,541,194 22,146 20,342
At 31 December 2011, the legal title of the Group’s M2011FE12A31H AEB R AR
and the Company’s investment properties with a B A A B BRI B 49 A& 22,146,000 7%
carrying value of approximately HK$22,146,000 (2010: JC(20104F : 20,342,000 70 ) M I& &
HK$20,342,000) situated in the PRC has not been MEZERDRBPERNEBR RAA
passed to the Group and the Company. Eil
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16. Investment Properties (Continued) 16. BEYE(E)
The carrying value of the investment properties "EYEZRAERE
comprises:
The Group The Company
REME /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET F#ET FET
Held under long term LARERFR A £ 3 fs
lease/land use right: REFREFE
— situated in the PRC — [ E 29,789 27,669 - —
Held under medium term VAR ERFR A, L i fF
lease/land use right: AT FE
— situated in the PRC — IR E 2,887,737 2,513,525 22,146 20,342
2,917,526 2,541,194 22,146 20,342

All the investment properties are held for rental
income under operating leases.

The fair value of the investment properties of the
Group and the Company at 31 December 2011 and
2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on respective dates by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited (“Vigers”), an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. Vigers are members of the Institute of Valuers.
The valuation of the Group’s and the Company’s
investment properties was arrived at using direct
comparison method by reference to sales evidence as
available on the market.

At the end of the reporting periods, the fair value
of the investment properties reclassified as assets
classified as held-for-sale is arrived at by reference to
the selling price as stated in the sales and purchases
agreements entered into with independent third
parties during the year ended 31 December 2011 and
2010.

All the Group’s and the Company’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties.
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. M%¥ - BERRE
Leasehold
land and Furniture
buildings Leasehold and Office Motor Plant and  Construction
AELH improvements fixtures equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
kEF HENERE EUVET BRERRE RE BERRE ERIR Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET FET AT FET FAT FET FET
THE GROUP A58
COST OR VALUATION RABSMEE
At 1 January 2010 R201051A1A 198,176 7,882 12,351 12,452 20,368 - - 251,229
Exchange adjustments ELAE 145 - 502 522 77 - - 1,946
Additions RE = = 62 823 2,724 - - 3,609
Disposals HE - - (150) 872) (1,708) - - (2,280)
Revaluation Bfh 38,541 - - - - - - 38,541
At 31 December 2010 R2010%12831A 236,862 7,882 12,765 13,425 22,161 - — 293,095
Exchange adjustments ERAE 1,088 - 489 563 1,119 7,880 2,001 13,140
Additions RE = = 19 560 3,434 1,925 36,903 42,841
Disposals e - - (41 (1,489) (1,188) - - 2,718)
Deemed acquisiton of a ~~ ERKE-HHEAR
subsidiary (Note 44) (#rit 44) 12,629 = = 322 1,619 192,072 48,776 255,218
Revaluation Ef 39,145 - - - - - - 39,145
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12A31A 289,624 7,882 18,232 183,381 27,045 201,877 87,680 640,721
Comprising: 2
At cost R E - 7,882 18,082 13,381 27,045 201,877 87,680 351,007
At professional valuation 12201142
- 2011 EXftE 289,624 - - - - - - 289,624
289,624 7,882 13,232 13,381 27,045 201,877 87,680 640,721
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2010 R2010%1 7418 68 3,761 4219 8,276 11,707 - — 28,031
Exchange adjustments ELAE 3 - 186 357 455 - - 1,001
Provided for the year FEEE 6,481 966 1,121 922 2,412 - - 11,902
Eliminated on disposals ~ HEEHH - - (107) (343) (1,538) - - (1,988)
Eliminated on revaluation ~ Ef&#HsE (6,481) - - - - - - (6,481)
At 31 December 2010 R2010%12831A 1 4,721 5,419 9,212 13,036 - — 32,465
Exchange adjustments ERAE 433 - 216 408 733 - - 1,790
Provided for the year FEEE 8,391 966 868 1,165 2,843 9,245 - 23,478
Eliminated on disposals ~ HEBHH - - (27) (1,349) (673) - - (2,049)
Eliminated on revaluation ~ E{A#HsE (8,016) - - - - - - (8,016)
At 31 December 2011 R2011%512831A 879 5,693 6,476 9,436 15,939 9,245 — 47,668
CARRYING VALUES BHE
At 31 December 2011 R2011%512831A 288,745 2,189 6,756 3,945 11,106 192,632 87,680 593,053
At 31 December 2010 #2010 12 A31A 236,791 3,155 7,346 4213 9,125 = - 260,630
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#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ
17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17. Y% - BERREE)
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Office Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
HETHRET HEWERE MAZRE AE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET FET FHET FHET
THE COMPANY P NG|
COST OR VALUATION RAEREE
At 1 January 2010 ®2010F1 A1H 73,278 2,271 219 3,100 78,868
Revaluation B 15,493 - - - 15,493
At 31 December 2010 R2010F 12 A31 B 88,771 2,271 219 3,100 94,361
Revaluation =i 5,551 - - - 5,551
Additions NE = = — 1,894 1,894
Disposals HE - - - (1,188) (1,188)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12 8318 94,322 2,271 219 3,806 100,618
Comprising: B
At cost BRAE = 2,271 219 3,806 6,296
At professional valuation R2011E2
— 2011 BXfhE 94,322 - - - 94,322
94,322 2,271 219 3,806 100,618
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2010 ®2010F1 A1H - 2,271 142 1,683 3,996
Provided for the year FEEMR 2,499 - 36 220 2,755
Eliminated on revaluation SHEEE (2,499) - - - (2,499)
At 31 December 2010 R2010%512 431 R - 2,271 178 1,808 4,252
Provided for the year FEEH 3,025 - 24 250 3,299
Eliminated on revaluation SRR (3,025) - - = (3,025)
Eliminated on disposals & B AN — - - (673) (673)
At 31 December 2011 R2011%12 A31H — 2,271 202 1,380 3,853
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2011 R2011%F12 431 H 94,322 - 17 2,426 96,765
At 31 December 2010 R2010E12 8318 88,771 - 4 1,297 90,109
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17. Y% - BERREE)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line over the following years:
Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or over

the lease term,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Plant and machinery 10 — 15 years
Motor vehicles 6 — 10 years

At 31 December 2011, the legal title of the Group’s
and the Company’s properties with carrying value of
approximately HK$31,322,000 (2010: HK$28,771,000)
situated in the PRC have not been passed to the
Group and the Company.

AEWME  BEERREZRBEZNA T

ZEMUNERENE
HE+ i RIEF 50 E 3k A
TR E RIS A
BEEEE 3
RIS 104
YN 54
R Rt 2% 10 — 155
B 6— 104

R20114E12 A31 B » AEEKRAAA]
iz pA R B B [ B 49 /3 31,322,000 7% 7T
(20104 : 28,771,000 7T ) K % =~
EEDNARBPERAEBRART -

The carrying value of the leasehold properties HEMXZERERE
comprises:
The Group The Company
REE RAF

2011 2010 2011 2010
LLECX M HK$'000 EGLEXJM HK$'000
TET FET TET TETT

Long term leasehold EEBHRBHEE

properties situated in e

Hong Kong 229,700 194,600 63,000 60,000
Properties under medium  #£ 7 B A AR HA £ 45

term land use right FRERB RN

situated in the PRC 59,045 42,191 31,322 28,771

288,745 236,791 94,322 88,771

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ

S BHRME

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17. Y% - BERREE)

The fair values of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were arrived
at on the basis of valuations carried out on respective
dates by Vigers and A-Plus Surveyors Limited (“A-Plus”).
The valuations were arrived at using direct comparison
method by reference to sales evidence as available
on the market. The revaluation surplus on revaluation
of the leasehold land and buildings amounted to
approximately HK$47,161,000 (2010: HK$45,022,000)
of which an amount of approximately HK$8,387,000
(2010: HK$8,133,000) was credited to profit or loss
as reversal of revaluation deficit previously recognised
and an amount of approximately HK$38,774,000
(2010: HK$36,889,000) has been credited to the asset
revaluation reserve. Vigers and A-Plus are independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group, are members of the Institute of Valuers, and
have appropriate qualifications and experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

Certain leasehold interest in land cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
leasehold interest in land continues to be accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

If leasehold properties had not been revalued, they
would have been included on a historical cost basis
at the following amounts:

AEBMAE L RIEFR 2011 F K&
2010F 12 A1 HZ AR E T ERE
BT REENEMITERAR([ERE]D
Bz BAEL 2 BEEGHAE - FHEE
DERBERELBEELREENMISA]
BSNEEERMEE - HEL R
EFEHABFSEEL H47,161,000 %

JC (20104 : 45,022,000 7T ) & A 4
8,387,000 8 L E 5t AR Bz &R 1EA N
£ = &5 18 [ # (2010 FF : 8,133,000
7S L) M & BE 4938,774,0007%8 7t.(2010
% : 36,889,000 L) Bt ABREE K
- ST REEMES RERER
WHEBENB LA EREEMGEMIL A
AHEMEBSKE  THEEEERK
HABME o B EETHERNK

ETHEL Wz ERE AR EHMOREE
THRETFED - Rt HERER
IBYIRAME - BB MR

HEAEMERTER. -
FESE RARE SRR -

BIZZEMHEEZ A

The The

Group Company

REME ¥ NN

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEIT

Cost %N 174,674 38,848
Accumulated depreciation and ST E KR EEE

impairment losses (76,049) (17,013)

Carrying value at 31 December 2011 BREER 2011F 12 H31 H 98,625 21,835

Carrying value at 31 December 2010  BREI{ER 201012 A 31 B 94,487 24,860
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B E20114F 12531 HIEFE
18. Land Use Right 18. LT iifEFAE
The Group
REE
HK$’000
FET
cosT B
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1 A1 H 26,785
Exchange adjustments M TR 1,204
Release for the year FEEE (5699)
Disposal k= (27,390)
At 31 December 2010 R 201012 A31 H —
Additions 0 70,563
Release for the year FEEH (235)
At 31 December 2011 MR2011412 A31 H 70,328

19.

The land use right of the Group was held under
medium-term lease in the PRC and amortised over

the term of the lease of 50 years.

AEE 2 L {E AR R BIAT H
HERBILIAEEH 50 FH#H -

Goodwill 19. BE
The Group
rEH
HK$’000
FET
COST [FES
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 7201041 A1 H X 2010412 A31 H 33,525
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary REWRE—FERB A
(Note 44) (MteE 44) 39,462
At 31 December 2011 R®2011F12 A31 H 72,987
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 R 201041 81 H X 2010 F % 2011 4
and 2011 12 A31H 26,524
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2011 B20114F12 A31H 46,463
At 31 December 2010 7 2010F 12 A31H 7,001

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al




19. Goodwill (Continued)

Included in the carrying value of goodwill as at 31
December 2011, HK$7,001,000 (2010: HK$7,001,000)
is allocated to the cash generating unit for property
management (“Unit A”) and HK$39,462,000 (2010:
nil) has been allocated to cash generating unit for
production and trading of petrochemical products
(“Unit B”).

The recoverable amount of Unit A has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period based on an average estimated
growth rate of 3% (2010: 3%) with a discount rate
of 12% (2010: 12%). Cash flows for further five
years are extrapolated at zero growth rate. Another
key assumption for the value in use calculations is
the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The recoverable amount of Unit B has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period based on an estimated growth rate
of 2 to 7% with a discount rate of 19.6%. Cash flows
after the five years period are extrapolated at 3%
growth rate. Another key assumption for the value in
use calculations is the budgeted revenue and gross
margin, which is determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

In the opinion of the directors, there is no impairment
required as at the end of the reporting period.
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

19.

MBHR M

AR E)

BER2011F12 431 BZEE - BE
{87,001 ooo;‘% J0(20104F : 7,001,000
BTN EVMXEEBE 2H S ENM
REE(E MAJ)&39462000/;§7E
(2010 : B)RPEEEERHEEAR
Mt TEMR B < BREE( B
Bl) e

BUAZ A EWEEEHENMEBEE
HET stErAFEAKERENZ -
ERFE5F 3% (20104 : 3%) F 12
Emwz%(zomi 1 12%) Bh 3R =5t
EH5FHHRIEEMSHIRERTEA -
HgsFzReRET AT HER K
H-FREENS HIEBRTETAEE
WARERBFE - DiRZEMBE 2R
BEREREEAMSEECEHEE -

BBz A BRI ERNEREE
BEFE SAETAERAKEREE]Z -

EREF 2% E7% F I8 &K & PL19.6%
MRERGENSFHRBEMGNES
mIBA o HIE5F 2R &M E R3%
FREE - FREEAENS BEE
BERBERARENE - HIRZEL
BACKEREREHMSERE CTEH
BE -

EEERRBRARE BRI RERE
ZRE-
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20. Investments in Subsidiaries and Amounts

due from Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries

RERKELF

20. BRENK B QTR EWHE QTR

The Company

RAFE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - A 498,157 228,604

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31
December 2011 and 2010 are set out in note 53(a).

AR BRI B 2R B R 2011 F K 2010 6
12 A 31 B 21535 R HIzE53(a) °

The Company

AT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Amounts due from subsidiaries: JEE LT B B X R
Non-current: FETRE :
Non-interest bearing amount (Note a) BENB&FE(HF a) 3,249,101 812,764
Amount bearing interest at prevailing BREBEREENZE
Hong Kong prime lending rate SFEEE 169,690 169,690
Amount bearing interest at prevailing REBENEENERA1.5%
Hong Kong prime lending rate FEER
minus 1.5% 64,874 64,874
Amount bearing floating rate interest as ZHEARRIT(ARET])
quoted by the People’s Bank of China EEZIFEFEF EERHE
(“PBOC) — 1,730,614
3,483,665 2,777,942
Current (Note b): EN (AT b)
Non-interest bearing amount HETE SR 523,336 196,456
4,007,001 2,974,398

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

20.

21.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Amounts
due from Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(a)  The aggregated principal amount of the amounts due
from subsidiaries is approximately HK$3,603,591,000
(2010: HK$866,084,000), which are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.
In the opinion of the directors, the amount will not
be repaid in the next 12 months from the end of the
reporting period. This effective interest rate is 3.5%
(2010: 3.5%) per annum.

(o)  The amounts are unsecured and expected to realise

in the next 12 months from the end of the reporting
period.

Interest in Associates

20. RERNKHED R KEWHKE 2 RK
(%)

HiaE

@ EUHBRAARZASHLBENA
3,603,591,000/% (20104 :
866,084,000/ 70) BERIF - 28K
REETERY EEEAREZE
BHRAREHREN12ME A AL
2HE ZERFFEAR3.5% (2010
£ :3.5%) °

(o) SEAERFRBBHNAREIHRE
12 @A AFE -

21. BEQRER

The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cost of investments in associates B N AR E K ANE
— unlisted — Lk 2,148,126 1,325,721
Share of post acquisition profits and other — E{EUEER B A K H M2 HE
comprehensive income, net of dividends A HBRE AR E
received 49,753 166,580
2,197,879 1,492,301

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
subscribed for 776,424,000 shares of CGNPC Huamei
Investment Limited (“CGNPC Huamei”), representing
approximately 29.41% of the enlarged issued capital
of CGNPC Huamei satisfied by cash consideration of
HK$776,424,000. CGNPC Huamei is a subsidiary of
CGNPC International Limited (“CGNPC International”),
a substantial shareholder with significant influence
over the Company. CGNPC Huamei and its
subsidiaries are mainly engaged in diversified power
production.
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B 22011 F 12431 HIFFZ

B N B ()

21. Interest in Associates (Continued) 21.

As at 31 December 2011, included in the cost of
investments in associates is goodwill of approximately
HK$14,188,000 (2010: nil) arising from the acquisition
of the interest in CGNPC Huamei.

Particulars of the associates of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are set
out in note 53(b).

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s significant associates is set out below:

R2011E12A31H B8 &EHE A
ARENABERHKEREZEEZ
W25 P 5| A 2 P& 49 14,188,000 7% 7T
(20104F : &) o

REBERARNBANEZHRZE QAR
20114 %2010 12 A31 B 2 15 &
FIPAKTEE53(b) °

AREBz ETEHL AR ZHEERBE
AT ¢

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEr FET
Consolidated statement of SETBMRAE
financial position
Total assets BEE 23,671,888 4,879,155
Total liabilities BaffE (17,423,115)  (1,503,490)
Non-controlling interests FErE R (478,923) —
Net assets BETE 5,769,850 3,375,665
Group’s share of net assets of associates SEE BN EEFE 2,197,879 1,492,301
Consolidated income statement and GEkERRGEEEKER
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income
Revenue WA 9,991,770 7,914,934
(Loss)profit for the year (Note) FN(EBE) & (M) (9,413) 448,194
Other comprehensive income Hofth 2 1 Al 20,013 3,161
Group’s share of profits and other REBEGEEE R RIFEAN R
comprehensive income of associates R EL At 2 T4 7l
for the year 17,035 150,458
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21.

22.

MBHR M

Interest in Associates (Continued) 21. BEQTIERE)

Note: The Group’s associates aggregately recognised Mfat . BE2011412A310  AEEZ
net loss but an overall share of profit of associates HERT 7\5\*;7\7\%’;}%1%%%@%%%15
is noted for the year ended 31 December H’P%Qj/ﬁi]"%%}ggﬁmﬁﬁj
2011. Included in the net loss, approximately fe] yp%/ﬁjaiﬁ’]ZMfSSOoo/ﬁm
HK$247,358,000 was contributed by one of the B SR B e 2 A 0 599 19 72,748,000
associates and share of loss of approximately ﬁ;ﬂt ﬁéﬁ_z;lfflzjﬁﬁg R E;J%
HK$72,748,000 has been recognised by the Group. A= - i
The. remalnin lat sod net fit of 237,945,000 78 7T & AN & E R &G

g associates recognised net profit o S R14 83,182 000 F 5% -
approximately HK$237,945,000 and share of profit of ARARRIES, 185,
approximately HK$83,182,000 has been recognised
by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2011.
Interest in Jointly Controlled Entities 22, H[EEHARER
The Group The Company
KEH AAF]
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Cost of unlisted R RZES A RIRE
investments in jointly A — JELETH
controlled entities 61,599 194,510 - 26,318
Share of post-acquisition  # /5 EE 12 %= T
profit and other K EHAth
comprehensive income e 21,473 71,821 = =
Impairment loss EERBAEBRE
recognised - — - (26,318)
83,072 266,331 - —

During the year ended 31 December 2011, due
to the amendment in memorandum and articles of
association of Tai Zhou United East Petrochemical
Company Limited (“TZ United East”), the Group
obtained control over TZ United East and hence TZ
United East has been accounted for as a subsidiary
since the Group has control over TZ United East.
Details of the deemed acquisition are set out in note
44,

Particulars of the jointly controlled entities of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are set out
in note 53(c).

R2011F12831HZF RN AR HE
MEREE THER AR ([=MEE T )

ZHMSIEMREE

ZN-SESEE %%)H

REME T 2RI - IIK%IHX

JH BR B

FE T 2RI M AR B2

Bk - BIFWIB Z 518 %ZE‘JECW.EM °

AEB 2 HRBEHQ
201012 A31 B 2 18
53(c)
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

22. Interest in Jointly Controlled Entities 22, HEEHABIRERE)
(Continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of BERATEEREMEHRRAERSES
the jointly controlled entities which are accounted for FEHERIEH A RN 2B ER R
using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated HHmT

financial statements is set out below:

2011 2010
CLEY  HK$ 000
FHET TAET

Non-current assets ERBEE 23,675 140,983
Current assets mENEE 170,800 244,729
Current liabilities M=K (110,473) (117,539
Non-current liabilities EmEBGE = (912)
Non-controlling interests PR S (930) (930)
Group’s share of net assets of ZRER B B 2 R

jointly controlled entities RAEBEFE 83,072 266,331
Income recognised in profit or loss IWAR B R IER 562,426 560,317
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RN EERER (470,163)  (494,707)
Other comprehensive income H {th 2 i A 300 5,373
Group’s share of profits and other ZRER B FE A 2 R4

comprehensive income of jointly N A)E N ) R B A

controlled entities for the year 2 E&E 92,563 70,983
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
23. Amounts due from Associates 23. FEUWEEE QX EIR
The Group The Company
AEH AAT]
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Current (Note a) BVER (K7t a) 7,906 143,550 - 106,509
Current (Note b) BUVER (K17t b) 750,903 286,531 123,786 10,916
758,809 430,081 123,786 117,425

Notes: HiaE -

() The amounts are unsecured, bear fixed interest at (@ ZeEAEER - LIEFEAFE1.25%
1.25% per month (2010: 11.68% to 15% per annum) (20104 : B E F ) & 511.68% =
and are expected to realise in the next 12 months from 15%) &1 B R TE B A Rk 25 BR AR 14 12 &
the end of the reporting period. BA={EE -

(b)  The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are (b) ZeBAERE 2B RFEHRAIRK
expected to realise in the next 12 months from the SRR 12 A RNSEER -
end of the reporting period.

24. Amount due from a Jointly Controlled Entity 24. EW—BEEES AT

The Group

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and expected
to realise in the next 12 months from the end of the
reporting period.

ZEREAEER B RBHRAHE
HRE12EARNGERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F 1231 HIFEE
25. Structured Finance Securities 25 #EMESRESs
The Group and the Company AEFR DT

The structured finance securities represent a debt
security with interest payments based on the return
from United States Treasury bond and distribution
from preference shares in a private company which
invests in a portfolio of asset-backed securities. The
structured finance securities contain an embedded
early redemption option and the return which is
determined by reference to the distribution from the
private company which is dependent on the annual
default rate of its underlying asset-backed securities
and the return from United States Treasury bond.
The Group designated the entire structured finance
securities as financial assets at FVTPL at initial
recognition.

The fair value of the structured finance securities
is determined by the directors with reference to
the valuation provided by the counterparty financial
institution at the end of the reporting period. This
fair value is determined by reference to the value
of a comparable new issue of the similar structured
finance securities under the market situation as at 31
December 2011 and 2010. The major assumptions
adopted for the valuation of the structured finance
securities are as follows:

(1) The estimation of risk free rate by reference
to the yield of United States Treasury Bond
with same remaining duration as the structured
finance securities adjusted by the issuer’s credit
rating; and

(2) The estimation of the default rate of the
underlying asset-backed securities by reference
to the historical default rate of asset-backed
securities with similar characteristics.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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26.

Available-for-sale Investments

26. AHHERE

Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHEERECHEER
The Group The Company
REME ¥ /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET FET FETT
Equity securities listed REABLAIN £ 2 IR
outside Hong Kong, BH o EBRARE
at fair value 270,790 654,511 — —
Equity securities listed in ~ R&EB L 2 xA
Hong Kong, at fair value BE o EBAAE 335,537 684,261 335,537 684,261
PRC government bonds, FREBFES
at fair value RARE 2,464 2,367 - —
Total investments at HWEE > RANE
fair value 608,791 1,341,139 335,537 684,261
Unlisted investments IEEMIRE
Unlisted equity securities,  JEETIRANES -
at cost (Note a) WA (Ht i a) 428,721 349,073 105,570 105,570
Club debentures, at cost SRIES  BAA 5,613 4,973 2,780 2,140
434,334 354,046 108,350 107,710
Less: Impairment loss 7 ERERRVEEE
recognised (2,070) (2,070) (2,070) (2,070)
Total investments at WZE AR
cost 432,264 351,976 106,280 105,640
Total =aEr 1,041,055 1,693,115 441,817 789,901
Analysed for reporting MERENINE
purposes as:
Current (Note b) mEN (Mt b) 313,254 654,511 40,000 =
Non-current FERED 727,801 1,038,604 401,817 789,901
1,041,055 1,693,115 441,817 789,901
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26.

27.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited R i B

Avai

lable-for-sale Investments (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities. The
business of these companies include, but not limited
to power, winery, banking and financial services. They
are measured at cost less impairment at the end of
the reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably. During the year ended 31 December
2011, gain on disposal of unlisted available-for-sale
investments of HK$99,640,000 (2010: nil) has been
recognised in profit or loss.

It comprises of the equity securities which the directors
may dispose of within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period and were classified as current assets
as at 31 December 2011.

Loan Receivables

MBHR M

26. AHHERE®)

HiaE

I E TR AN B #ma#xéwﬂaﬂ\/\a
BETZIELMBRAES - ZEA
CEEBBEETERESN B - ﬁE
ﬁ&%éﬂﬁ&i‘%ﬁ% EEEMEH‘FW?E’]
BAREBEHEAKN EEER

,\Afcfﬁﬂﬁﬁsgiﬁz.ﬁ; lltt;z
LA E TH A R 5 H 2R DA BR 2 40 R OB
Bt 8- W2011F12831H 2 F
A HEIEETAIHEERE 2 W
/499,640,000 JT(20104F : ) E
RBER T HER

(@)

IEEETERRERREB12EARN
HEWR2011E12 A31 BHRE AR
B EENRANES -

27. EWERN

The Group The Company
REE RATF
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET FET FET
Fixed-rate loan receivables &2 EWE R
(Note a) (ffeF a) 16,016 409,072 — 83,628
Variable-rate loan FEEKER
receivables (Note b) (H1e b) 93,630 26,036 - —
109,646 435,108 - 83,628
Analysed for reporting A2RE MDA :
purposes as:
Current mE) 109,646 139,250 — 83,628
Non-current JERED - 295,858 — —
109,646 435,108 — 83,628
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27.

28.

Loan Receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  As at 31 December 2011, a fixed-rate loan receivable
of HK$16,016,000 is secured by pledged unlisted
investments and carries fixed interest rates at 15% per
annum. The Group is permitted to obtain the title of
the unlisted investments if the borrower defaults the
payment as requested by the Group.

At 31 December 2010, the fixed-rate loan receivables
were unsecured, carried fixed interest rates at a range
of 4% to 17% per annum.

(b) The loan receivables of HK$93,630,000 (2010:
HK$26,036,000) are due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary. The balances are
unsecured, carry interest rate at the standard rate
quoted by the PBOC per annum.

Loan receivables as at the end of the reporting period
are neither past due nor impaired. The Group did
not provide impairment loss for loan receivables. In
the opinion of the directors, no impairment loss is
considered necessary in respect of these balances
as they have assessed the financial strength and
repayment ability for the borrowers.

Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 19 October
2010 entered into between the Company and Sky
Success Investments Ltd. (the “Borrower”), an
independent third party, the Company granted to the
Borrower a loan facility of US$14,100,000 (equivalent
to HK$109,980,000) which was fully drawn down
by the Borrower in October 2010. The Borrower
obtained funding from other investors, together
with the Company, in an aggregated amount of
US$35,000,000 for the acquisition of 8.7% equity
interest in Sino Polymer New Materials Co., Ltd. (“Sino
Polymer”).
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28. Loan Receivable with Embedded Derivative

(Continued)

The Borrower, together with other shareholders of
Sino Polymer which collectively own 95% of Sino
Polymer, subsequently injected their shares in Sino
Polymer (the “Injection”) into China Lumena New
Material Corp., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (“Listed Buyer”), in exchange for the shares
of the Listed Buyer and cash.

According to the loan agreement, the Company
had the right to convert the loan receivable and the
accrued interest into 1.41% equity interest in Sino
Polymer before the completion of the Injection at any
time before on 30 June 2011 (the “Maturity Date”).
After the completion of the Injection, the Company
could convert the loan receivable and accrued interest
(if any) into shares of the Listed Buyer at any time
before the Maturity Date at HK$2.3 per share.

The loan receivable carried fixed interest rate at
25% per annum with both principal and accrued
interest would be repayable on the Maturity Date if
the Company had not exercised the conversion right.
The Group designated the entire loan receivable with
embedded derivative as financial assets at FVTPL at
initial recognition.

On 16 January 2011, the Injection was completed
and the Company exercised its right to convert the
loan receivable into 46,869,078 shares of the Listed
Buyer and classified as held-for-trading investments
with carrying amount of HK$196,850,000, determined
based on market share price of the Listed Buyer
on date of conversion. The change in fair value of
HK$95,765,000 upon the conversion was recognised
to profit or loss, of which HK$16,496,000 represents
the interest income accrued prior to the conversion.
The Group disposed all of the converted shares at a
consideration of HK$163,285,000 during the year and
recognised a fair value loss of HK$33,565,000 since
the conversion of the shares into held-for-trading
investments.
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2. BERUBHKENRBREFRE

29. Investment in Distressed Assets through

Establishment of a Special Purpose Vehicle

E

The Group
A EE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Cash collected from distressed assets

AREEWEBRSEL REA
but not yet transferred to the Group REE

6,092 65,245

The Group

On 25 October 2006, Silver Grant International
Assets Investment Limited (“SGIAIL”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a cooperation
memorandum (the “NPL Memorandum”) with China
Orient Asset Management Corporation (“China Orient”)
to establish a company in the PRC, Dongxin Union
Asset Management Corporation Limited (“Dongxin
Union”) for the purpose of managing a NPL portfolio
(the “First Orient Portfolio”). Pursuant to the NPL
Memorandum, SGIAIL purchased 46.17% of First
Orient Portfolio from China Orient at a consideration
of RMB319,682,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$321,701,000). SGIAIL injected its 46.17%
interest in the First Orient Portfolio and China Orient
injected the remaining 53.83% interests in the First
Orient Portfolio, representing a capital injection
of RMB372,708,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$376,435,000) into Dongxin Union as investment
in Dongxin Union. This transaction was approved by
the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC on 22 January
2007. The operation license of Dongxin Union was
expired on 31 December 2011. Up to the date of the
report, liquidation of Dongxin Union is in progress
and the directors expect that the liquidation will be
completed in 2012.
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20. BBV BHRENRERERRE

29. Investment in Distressed Assets through

Establishment of a Special Purpose Vehicle
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

On 5 June 2008, SGIAIL entered into a supplementary
cooperation memorandum (the “Second Memorandum”)
with China Orient, pursuant to the Second
Memorandum, SGIAIL together with certain investors
had agreed to make investment in a second portfolio
of distressed assets (the “Second Orient Portfolio”)
owned by China Orient. The acquisition was approved
by the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC and
completed during the year ended 31 December 2009.
The investment cost of the Second Orient Portfolio
was approximately RMB1,160,998,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,314,834,000). The Group entered
into a joint investment contract with three other
investors (“Joint Investment Contract”) and collectively
invested 46.17% interest of the Second Orient
Portfolio which cost approximately RMB536,033,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$607,059,000), of
which RMB246,033,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$278,633,000) was paid by the Group. According
to the Joint Investment Contract, the Group should
collect and distribute the cash collected from
distressed assets from China Orient on behalf of
the other three investors in proportion of the initial
investment amount. One of the investors was an
associate of the Group which was disposed of during
the year ended 31 December 2011.

On 14 July 2009, SGIAIL and China Orient made
capital injection to Dongxin Union. SGIAIL injected
46.17% interests in Second Orient Portfolio and China
Orient injected 53.83% Second Orient Portfolio into
Dongxin Union. The shareholding of Dongxin Union
owned by SGIAIL and China Orient after the capital
injection remain unchanged.
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29. BBRABHRENHERERRE

29. Investment in Distressed Assets through

Establishment of a Special Purpose Vehicle
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Pursuant to the Memorandum and Article of Dongxin
Union, China Orient is responsible to manage the
First Orient Portfolio and Second Orient Portfolio.
China Orient is entitled to a management fee equal
to 10% of the gross amount recovered from the First
Orient Portfolio and Second Orient Portfolio. The
proportion of sharing of the recovered amounts for
the First Orient Portfolio and Second Orient Portfolio
are based on a pre-determined scale stated in the
NPL Memorandum and the Second Memorandum
respectively.

The investment in distressed assets through the
establishment of a special purpose vehicle is
measured at amortised cost less impairment, with
income credited to profit or loss. The investment
in distressed assets through the establishment of
a special purpose vehicle is denominated in RMB
which is also the functional currency of the group
entity which holds the investment. For the First Orient
Portfolio, the original effective interest rate was
approximately 70.02% per annum. For the Second
Orient Portfolio, the original effective interest rate was
approximately 93.75% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, there
were unexpected cash recoveries from the First
Orient Portfolio and the Second Orient Portfolio.
Based on the pre-determined scale stated in the
NPL Memorandum and the Second Memorandum,
the Group shared and recognised HK$26,815,000 as
income during the year ended 31 December 2011. As
at 31 December 2011, the directors did not expect
any cash could be recovered from both the First
Orient Portfolio and the Second Portfolio in future.
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29.

30.

Investment in Distressed Assets through
Establishment of a Special Purpose Vehicle
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, cash collected by China
Orient from distressed assets but not yet transfer
to the Group and deposited in bank accounts was
amounting to HK$6,092,000 (2010: HK$65,245,000).
The effective interest rate from such bank deposits is
approximately 0.5% (2010: 0.36%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2011, included in accrued
charges, rental deposits and other payables of
HK$16,392,000 (2010: HK$110,388,000) represented
the cash collected from the distressed assets of the
Second Orient Portfolio by the Group on behalf of the
other investors under the Joint Investment Contract.

Particulars of Dongxin Union are set out in note 54.

Inventories

20. BBV BHRENRERERRE
EE)

R2011F12A31H @A B R 5 #
TREEEKBMHEERKREER
REBYETFEHRRBITRFNESEAS
6,092,000 7T(20104F : 65,245,000
BIT) o RIRTTIF K2 BT R EF =X
#10.5% (20104 : 0.36%) .

R2011E12 A31H  BeRErER
5T S & H AR 5K H 16,392,0007%5
75(20104F : 110,388,000/8 7T ) X & &N
SERBEARBREBZREMIREEE
WARREEB=-2HSE -

BRREHA ZHERIINKE4

30. 7E

The Group
REE

2011 2010
HK$’000

HK$°000
Faz R

Consumables JHFE 436 327
Raw materials RA 17,526 —
Finished goods X o 32,483 —

50,445 327
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31. Held-for-trading Investments 31. BHEEERE
The Group The Company
rEH P N/NE|
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FET FAET
Equity securities listed BB KA B Y
in Hong Kong and the A7
PRC, at fair value BRARE 74,944 126,237 19,651 33,852
32. Trade Receivables 32. EUWERR
The Group AEE
The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days to AEEGBTESHEFI0ECOKXNEHR
its trade customers. B o
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables T3 BiREEH BEEZ EYBERFA R
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the WEHARZ R DT -
reporting period:
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FAET
0 to 30 days 0= 30H 2,750 2,149
31 to 90 days 31 HEZ90H 3,492 2,345
91 to 180 days 91 HZ 180 H 3,515 2,541
181 to 360 days 181 HE 360 H 2,837 3,790
12,594 10,825

The Group’s trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired are those debtors with satisfactory
credit quality under the management’s assessment
and with good past repayment records.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$9,844,000
(2010: HK$8,676,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The average
age of these receivable is 147 days (2010: 174 days).
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32. Trade Receivables (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

32. EUWRM(E)

FE UG PR X 2 B BB 3 R OB 2 BR B

yet impaired: T
The Group
REE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
31 to 90 days 31 HZ90H 3,492 2,345
91 to 180 days 91 HZ 180 H 3,515 2,541
181 to 360 days 181 HE 360 H 2,837 3,790
9,844 8,676

The Group did not provide impairment loss for the
trade receivables. In the opinion of the directors, there
is no impairment loss for the trade receivables past
due (over 30 days) at the end of the reporting period.

33. Deposits, Prepayments and Other

Receivables

ARt R W AR TR BB E B 1R -
EEEAR/EAHMREEEBI0
B ) B 8 U5 Bl R A N e o HA SR R A AR

MEEE -

33. & BENRRHEMERK

The Group The Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FHEIT FET FETT
Consideration receivable & — B & QA
from disposal of an EWRE (A7 a)
associate (Note a) - 149,955 - —
Consideration receivable HENHEERE Y
from disposal of FEWRE (K b)
available-for-sale
investment (Note b) 70,000 — - —
Amount due from a broker EUW—EEHFTT 40,201 = - —
Others EHAftb 39,564 49,304 8,972 39,125
149,765 199,259 8,972 39,125
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33.

34.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other
Receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
disposed of an associate for a consideration of
HK$358,233,000. The consideration was unsecured,
interest-free and would be settled by three instalments:
HK$100,000,000 by 90 days after the date of the
disposal, HK$100,000,000 by 31 December 2010
and HK$158,233,000 by 31 December 2011. At
initial recognition, the fair value of the consideration
was HK$336,888,000, determined by using imputed
interest rate of 5.52% per annum. As at 31 December
2010, the carrying value of the unsettled consideration
was HK$149,955,000. During the year ended 31
December 2011, the consideration receivable was fully
settled.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group disposed of its unlisted available-for-sale
investment with carrying value of HK$40,360,000 at a
consideration of HK$140,000,000. The consideration
is unsecured, interest free and repayable by two
instalments: HK$70,000,000 at the date of transaction
and the remaining HK$70,000,000 by 31 May 2012.

Bank Balances and Cash
The Group and the Company

The Group’s and the Company’s bank balances
and cash comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits carrying prevailing market deposit rates
with effective interest at an average of 0.5% (2010:
0.36%) per annum and an original maturity of three
months or less. Included in the Group’s and the
Company’s bank balances and cash at 31 December
2011 were an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,028,192,000 (2010: HK$726,382,000) and
HK$48,467,000 (2010: HK$2,798,000) respectively
which were denominated in RMB and are not freely
convertible into other currencies.
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35. Assets Classified as Held-for-sale/Liabilities 35. SIEREHEZEE FIEF/EH
Associated with Assets Classified as Held- EREERETAER
for-sale
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FEr
Assets classified as held-for-sale FIERHEHE 2 B E
— Investment properties — KB 130,323 62,036
Liabilities associated with assets classified  FI|{ER{EISE BE 28R
as held-for-sale ZB8fE
— Deposits received — WEIZET& 130,323 62,036

As described in note 16, the Group entered into
sales and purchase agreements during the year 31
December 2011 to sell the investment properties at
an aggregated consideration of HK$80,989,000 (2010:
HK$62,036,000) which was received during the year.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, investment
properties with carrying value of HK$14,985,000 were
disposed. The remaining properties will be delivered
and the disposal will be completed upon obtaining the
approval from relevant regulating authorities.

36. Pledge of Assets
The Group

At 31 December 2011, the Group pledged certain
investment properties and leasehold land and
buildings with an aggregate carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of approximately
HK$2,087,717,000 (2010: HK$1,733,728,000)
and HK$218,000,000 (2010: HK$184,000,000)
respectively to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The Company

At 31 December 2011, the Company pledged certain
leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate
carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately HK$63,000,000 (2010: HK$60,000,000)
to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Company.
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37. Share Capital 37. BA&
Number of shares Nominal value
RAEE ZHE

2011 2010 2011 2010
In thousand [IRTLIRE L HK$’000 HK$’000
Fig T FET FET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each  BREE0.20/8 T2 @M

Authorised: AERE

At the beginning and the end RETNRAER

of the year 4,000,000 4,000,000 800,000 800,000

Issued and fully paid: EETRESERE :

At the beginning of the year REH] 2,184,850 1,820,710 436,970 364,142

Issue of new shares BATHIR 120,000 364,140 24,000 72,828

At the end of the year RER 2,304,850 2,184,850 460,970 436,970
On 6 April 2011, the Company issued and allotted a R2011F4R68 - AR A NEE
total of 120,000,000 shares at a cash consideration of RETHI0BTETREEAH
HK$3.00 per share to independent third parties. The 120,000,000 K FHBIYE =77 - RFA
new shares issued during the year rank pari passu in BOTZHBRESTERARGERETRG
all respects with the existing shares in issue. FHRS#E o
On 10 February 2010, the Company issued a total R2010%F2 A 108 * RARINRREN
number of 364,140,000 new shares at a cash EEk2.008TATEZERETE
consideration of HK$2.00 per share to CGNPC #£364,140,000 B AR © sk ¥ B0 4
International. These new shares rank pari passu in all ENEEARFERTRNEZARAZHE
respects with the existing shares in issue. m °
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MBHR M

38. Reserves 38. #fE
The Group rEH
Attributable
to owners
of the Non-
Company controlling
KAH interests Total
BEAELE  FERER ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Asset revaluation reserve EEEMRE
At 1 January 2010 R2010%1 A1H 65,452 — 65,452
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties ~ Ef4HAEHE W 36,889 - 36,889
Deferred tax liabilities arising on revaluation ~EfEHEWMEESE 2
of leasehold properties ERETIBRE (4,870) - (4,870)
At 31 December 2010 ®20105612 A31H 97,471 - 97,471
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties ~ B4 EME Uz 38,774 = 38,774
Deferred tax liabilities arising on revaluation EEAEMEES
of leasehold properties EERIEEE (4,813) = (4,813)
At 31 December 2011 R2011%F12 A31H 131,432 — 131,432
Investment revaluation reserve REEGRE
At 1 January 2010 ®20106F1H1H 17 - 17
Change in fair value arising on revaluation — AT EREEREEL
of available-for-sale investments AR EEE 720,672 174,861 895,533
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of HEMHNEREREES
available-for-sale investments Bax (1,597) - (1,597)
Adjustment on deferred tax liability BEREE B RE (89,735) (43,715) (133,450)
At 31 December 2010 12010512 A31 B 629,357 131,146 760,503
Change in fair value arising on revaluation ARHEREEHELEY
of available-for-sale investments AR EEEF) (532,275) (85,171) (617,446)
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of ﬁ’%—ﬁﬁﬁj%&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%é
available-for-sale investments Bak (68,171) (11,544) (69,715)
Adjustment on deferred tax liability BERIAEE AR 77,067 35,271 112,338
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12 A31H 115,978 69,702 185,680
Translation reserve B R
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1A1H 299,940 780 300,720
Exchange difference arising on translation ~— #EELAZERZH 172,289 4,191 176,480
Share of reserves of associates BhEE N RIRE 724 279 1,003
Share of reserves of jointly controlled entities (k5 £t [F 1% 4 A T & 5,373 = 5,373
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12 A31H 478,326 5,250 483,576
Exchange difference arising on translation & ES 7 ER =5 227,485 22,006 249,491
Share of reserves of associates AN 6,601 = 6,601
Share of reserves of jointly controlled entities 4k £ 712 8 A T & 300 - 300
At 31 December 2011 R2011 %12 A31 B 712,712 27,256 739,968

Silver Grant International Industries Limited R i B
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
38. Reserves (Continued) 38. REE(E)
The Company VNN
The distributable reserves of the Company as at XA A KR2011F12831H 2 7] &
31 December 2011 amounted to approximately R BMERZBONREB &M - &
HK$619,234,000 (2010: HK$449,915,000), being its # 4 /%619,234,000% JT(20104F :
retained profits at that date. 449,915,000 7T) °
Asset Capital  Investment
revaluation redemption revaluation
Share reserve reserve reserve Retained
premium BEEMR ERERE REEH profits Total
R 175 B ikt ikt ikt REBEF a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
THE COMPANY A UNG|
At 1 January 2010 201061818 2,177,287 43,744 13,992 - 324,633 2,559,656
Gain on revaluation of leasehold  EfEHE Lt EF
land and buildings EEZBF - 17,992 - - - 17,992
Deferred tax liabilities arising on  EfRE L LET
revaluation of leasehold land EEZER
and buildings HEEE - (1,944) = = = (1,944)
Change in fair value arising on ~ EffAIEHEREZ A f
revaluation of available-for-sale  EZE)
investments - - - 361,734 - 361,734
Reclassification adjustment —  E53% — HETHH
transfer to profit or loss on EREEES
disposal of available-for-sale BaR
investments = = = (1,597) = (1,597)
Other comprehensive income FREM2ERT]
for the year — 16,048 - 360,137 - 376,185
Profit for the year FREF = - - - 343,767 343,767
Total comprehensive income FRZE R
for the year ok = 16,048 = 360,137 343,767 719,952
Issue of shares BATIRAR 655,452 — — — = 655,452
Share issue expenses BRI ETER (9,516) - - - - (9,516)
Dividend RE - — - (218,485) (218,485)
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12 A31H 2,823,223 59,792 13,992 360,137 449,916 3,707,059
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
38. Reserves (Continued) 38. RHE(E)
The Company (Continued) AT (&)
Asset Capital  Investment
revaluation redemption revaluation
Share reserve reserve reserve Retained
premium BEEM BEAEE REEf profits Total
R EE e e 1 REBEF ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2010 R2010F 12 A31H 2,823,228 59,792 13,992 360,137 449,915 3,707,059
Gain on revaluation of leasehold  EfAHEE L RHEF
land and buildings EEZBF - 8,576 - - = 8,576
Deferred tax liabilities arising on ~ BfEHAE +i# KiIEF
revaluation of leasehold land EEZELR
and buildings HEEE - (524) - - = (524)
Change in fair value arising on BRI AHEREZ
revaluation of available-for-sale  RAAEEE
investments — — — (348,725) — (348,725)
Other comprehensive income FREM2ERT]
for the year — 8,052 — (348,725) — (340,673)
Profit for the year FRRH - - - - 399,804 399,804
Total comprehensive income FRZE R
for the year ek - 8,052 - (348,725) 399,804 59,131
Issue of shares BITRA 336,000 - - - — 336,000
Share issue expenses RIPETER (7,404) - - - - (7,404)
Dividend ) - - - (230,485) (230,485)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12 31 R 3,151,819 67,844 13,992 11,412 619,234 3,864,301
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#ZE2011F 12531 HIFFEZ
39. Borrowings 39. fB&
The Group The Company
rEH ARATE
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Bank loans — secured RITER — FEMA 915,262 527,510 651,150 152,300

Carrying amount repayable: JEEEZRASE

Within one year 1E2A 351,600 415,582 290,000 100,000
More than one year, but not 1 EE
exceeding two years T2 F 101,599 89,448 40,000 50,000
More than two years, but not 2F A LB
more than five years THBBASF 443,198 - 320,000 -
896,397 505,030 650,000 150,000
Add: Carrying amount of o BERESGER
bank loans containing a XA E F
repayment on demand Frek 2 EEERZ
clause (shown under IRITERZ
current liabilities) with FRE 8
scheduled repayment Gl ERBAR)

set out in loan
agreements due:

— within one year —1F2ZR 3,670 3,614 1,150 1,150
— more than one year, — 1FAEE
but not exceeding T2 F
two years 2,580 3,670 - 1,150
— more than two years — 2F A LB
but not more than TiHBB5 F
five years 8,105 7,922 - =
— more than five years — HiB5F 4,510 7,274 = —
915,262 527,510 651,150 152,300
Less: Amounts due within S A2 REIER
one year shown under WH BREAE
current liabilities C4HE (370,465)  (438,062)  (291,150) (102,300
Amounts shown under non- I RIERBBE
current liabilities Z &% 544,797 89,448 360,000 50,000
Borrowings are secured by certain investment EERETREMERBELTHNET
properties and leasehold land and buildings. Details EB R o ZE15H Y H7E36 ©

are disclosed in note 36.

Annual Report 2011 iR I



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

39.

Borrowings (Continued)

Bank loans of the Group and the Company of
HK$651,150,000 (2010: HK$152,300,000) are
denominated in HKD, which are not denominated in
the functional currency of the Company. The bank
loans carry floating rates at Hong Kong interbank
offered rates (“HIBOR”) plus 2.5% and prime rate
minus 2.375% per annum, i.e. effective interest rate
of 2.31% and 2.96% (2010: 1.93% and 2.63%) per
annum respectively. Bank loans of the group’s entities
other than the Company of HK$17,716,000 (2010:
HK$20,181,000) are denominated in HKD, functional
currency of the relevant group entities, and carry a
floating rate of prime rate minus 2.7% (2010: prime
rate minus 2.7%) per annum or effective interest rate
of 2.3% (2010: 2.3%) per annum respectively. The
remaining bank loans of the Group are denominated
in RMB, functional currency of the relevant group
entities and carry floating interest rate at 105% (2010:
floating interest rate at 90% of the PBOC six-month
interest rate) of the PBOC three-year interest rate or
effective interest rate ranging from 6.98% to 7.25%
(2010: 4.78% to 5.27%) per annum.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al

39.

BE#E)

REE M AR R AIIRTTE 651,150,000
7 70(20104F : 152,300,000 7 ) J5 LA
TLABMN  MABTWIERARRZINEE
B RITERRBBRITRAERE(R
TTRIZERE ) n2.5% KR EBEFRREF
ME2375% 2 FEF KB BEEREF
F & 5 Bl 52.31% &% 2.96% (20104 :
1.93% [ 2.63%) ° BRAN N AN - EERA
A Z8R1TE 7K 17,716,000 7 7L (20104F :
20,181,000/ 7T ) LAME I & B A R H DI gk
BB TABEN - D RIRREEFN KR
2.7% (20104 : ZBEFEFH2.7%) 2
FENF R B BB FF X 2.3% (20104 :
2.3%)ETE o AEBREBIRITE AN
FSEBERARINIREESE ARE AN - I
BEARBASFEZZHF X LF5%
(2010 : L ARBRIT6EAZBFIET
2 10%) A BB F IR R HH6.98% =
7.25% (20104F : 4.78% &= 5.27%)5t 5 °
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
40. Deferred Taxation 40. EZEBIIE
The followings are the major deferred tax assets and NTAEREAFEERINTFENEEDRE
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during REEHBEEESEGBERERTHRER
the current and prior years: NEFERES :
The Group AEE
Revaluation
Accelerated  Revaluation  of available-
tax of for-sale Tax
depreciation properties  investments losses Total
BEmft
MERBHE NESTH HERE REER &g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT AT AT FAT
At 1 January 2010 120101 A 1R (65) (104,864) = 1,422 (103,497)
Charge to profit or loss for the  RAFEBRR Mk
year (Note 12) (Wit 12) = (138,284) = = (138,284)
Charge to other comprehensive  RARNEE 2 EEA
income for the year Eill3 = (4,870) (133,450 - (138,320
At 31 December 2010 7201012 431 A (65) (248,018) (133,450) 1,422 (380,101)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss ~ RAEEREHEE (1K)
for the year (Note 12) SAHE 12) = (61,224) = 386 (60,838)
(Charge) credit to other RAEE M2 AR
comprehensive income (MBR)ZTA
for the year - (4,813) 112,338 - 107,525
Deemed acquisition of a BREE—FHBAR
subsidiary (Note 44) (Wit 44) - (1,898) - - (1,898)
At 31 December 2011 ®2011512A31R (55) (315,953) (21,112) 1,808 (335,312)
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EFE2011F 12531 HILFE
40. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 40. EEBIIE(E)
The Company AT
Accelerated Revaluation
tax of
depreciation properties Total
IEBIEITE YIEEM k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET T8
At 1 January 2010 201041818 (55) (5,262) (5,317)
Charge to other comprehensive RZAREE H {2 M
income for the year st A FOBR = (1,944) (1,944)
At 31 December 2010 R2010F 12 A31 H (55) (7,200) (7,261)
Charge to other comprehensive RAZAREE H i 2 M|
income for the year i ) 0 B — (524) (524)
At 31 December 2011 R2011 412 A31H (55) (7,730) (7,785)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$278,201,000
(2010: HK$198,521,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$10,957,000 (2010: HK$8,617,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining HK$267,244,000 (2010:
HK$189,904,000) due to unpredictability of future
profit streams and such tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$109,820,000
(2010: HK$127,209,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
stream.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al

RARE R - ANE B A A HRE R K
i ) B R B R B 75 5 #8490 278,201,000
7 70(20104F : 198,521,000 7T ) °
% % 5 18 410,957,000 75(2010
% :8,617,0008 L) E RE LT
HEE o BRI WA T8R4
N AE B R O] R B b 7K | 458 0 4
M H $:267,244,000/8 Jt(20104F :
189,904,0008 7T ) R BIELH IHE
E °

RARERR - A QR H A HRAR G
FHY R B) A B4 75 /B 18 49 109,820,000 74
Jt(2010 4 : 127,209,000 JT ) » £
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
40. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 40. EEBIE(Z)
The Company (Continued) AT (&)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed RAEHET - B2008F1 H 18 F
on dividends declared to overseas investors in 1 PRI B AR RFMDIKTE
respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from INEEE 2R BFE BRI - AR
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has £ 5] BE SR 450 ) 5 [0 =7 B = E Ay R
not been provided for in the consolidated financial Al B AR e i = B B R N = ]
statements in respect of temporary differences At - A BB A R1AY 711,017,000 7
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC JC(20104F : 318,242,000/ 7T ) 2514 7
subsidiaries amounting to HK$711,017,000 (2010: ZEREREmMELANELEREI KT A
HK$318,242,000) as the Group is able to control the LAEPEREA -
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
41. Trade Payables 41. EMFERX
The Group
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables Tl RIREEH AEE 2 BRI
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the WwE AR 2 BRER DT -
reporting period:
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 37,592 23,117
31 to 90 days 31 HZ 90 H 11,951 8,419
91 to 180 days 91 HE 180 H 5,914 8,687
181 to 360 days 181 HE 360 H 9,876 12,060
Over 360 days 38360 H 69,143 54,123
134,476 106,406
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42. Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and 42. EEAR RS REMENR

Other Payables
The Group

At 31 December 2011, the balance includes an
amount of approximately HK$46,446,000 (2010:
HK$44,616,000) payable to an independent third
party in relation to purchase of land use right in the
PRC. The amount is secured by certain investment
properties of approximately HK$53,714,000 (2010:
HK$45,207,000), bears fixed interest at 4.68% per
annum for both years and is repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2011, the balance includes an
amount of HK$51,922,000 (2010: HK$23,598,000)
payable to three non-controlling shareholders with
significant influence over three subsidiaries (2010:
one). The amounts are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and are repayable on demand. The amount
as at 31 December 2010 bore floating interest at the
PBOC’s loan interest rate or effective interest rate of
approximately 5.4% per annum and unsecured and
was repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2011, the balance includes an
amount of HK$16,392,000 (2010: HK$110,388,000)
payable to other investors of the Second Orient
Portfolio. Details are set out in note 29.

At 31 December 2011, the balance included a deposit
of approximately HK$32,031,000 from an independent
third party in relation to a disposal of leasehold
properties entered into during the year ended 31
December 2011. However, as certain conditions as
stated in the sales and purchase agreement were not
able to be met subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, the sale was subsequently cancelled and the
deposit will be refunded to the counterparty.

At 31 December 2010, the balance included an
amount of HK$191,432,000 received in advance from
an independent third party in relation to properties
development projects in Shenyang Province, the PRC.
Repayment in full was made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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R2011 FE12 A1 H 2 &2 BERD
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BER2011FE12831 B ZFRNEH

{=E= jm
JHIR °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

42,

43.

44.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and
Other Payables (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Excepted for those as stated above, the remaining
balances mainly include accrued staff costs,
and other deposits received, payables for property,
plant and equipment,
receipts in advance from customers.

rental

accrued finance costs and

Amounts due to Subsidiaries

The Company

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

Deemed Acquisition of a Subsidiary

On 31 August 2011,
controlled entity, TZ United East, approved certain

both equity owners of a jointly

amendments in its memorandum and articles of
association. Pursuant to the amended memorandum
and articles of association, the number of directors
in the board of directors of TZ United East is 9 of
which 5 directors are appointed by the Group and 4
directors are appointed by the other equity owner.
In the opinion of the directors, the increase in voting
power due to this amendment caused the Group
to obtain control over TZ United East’s financial
and operating policies upon the amendment of the
memorandum and articles of association since major
financial and operating policies require simple majority
of votes in the board of directors’ meetings. As a
result, TZ United East was deemed to be acquired by
the Group and became a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group. At the date of the deemed disposal,
the Group’s previously held interest in TZ United East
is remeasured at fair value and the resulting gain of
HK$35,072,000 was recognised in profit or loss.
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44. Deemed Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date

4. HFRWE—BHNEARE)

RRRUEE R 2 BEWE K B ERRH

of deemed acquisition were as follows: FIEAT
HK$’000
T8
Net assets acquired: IR F & E
Property, plant and equipment VI - B K& 255,218
Deposits paid for land use right THFERAE RS 34,320
Inventories FE 48,600
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & - BARREAMMEREK 14,187
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 230,654
Trade payables FEfFBR X (17,878)
Accrued charges, rental deposits and FEETER - AiRe REA
other payables FERT R (28,832)
Amounts due to related companies e BAE R B (885)
Taxation payable FESFLIR (9,441)
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBAE (1,898)
524,045

The fair value of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables at the date of deemed acquisition
amounted to HK$14,187,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those deposits, prepayments and other
receivables acquired amounted to HK$14,187,000 at
the date of deemed acquisition.

RERWER ZZE « BNREEMIE
W2 AR 1EAE14,187,00078 7T ° 1
REWER @ Zike  BNREEAMmE
Wik z E&REE A 14,187,000 7T °

HK$’000
FET
Goodwill arising on deemed acquisition RERUWE— B ARFIEE M
of a subsidiary: =z
Acquisition-date fair value of previously held RUEBBUERAE 2 #Ea
interests (Note a) ZAREHE a) 301,485
Plus: non-controlling interests 20 FEvESIRE RS (RINREME T 2
(50% of TZ United East) (Note b) 50%) (#is b) 262,022
Less: net assets acquired - WEEFEE (524,045)
Goodwill arising on deemed acquisition (Note c) RRIRBEFTEA 2B (Mt c) 39,462
Cash inflow arising on deemed acquisition REWEFEE 2 RER 230,654
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
44. Deemed Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued) 44, HEWE—RBHNEBAEE)
Notes: st -

(@)  Acquisition-date fair value of interests in jointly
controlled entities previously held has been remeasured
to its fair value. Fair value of the jointly controlled
entity is determined by business valuation based
on the application of discounted cash flow method.
That calculation uses cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period based on an estimate growth rate
of 2% to 7% with a discount rate of 19.6%. Cash
flows after the five-year period are extrapolated at 3%
growth rate. Another key assumption for the business
valuation is the budgeted revenue and gross margin,
which is determined based on TZ United East’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

(b)  Non-controlling interests are measured by reference to
the proportionate share of recognised amounts of net
identifiable assets at the date of acquisition.

() Goodwill arose on the deemed acquisition because
the acquisition included the viability of continuous
expansion and development of the production scale of
TZ United East’s business with the expected further
financing. The high capital expenditure required to
establish the production plant and importation of core
equipment pose significant barriers to entry for new
competitors. These assets could not be separately
recognized from goodwill because they are not
capable of being separated from the Group and sold,
transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either
individually or together with any related contracts.

None of the goodwill arising on the deemed disposal
is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Included in the profit or loss and revenue for the
period are loss of approximately HK$27,014,000
and HK$204,023,000 respectively, attributable to
the TZ United East. Had the deemed acquisition
taken effect on 1 January 2011, the revenue of the
Group for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,291,368,000, and the profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$467,158,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the deemed acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2011, nor is intended to be a
projection of future results.
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EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

45. Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group disposed of two subsidiaries to independent
third parties at a net aggregated consideration of
HK$96,910,000. The net assets of the subsidiaries

disposed of were as follows:

45. HEKEBAR

MR2011F12A31BZHE RN A& E
LA 42 (X {8 )% %8 96,910,000 7 T & W
MHWBARTFTELE=F - BEHBA
RLZFEERINAT :

HK$’000
FET
Interest in an associate N Al RERS 31,896
Amount due from the Company FE WA R FR 136,284
Bank balances and cash RITHBERIRE 21
Taxation payable FET IR (136,198)
Net assets FEE 32,003
Gain on disposal ez s 64,907
Cash consideration received WElZRESRE 96,910
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZFRER
Cash consideration received (net) WEl 2B REFE 96,910
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEZIRITHEBRRIE R (21)
96,889

The disposed subsidiaries had no material impact
on the Group’s results and cash flows in the current

period.
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46. Operating Lease Arrangements 46. EEHOZH
The Group NEH
The Group as lessor FEBULATEA TS
Property rental income earned by the Group during AEERFAFDRONHEASKALS
the year was approximately HK$45,518,000 (2010: 45,518,000,87t(2010 4 : 70,037,000
HK$70,037,000). The properties held have committed BIL)  BENYWEBEEZLOMM
tenants for lease terms ranged from 1 year to 9 years. B HHSEER1FEIOFIASE o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RAREER AREEBRIZER
contracted with tenants for the following future WER Tl R AR AR -

minimum lease payments:

The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Within one year 1 FERER 18,344 46,334
In the second to fifth year inclusive F2EFELF 27,891 39,152
(BEER2FERN)

After five years 5% A% 11,669 —
57,904 85,486

The Company KA FE

The Company has no operating lease commitment at RA R FE SRS BRIR B & EHL

the end of the reporting periods. 2 o
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47. Capital Commitments

47.

BAERE

The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET

FET

Capital contribution in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and

equipment contracted for but not provided — RiE&

in the consolidated financial statements

BARBAYME - BB M
REBDEEEILR
MRS

Rk 2 B AR S

118,383 =

The Company

The Company has no capital commitment at the end
of the reporting periods.

48. Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "Scheme") for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group and are held
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes the lower of HK$1,000 per month or 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to the state
retirement scheme in the PRC based on 20% of the
monthly salaries of their current employees to fund
the benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic
salaries on retirement and their length of service in
accordance with the relevant government regulations.
The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liability to the retired staff.
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48.

49.

Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

The total cost charged to profit or loss of
approximately HK$9,109,000 (2010: HK$7,852,000)
represents contributions to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting period. As
at 31 December 2011 and 2010, no contributions due
in respect of the reporting period had not been paid
over to the scheme.

Share Options

On 27 May 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) with effect from 27 May
2002. The Share Option Scheme was adopted for the
primary purpose of giving incentives to the directors
and eligible employees of the Group.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company are authorised, at any
time within ten years after the adoption date, to grant
share options to any directors or employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for
shares in the Company at a price not less than the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, or the average closing price of the Company’s
shares on the five trading days immediately preceding
the offer date of the share options or the nominal
value of the Company’s shares, whichever is higher.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme cannot exceed 30 per cent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

No option was granted and exercised during both
years and no share option was outstanding as at 31
December 2011 and 2010.
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50. Related Party Transactions 50. BBARZ
The Group NEH
During the year, the Group entered into the following FA - AREE R ET TR S ¢

transactions with related parties:

2010
ZIC M HK$000
FET FET

Interest income from a jointly controlled HEESIA A
entity EORRIPSNI PN - 263
Interest income from associates Bt & N R B U A 2,308 39,621
Interest income on loan to a non-controlling B8 A & FE42 HI A% 3
shareholder of a subsidiary (Note) B B WA (K aE) 4,240 1,818
Interest expense on loan from a non- F /&8 A A FEFE I AR R
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary BERWRE X2 (A7)
(Note) - 1,209
Property management fee income from an ~ BE& AT MESEE
associate WA 67 81
Rental income from associates NI OF SN 23,308 6,982
Rental income from a jointly controlled HEZESARHEE
entity WA 3,400 2,628
Note:  The transactions were entered between several Hiet - ZRXSBZHENE R T & ZH S
subsidiaries and non-controlling shareholders with NAEABEATE 2 IR R
significant influence over those subsidiaries. 17 °
Details of balances with related companies and other E R Bk N ) A4S e S B RA B 5 2 HMh AT
transactions with related parties are set out in the SHBEINRERE I AR K R
consolidated statement of financial position and notes 23242942 -

23, 24, 29 and 42.
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50. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

51.

The Company

Details of balances with subsidiaries are set out in the
statement of financial position and in notes 20 and
43.

Except for the directors’ remuneration and the
remuneration of the five highest paid individuals of the
Group as disclosed in notes 10 and 11 respectively
during the year, there is no other remuneration of key
management.

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Major Non-cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2011,
loan receivable with embedded derivative of
HK$196,850,000 was converted into shares of
the Listed Buyer and classified as held-for-trading
investments upon the exercise of the conversion right.

During the year ended 31 December 2010,
loan receivable with embedded derivative of
HK$341,000,000 has been transferred to available-
for-sale investments upon the conversion of the
convertible bonds into shares of Winsway Coking
Coal Holdings Limited before its listing on the Stock
Exchange.
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52. Events after the Reporting Period

The Group has the following significant subsequent
events:

U)

(if)

On 9 January 2012, the Group entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with 3B[G&|LE
%5 AT (Shenyang Yuanshan Property Limited
or (“Shenyang Yuanshan”)), an independent third
party. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Group
granted a loan of RMB450,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$553,500,000) (the “Loan”) to Shenyang Yuanshan
for the construction of the residential property project
known as “ &2 - 27388 " located in Shenyang, the
PRC (the “Property Project”). The Loan bears interest
at 18% per annum. Interest will be payable on 20
March 2012 and 20 June 2012 respectively and the
Loan is repayable in full in one lump sum together
with all outstanding interests accrued on 8 September
2012. The Group is entitled to monitor the operation
of Shenyang Yuanshan and the construction and sales
of the Property Project and the use of Loan proceeds
by Shenyang Yuanshan.

On 9 March 2012, the Company entered into
a memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”)
with China Uranium Development Company
Limited (“CUDC Limited”), a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong. As at 9 March
2012, CUDC Limited held 50.11% of issued
share capital of CGN Mining Company Limited
(“CGN Mining”), a limited company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed on
the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the MOU,
subject to entering into a subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”), the Company
agrees to subscribe an exchangeable bond
issued by CUDC Limited at a consideration of
HK$776,000,000 (the “Exchangeable Bond”).
The Exchangeable Bond with principal amount
of HK$776,000,000 bears interest at 5% per
annum and will be matured on the date, falling
on the fifth anniversary of the date of issue and
can be converted into shares of CGN Mining at
a conversion price of the higher of () HK$1.2
per share or (ii) the 130% of the average closing
price of the share of CGN Mining as quoted on
the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
trading days immediately prior to the date on
which the Subscription Agreement is executed.
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52. Events after the Reporting Period (Continued)

(if)

(iil)

(Continued)

CUDC Limited is an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Guangdong Nuclear Power
Holding Corporation Ltd. (“CGNPC”), a company
established in the PRC and with significant
influence over the Company.

As at the date of these consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issuance, the
Subscription Agreement has not been entered.

On 9 March 2012, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (“S&P Agreement”)
with CGNPC International,
shareholder with significant influence over the

a substantial

Company. Pursuant to the S&P Agreement, the
Group has conditionally agreed to dispose and
CGNPC International has conditionally agreed
to acquire the Group’s entire 29.41% equity
interests in CGNPC Huamei at a consideration
of HK$776,424,000. As at 31 December 2011,
CGNPC Huamei and its subsidiaries were
treated as the Group’s associates as the Group
could exercise significant influence through
voting power in the board of directors meeting
of CGNPC Huamei.

CGNPC International is a wholly owned
subsidiary of CGNPC.
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53. Particulars of Subsidiaries, Associates and 53. MiBAR - BEQARRAERFESQ
Jointly Controlled Entities AIRE
(a) Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 (@ A2AE KB R FR2011F Kk
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 2010 12 A 31 HEWEIBAT ¢
Nominal value of
Country/place issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of company /R BRAEERREA/ AARFEECETLERRE/ Principal activities
ARER BX/fiEs AMEREE AMEREELA IEEH
2011 2010

Directly Indirectly MICA(Y Indirectly
B - B% B

Beijing East Gate Development PRC (Note ) US$100,413,500 - 100% - 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (‘Beiing Fast Gate”)  RE (47 /) 100413,500% 7T and investment
FRRREXARAA(LRER]) NRERRRE
Beiling Yinda Property PRC (Note ii) RMB10,000,000 - 90% - 90%  Property management
Management Limited (*Yinda") ~ E(#:z 1) AEE10,000,00078 NFER
IrBENRERAREHAAT
(THE])
Beijing Ju Fu Real Estate PRC (Note ii) RMB105,000,000 - 90% = 90%  Investment holding
Development Company Limited S EI(#7 i) AR 105,000,007 AR
(“Beijing Ju Fu’)
TRERRHEREARAA
(tRERE))
Silver Grant International Assets ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 100% - Inactive
Management Limited (Note v) &7 10,0007 BEiE
PREARAZERERAA ML v)
Greenhill Property Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
EBRAES %7 REEK
Likesway Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
MEFERA &k BT investment
RANERRE
Real China Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% - Property holding and
RRERARAA Bk 25T investment
RANERRE
Silver Grant Hainan Investment British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% - Inactive
(BVI) Limited HERTHE 1£1 eSS
Silver Grant Infra-Structure British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% -~ Investment holding
Investment (BVI) Limited ABRAES 1% REER

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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BHFE2011F 12 31 HIFFZ

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries, Associates and

53. MEAR  BEQFARARESQ

Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued) AREEE)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at (@ ZARAEH BRG] R2011F &
31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 2010F 12 A1 BEMFHBAOT ¢
(Continued) (%)

Nominal value of
Country/place issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of company /R BRAEERREA/ AARFEECRTLERRE/ Principal activities
ARER BX/fiEs AREREE AREREELA IERH
2011 2010
Directly Indirectly MIC(Y Indirectly
B - EE i}
Ju Fu San Yan Jing Investment Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited 5 28T REnk
ER=BHRAGRAT
Silver Grant International Assets ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100% - Distressed asset
Investment Limited Bk 10087 business
REBRAEREARAA NRAEETH
Samtung Investment Limited British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% - 100% — Inactive
EBRARE 157 TRLH
Platinum Two Limited Mauritius US$1 100% - 100% - Inactive
ELE 3] 1% ERLH
Silver Grant International Infra- Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% - 100%  Inactive
Structure Investment Limited 57 28T L
REARERREERAR
Silver Grant International Securities  Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% - 100%  Securities trading
Investment Limited B 28T #HEE
RREREFREARAT
Silver Grant Securities Investment  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
(BV) Limited AERUES 157 RERR
Straight View Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100% -~ Investment holding
BRRABRAT (30 10077 REHER
SYJ Holding Limited British Virgin Islands  HK$2,170 100% - 100% —  Investment holding
ABRUES 217057 RE#ER
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% - Property holding and
EmEaBRAH Bk 25T investment
RRNERRE
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53. Particulars of Subsidiaries, Associates and 53. fBAR - BEQARAREREHQ

Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued) AWEE)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at (@ AR BRG] R2011F &
381 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 2010F 12 A1 BEMFHBAOT ¢
(Continued) (%)

Nominal value of
Country/place issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of company /R BRALERRS/ ARRMBECRTLBRRE/ Principal activities
ARER BX/fiEs AREREE AREREELA IERH
2011 2010
Directly Indirectly MIC(Y Indirectly
B - EE i}
Winner Property Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
ABRAES 1%7 RERR
Sun Steed International British Virgin Islands  US$100 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Investments Limited KERAHE 100ET RERR
REERREBRAR
Silver Grant International Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Petrochemical Limited B 100%T RERR
FEARALBRAR

Tai Zhou Dong Thai Petrochemical  PRG (Note iii) RMB230,000,000 69.78% - 69.78%  Investment holding
Company Limited wElE i) AR 230,000,007 RARR
(TZ Dong Thai")A

FNRERIERA
(3T

TZ United East PRC (Note iv) RMB165,600,000 - 50% - - Production and trading
TR T hEl ) AR 165,600,0007C of petrochemical
products (Note ¢)°
FEREERRLIER
(Hitc)®
Xin Jiang Zhong Qing Luan Chuang  PRC (Note iv) RMB5,000,000 - 60% = 60% Investment holding
Technology Company Limited & (42 i) ARE5,000,0007C RERR
(“Zhong Qing’) (Formerly known
as Zhong Qing Luan Chuang

Technology (Beijing) Company
Limited (“Zhong Qing”))A

BT EMEMBERAR([RE])
(AT ERENER (LR AR
AR(%E]1)

Fast Winner Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1,000 100% - 100% - Inactive
EBRAEE 1000%7 EEXH
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BHFE2011F 12 31 HIFFZ

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries, Associates and

53. MEAR  BEQFARARESQ

Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued) AREEE)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at (@ AR BRG] R2011F &
31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 2010F 12 A1 BEMFHBAOT ¢
(Continued) (%)

Nominal value of
Country/place issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of company /R BRAEERREA/ AARFEECRTLERRE/ Principal activities
ARER BX/fiEs AREREE AREREELA IERH
2011 2010
Directly Indirectly MIC(Y Indirectly
B - EE 5
Aesco Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% - 100% —  Investment holding
¥ 200,000 57 AR
Jinyin International Investment PRC (Note ii RMB100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Consultancy (Beijng) Limited ~ #RER(#:# /i) AR%100,00000070 RERR
(“Jinyin")A
REERRAZA(IR)BRAA
(%)
Bejing Runda International PRC (Note ii) RMB100,000,000 = 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Investment Management Limited R EI(#/22 /i) ARE100,000,00070 RERR
(“Beijing Runda”)
IR BEERREERARAT
([t
Gold Sky Capital Limited British Virgin Islands  US$100 100% - 100% - Investment holding
EBRAHE 100%7 RERRK
Everything Nice Limited (Note v)  Bitish Virgin Islands  US$100 - - 100% - Investment holding
(it v) RERREE 10057 RERR
Long Bright Ca |ta\ Limited British Virgin Islands  US$70 70% - 100% - Investment holding
REEAERAT EBRAHE T0%T REZR
Konson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 70% = 100%  Inactive
BERARRAT Bk 10077 LR
Fast Growing International Limited*  British Virgin Islands  USS$1 100% - - - Investment holding
EBRARE 1% RERR
Champion Glory Holdings Ltd* British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - — —  Investment holding
EBRAES 1% REBR
A The names in English are for identification only. N BXEBREZZ -

December 2011.

Newly incorporated during the year ended 31

* R2011F 12831 H1E FEA

HHIL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at
31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise.

(ii) It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC. Under the joint
venture agreement, the Group is responsible
to contribute RMB9,000,000 to the registered
capital of Yinda and share 90% of the profits
and losses of Yinda.

(i)  These subsidiaries are registered domestic
enterprises.

(iv)  These subsidiaries are sino-foreign equity joint
venture companies established in the PRC.

(v)  These subsidiaries were disposed of during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.

Other than the investment holding companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
Mauritius which have no principal place of
operation, and Beijing East Gate, Yinda, Beijing
Ju Fu, TZ Dong Thai, TZ United East, Zhong
Qing, Jinyin and Beijing Runda which operate
principally in the PRC, all other subsidiaries
principally operate in Hong Kong.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al

53.

MEBAR - BEQARRLARESQ
AIREE)

(a)

KR EHHE AR R2011F K&
201012 A1 HWFBW T :
(&)

w2 -

i)y WKHBRARRA—REINEHR
B -

iy BR-FRRPBEKLZFBINE
B BEASEAR &%
B & & HE AR 9,000,000

ERREZZAMER  XBA
D FHRZFEI% Ha -

(i) ZEMBARA/ZTMAERE -

vy ZEMBARA/RPEMILL
IR EDE

(v) KB RN2011F12 A 31
BZFERAHE -

MRAFR - IR EA B 1 7] 3
7% -

BREBRIBEENEBRNE
ML REEBR AR AL EEE
BRI AR REFIR - fE -
IERE®R - BMRZE - TMRE
tT FF RERILERABEE
ZRNPELESN  FAEMKH
BRARYEIEREEBRLE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BHFE2011F 12 31 HIFFZ

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)

(o) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31

December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

53. MEAR  BEQFARARESQ
AIREE)

NEB 2 B2 DA R2011FE &
2010412 B 31 BMIEEIB0 T ¢

Place/
country of
incorporation/
Form of establishment  Principal
husiness H®/ML  place of Class of Proportion of nominal value of issued ordinary
Name of company  structure BI5it%,/  business shares held share capitall registered capital held by Principal activities
ARER ERAE fiEd IEEEHE FRGRR FRECRAEBRRAAMEREELS  EEE
The The
@roup Company
A58 NG
Cinda Jianrun Domestic PRC PRC Registered capital -~ 30% 30% - Property development
Property Company 194 hE i iR and operation, property
Limitgd management and
EEERE constructon
BRAR NERRREE NFEER
Bl
Zhong Hai You Domestic PRC PRC Registered capiial ~ 23.08% 23.03% - Production and trading
Qazhoy WA 5 wE RAI-LY of petroleum end
Petrochemical petrochemical products
Company EEREERAR
Limieg? BALIER
BighR (M)Al
RRAF
Yang Quan Coal ~ Domestic PRC PRC Registered captal ~ 49% 49% - Not yet commence busingss
ndustry (Group) ~ 0& e e iftex HARAZE
Tiantal Investment
Limited (Formerly
known as
Guoyang Tiantal
Investment
Limited)"
BREZSERRR
ERRAT (3
BERARRAR
RAR)
CGNPC Huamei ~ Incorporated ~ HongKong ~ PRC Orclnary shares 29.41% - - Power producer in Asia
REREE aa & G Lk TRt ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
53. Particulars of Subsidiaries, Associates and 53. fEAR - BEQAAREREHQ

Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued) AWEE)

(b) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31 (o) ANEE SR ER2011FE K
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 2010F12A31EMERBN T
(Continued) (#&)

Place/
country of
incorporation/
Form of establishment  Principal
husiness H®/ML  place of Class of Proportion of nominal value of issued ordinary
Name of company ~ structure B5H%/  business shares held share capitall registered capital held by Principal activities
ARER ERAR  fiEd ITEXHE FRGRR FRECRAEARRAAMEREELS  TEE
2011 2010
The The The The
Group Company @roup Company
158 3| A58 NG
Befing East Bay Domestic PRC PRC Registered capiial ~ 50% - 50% - Consultancy service
Investment [ hE i iR ERRG
Consultancy
Company
Limitg
FRREREER
BRA7
Sure Spread Limited  Incorporated ~ HongKong ~ HongKong ~ Ordinry shares - - 40% = Production of metallic
(‘Sure Spread’) 7] & ik Lk products and mining-
RLERAT related equipment
(R3]’ EECEERRIEARLE

A The name in English is for identification only. A EXETHERDZE -

# Sure Spread is owned by Everything Nice # R 54 B Everything Nice# % -
Limited, which was disposed by the Group FR2011F 12831 HZ FA
during the year ended 31 December 2011. HAREELE -

* Newly acquired during the year ended 31 * R20114 12 431 A I F A #
December 2011. Wl -

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
53. Particulars of Subsidiaries, Associates and 53. MiBAR - BEQARRAERFESQ

Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued) AWEE)

(c) Particulars of the Group’s and the Company’s () AEEKRARQEEREIZEH QAR
jointly controlled entities at 31 December 2011 2011 & 20104 12 A 31 HHEE
and 2010 are as follows: BuR

Form of Principal Proportion of nominal value of
husiness Place of place Class of issued ordinary share capital/
Name of entity structure establishment  of business  shares held registered capital held by Principal activities
AER g AMRIRE  EEERME  KERGER FRAEETERRRA/ERERLH IR
2011 2010
The The The The
Group Company Group Company
A5 9N 158 NG
Kema Yinxiang Domestic PRC PRC Registered 50% - 50% —  Design and trading of
Industries W hE El capita washroom faciltes
Limied AR Rt REERZ AR
HEDZE2ER
NGk
T2 United East’ Sino-foreign ~~ PRC PRC Registered -t - 50% - Production and trading
FRBLT oquty joint~ BE e capital of petrochemica
venture iR products
miaEaE FERERM IED
i
Platinum One Limfted Incorporated ~ Mauritus PRC Ordlnary shares - - 50% 50% Distressed assets
[poLY A7 ZERY ﬁF@ Lk business
TREERH
# The Group controls 50% voting power in general 7 REBFRKFEAX = 17 %]50%
meeting. POL was deregistered during the year & 2Z fE o POLR20114F 12 A
ended 31 December 20171. 31 HZ FAHF5 °
@ During the year ended 31 December 2011, TZ ¢ R2011F12H31H.2 FA -
United East has become a subsidiary of the FEMN B A 52K 5 F 2 [
Group. Details are set out in note 44. BRA] - FIFEI R T 44 o
! The name in English is for identification purpose ! BNEFERRE -
only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12431 HILFE
54. Particulars of the Special Purpose Vehicle 54. BHRENBERHEE
Particulars of the special purpose vehicle which held FEAEEKRETNREENEKEOH
the Group’s investment in distressed asset at 31 B 20114F & 2010F 12 A31 B/
December 2011 and 2010 is as follows: BT
Form of Principal Proportion of
business Place of place Class of registered capital held by
Name of entity structure establishment of business shares held 2011 and 2010 Principal activities
ARER 7)) Rl AR IEERNY  FEROEN FrisArmEAL b B
The Group The Company
150 ARH
Dongxin Union Sino-foreign PRC PRC Registered 46.17% - Distressed assets
REHS equity joint Al il capial business
venture AR PREERE
THGERELE

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al




FINANCIAL SUMMARY Bf#&#iE &

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F 1231 HIFEE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A310LLEE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million R CHY M HK$ Million
BEBT BERT AEZT BEHBT FEAT
Results ES |
Revenue WA 439.7 288.3 329.3 290.6 462.6
Profit for the year attributable to ARAEEA
owners of the Company FEhERET 322.9 87.1 406.3 530.8 375.6
At 31 December
M12A31R
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million YoM HK$ Million
AEFT BEET AEET BEET BEAT
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Investment properties and property, REMERNE -
plant and equipment BE R 2,282.6 2,650.7 2,511.7 2,801.8 3,510.6
Land use right TinERE - 26.9 26.8 - 70.3
Goodwill BE 7.0 11.4 7.0 7.0 46.5
Structured finance securities ERMSHES 12.0 12.2 9.0 5.1 6.2
Other assets HEE 1.4 = = = =
Interest in jointly controlled entities HEEIA AR 13.6 66.7 198.4 266.3 83.1
Interest in associates BENTER 1,108 784.0 133.0 1,492.3 2,197.9
Avallable-for-sale investments AftHERE 167.7 314.0 435.5 1,038.6 727.8
Investment in distressed assets BANLERE R
through establishment of HERETREE
a special purpose vehicle 9.7 - - - -
Deposit paid for acquisition of investments 2 UERE KRS 64.2 = = = -
Deposit paid for land use rights THERE RS - - - = 35.7
Loan receivables — non-current BWER — 7B - = 339.7 295.9 =
Other receivables — non-current HibEUE — ERE - = 142.1 = =
Net current assets FRBEE 1,828.9 1,316.4 1,826.1 1,871.0 1,998.9
5,497.9 5,182.3 5,629.3 7,778.0 8,677.0
Share capital e 364.1 364.1 364.1 437.0 461.0
Reserves B 4,641.9 4,505.5 4,805.3 6,603.3 6,832.0
Equity attributable to owners of ARAEEA
the Company FEfhRA 5,006.0 4,869.6 5,169.4 7,040.3 7,293.0
Non-controlling interests IR 12.7 202.5 93.2 268.2 503.9
Non-current liabilities FRBARE 479.2 110.2 366.7 469.5 880.1
5,497.9 5,182.3 5,629.3 7,778.0 8,677.0
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES & &Y %=

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12431 HILFE

The following is a list of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2011:

Investment properties in the PRC

T3
Ea

o

+EH

URPEZREME

BREER2011FE12 A31 HHEREY

Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
b B HAHR Rz EEEE
Sq. ft.
FER
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level 0 and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, term lease (e
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC #
REIGERTRMERRPEFI9ORRIREZMEE
WE2E  RERIEEIE
2. Level 4 to 31 of South Apartment Tower, (excluding Long lease Residential 302,600
603, 606, 607, 701, 806, 807, 907, 1006, 1107, 1307, & Af F=
1407, 1503, 1507, 1706, 1803, 2001, 2006, 2007,
2201, 2506, 2508 and 2705)
East Gate Plaza, 39 Dongzhong Street,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
FREEAMERERREORRRESEEATE
F4=31E (B 603 606 607 * 701 * 806 * 807
907 ~ 1006 *~ 1107 ~ 1307 * 1407 » 1503 * 1507 *
1706 + 1803 * 2001 * 2006 * 2007 * 2201 ~ 2506 * 2508
K. 2705)
3. Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,993
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, ~H *=
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
REIERMRMERPEH19RRIBRESILENEE
=4Z=81 =
4.  Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Po Lou, Medium term Commercial 10,540
No. 28 Dong Zhong Jie Jia, lease (Note) [GES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC. R EACHT L)
REIE R RMERPEF 28 REREE2ES
6 R 8EHD
Note: The legal title of the properties have not been passed to Hiat - EMEZERR2011F12 A31 AR

the Group at 31 December, 2011.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $RZBIRE =H R A Al
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SiLvER GRANT INTERNATIONAL
INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REBEBREXER AT

B 41X 8% Stock code: 171

Suite 4901, 4%th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong
BEREFBEBEIE
ERESHAKRE
4914901 %
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